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AGENDA
FITCHBURG COMMON COUNCIL
OCTOBER 27, 2015
7:30 P.M.

CITY HALL

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Fitchburg Common Council will meet at 7:30 p.m. for a Meeting on
Tuesday, October 27, 2015 in the Council Chambers of the City Hall, 5520 Lacy Road to consider and act
on the following:

(Note: Full coverage of this meeting is available through FACTv and Streaming Video, accessible on the city web site
at http://factv.fitchburgwi.gov/Cablecast/Public/Main.aspx?ChannellD=3

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ROLL CALL

4. PUBLIC APPEARANCES NON-AGENDA ITEMS / NEW APPOINTMENTS

5. CONSENT AGENDA
ALL ITEMS LISTED UNDER THE CONSENT AGENDA are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion. There will
be no separate discussion of these items unless a motion to amend is passed in which event the item will be removed from the
Consent Agenda and considered on the agenda under the appropriate section.

A. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Council Agenda

1. Common Council — October 13, 2015

REFERRALS TO COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEE

128.Resolution R-110-15 Final Resolution Exercising Police Powers and Levying Special
Assessments for 2015 Curb and Gutter Replacement in the City of Fitchburg, Wisconsin
a. Board of Public Works
b. Finance Committee

129.Resolution R-117-15 Designating Proposed Boundaries and Approving a Project Plan for
Tax Incremental District No. 10, City of Fitchburg, Wisconsin
a. Plan Commission
b. Finance Committee

130.Resolution R-118-15 Recognizing the 2015 Build Application of the Anton Drive Infill
Redevelopment Public Visioning and Committing to a Twenty Five Percent Local Match
a. Finance Committee

131.Resolution R-119-15 Approving Contract with MSA for Anton Drive Planning Study
a. Finance Committee
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5. Consent Agenda (continued)

Council Agenda

132.Resolution R-120-15 A Resolution Recommending an Audit Firm for the City’'s 2015
Audit
a. Finance Committee

133.Resolution R-121-15 Approving Grant of Highway Easement to Wisconsin Department of
Transportation (WisDOT) over the Military Ridge Path Corridor at County PD/McKee Road
a. Board of Public Works
b. Plan Commission
c. Finance Committee

134.Rezone Reguest RZ-2080-15 by Ronald Klaas, Agent for Fahey Land, LLC, to Rezone a
Portion of Lot 2 CSM 9896 from the A-T (Transitional Agriculture) District to the A-X (Small
Lot Agriculture), a Portion to the P-R (Parks & Recreation), a Portion to the R-H
(Residential-High Density) and a Portion to the R-LM (Residential-Low to Medium Density)
Districts
a. Plan Commission

135.Final Plat Request FP-2081-15 by Ron Klaas, Agent for Fahey Land, LLC, for the Final
Plat of Fahey Fields
a. Plan Commission

136.Comprehensice Development Plan Amendment Request CDP(A)-2085-15 by Jim
Spabhr of Lionshare Group, Agent for William Dunn, for Amendment One to the Stoner
Prairie Comprehensive Development Plan
a. Plan Commission

137.Conditional Use Permit Request CU-2086-15 by Matt Hoefler, HAF Group, to Allow for
an Expanded Restaurant Use at 2784 S. Fish Hatchery Road, Lot 1 CSM 12119
a. Plan Commission

138.Conditional Use Permit Request CU-2087-15 by Chuck Chvala, Agent for Ronald &
Gertrude Hersmeier, to Allow for a Church Use on Property Associated with 1911 Pike
Drive, Lot 3 Hasz Subdivision
a. Plan Commission

139.Conditional Use Permit Request CU-2088-15 by Chuck Chvala, Agent for Fitchburg
Christian Fellowship, to Allow for a Hotel, Restaurant and Conference Center Use on
Property Associated with 2924 Fish Hatchery Road
a. Plan Commission

140.Conditional Use Permit Request CU-2089-15 by Robb Roos of Cardno, Agent for
American Transmission Company, for a Transmission Line Rebuild Project
a. Plan Commission

141.Final Plat Request FP-2090-15 by Michael Marty of Vierbicher, Agent for Goldleaf
Fitchburg, LLC, for the Final Plat for First Addition to North Park.
a. Plan Commission

142.Rezone Reguest RZ-2091-15 by Bill Schiel, Agent for 5509, LLC, to Amend the PDD-SIP
Zoning Relative to Site Plan and Building Modifications, for 11 Glenbrook Way, Lot 1 CSM
12952
a. Plan Commission
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5. Consent Agenda (continued)

C.

143.Preliminary Plat Reguest PP-2092-15 by Chris Ehlers of William Ryan Homes, Agent

for O’Brien Family Limited Partnership, for the Stoner Prairie Preliminary Plat
a. Plan Commission
b. Park Commission

Public Safety & Human Services
1. Consideration of the Following Fermented Malt Beverage and Intoxicating Liquor

Licenses: (Issuance Contingent upon Payment of all Fees owed to The City of
Fitchburg) All are renewal applications.

a. “CLASS A” CIDER LICENSE

Stop-N-Go of Madison, Inc., 2932 Fish Hatchery Road — DBA Stop-N-Go #285 — Andrew
J. Bowman, Agent

6. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT

7. COMMISSION/COMMITTEE REPORTS

A.

J.

Council Agenda

Plan Commission

1.

Ordinance 2015-0-27 An Ordinance Amending Chapter 22, Section 22-345(5) to Allow
Landscape Sales in the R-D (Rural Development) District

. Ordinance 2015-0-32 Zoning Ordinance Amendment Specific Implementation Plan

Zoning for Lot 15 Quarry Vista Relative to Building Addition for a Maintenance Facility,
Picnic/Patio Areas and Exterior Building Modifications

Board of Public Works

1.

Ordinance 2015-0-28 An Ordinance Amending Chapter 27 Street and Public Ways —
Section 27-402(b) Relative to Curb Opening Width For Commercial or Industrial
Driveways

a. Plan Commission

. Resolution R-105-15 A Resolution Approving Third Party Financing and Ownership of

Solar Photovoltaic Panels on the Fitchburg Public Library Roof
a. Finance Committee
b. Library Board

. Resolution R-115-15 Accepting Water Main Improvements on Lot 2 of CSM 10031 (Sub-

Zero)

Park Commission

Library Board

Commission on Aging

Resource Conservation Commission

Transportation & Transit Commission

Community & Economic Development Authority

Agriculture & Rural Affairs Committee

Reports from other Commissions and Committees
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8. STANDING COMMITTEE REPORTS
A. Finance Committee
1. APPROVAL OF BILLS -
Review of Bills Under $25,000 or Previously Pre-Approved (Council Action Not Required)
a. General Checks 112148 through 112222 dated October 22, 2015 Total $473,677,16

2. Approval of Bills for $25,000 or more (Council Action Required)
a. Batch Dated October 22, 2015 - $218,380.23

3. Resolution R-113-15 Approving Contract Amendment with SEH for
Architectural/Engineering Services a Geo-Thermal System for the West Fire Station Building

4. Ordinance 2015-0-29 An Ordinance to Amend SEC. 35-3(a)l — Permit Fees (Tabled
from 10/13/2015 Meeting)(Finance, BPW)

5. Approval of Fitch-Rona EMS 2016-2020 Capital Budgets
6. Approval of Fitch-Rona EMS 2016 Operating Budget Including Mileage Rate Increase

B. Personnel Committee
1. Resolution R-112-15 Approving the Employees Development Policies and Procedures

C. Public Safety & Human Services
1. Operator Licenses needing special attention where applicant must be present:
(Issuance Contingent upon Payment of all Fees Owed to City of Fitchburg — Notes: N
= New, All Others = Renewal) Imani Satterfield - N

9. MAYOR’S REPORT
A. Alder District Reports

10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
1. Mayor Veto of Resolution R-107-15 A Resolution Establishing a Police and Municipal Building
Oversight Committee to be Appointed by the Council President

11. NEW BUSINESS

12. ANNOUNCEMENTS
A. Next Committee of the Whole Meeting, October 28, 2015
B. Next Common Council Meeting, November 10, 2015

13. ADJOURNMENT

Note: It is possible that members of and possibly a quorum of members of other government bodies of the municipality may be in attendance at the above stated meeting to gather
information. No action will be taken by any governmental body at the above stated meeting other than the governmental body specifically referred to above in this notice. Please note
that, upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information or to
request this service, contact Fitchburg City Hall, 5520 Lacy Road, Fitchburg W1 53711,(608) 270-4200
Council Agenda
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Administrative Offices

5520 Lacy Road

Fitchburg, WI 53711-5318

Phone: (608) 270-4200 Fax: (608) 270-4212
www.fitchburgwi.gov

DRAFT MINUTES
FITCHBURG COMMON COUNCIL
OCTOBER 13, 2015

7:30 P.M.
CITY HALL
1. CALL TO ORDER - Mayor Arnold called the meeting to order at 7:42 p.m.
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3. ROLL CALL: Julia Arata-Fratta, Dan Carpenter, Jason Gonzalez, Tony Hartmann, Jake Johnson,

Dorothy Krause, Carol Poole, Patrick Stern, and Mayor Arnold. Others Present: Patrick Marsh, City
Administrator and Patti Anderson, City Clerk.

4. PUBLIC APPEARANCES NON-AGENDA ITEMS / NEW APPOINTMENTS

A. Public Hearing — Proposed 2016 Budget (Proposed Budget on the City website)

1. Mayor Arnold opened the public hearing at 7:43 p.m.

2. Registrants who spoke regarding the budget: Chris Jimieson, Sherrie Gruder, Randy Hess,
Richard Bloomquist, Jody Zache, Steve Lipton, Tiffany Loomis, Eileen Kellor, Logan
Wandrey, Glenn Unger, Jake Johnson, Marc Jones.

3. Citizens who registered only: Donna Rosinski, Bill Camperlino, Kris Kellor, Kaye Cooke,
Sam Cooke, Diane Streck.

4. Public Hearing closed at 9:07 p.m.

9:07 pm — Motion by Stern, 2" by Carpenter for unanimous consent to move item #11.1.

11. 1. Motion by Gonzalez, 2" by Johnson to approve Resolution R-111-15 Approving a
Typical Section for the Lacy Road Reconstruction Project from the Community Center East to
S. Syene Road — Direct Referral (TTC, BPW)
a. Registrants who spoke: Patrick Cheney, Matthew Jones, Eillen Kellor.
b. Citizens who registered only: Tom Marshall, Kaye Cooke, Sam Cooke, Steve Racchini,
Dave Willborn, Kay Willborn, Nancy Gallagher, and Kris Kellor.
c. Roll Call Vote: All Ayes.
d. Motion carried unanimously.

5. CONSENT AGENDA
A. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - September 22, 2015

B. REFERRALS TO COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEE
Ordinance 2015-O- 31 An Ordinance Amending Chapter 14 to Amend Article 3 Section
14-63(a) and Create Article 3 Section 14-63(a)(1) and Article 3 Section 14-63(a)(2) (Personnel)

Council Agenda
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Rezone Regquest, RZ-2079-15 by Craig Raddatz, Agent for Fiduciary Real

Estate Development, Inc., to Amend the PDD-SIP (Planned Development District — Specific
Implementation Plan) Zoning to Allow for the Addition of Two Picnic Areas with Grills, a Single-
Story Maintenance Shop Building Addition as well as other Minor Exterior Modifications on Lot
15 Quarry Vista (Plan)

Rezone Reguest, RZ-2082-15 by Thomas Sanford, Agent for Homeville Fitchburg/Bill
Clemens, to Rezone Lot 1 CSM 12135 from PDD-GIP (Planned Development District-
General Implementation Plan) Zoning to PDD-SIP (Planned Development District -

Specific Implementation Plan) Zoning to Allow for Commercial Development (Pian)

Certified Survey Map Request, CS-2083-15 by Thomas Sanford, Agent for

Homeville Fitchburg/Bill Clemens, to Divide Lot 1 CSM 12135 into Two Lots (Plan)

Resolution R-112-15 Approving the Employees Development Policies and Procedures
(Personnel)

Resolution R-113-15 Approving Contract Amendment with SEH for Architectual/Engineering
Services a Geo-Thermal System for the West Fire Station Building (Finance)

Resolution R-115-15 Accepting Water Main Improvements on Lot 2 of CSM 10031 (Sub-Zero)
(BPW)

Public Safety & Human Services
1. Temporary Operator Licenses: (Issuance Contingent upon Payment of all Fees Owed
to City of Fitchburg) MadCity Velo - Erik D. Jensen, Peter C. Biermeier

2. Consideration of the Following Application for Temporary Class “B”/"Class B”
Retailers License “Picnic License” (Issuance Contingent upon Payment of all Fees
Owed to City of Fitchburg) MadCity Velo, 311 Wind Poppy Way, Waunakee, WI to hold a
Cyclocross Bicycle Event on Sunday, October 25, 2015 from 10:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. at
McGaw Park, 5236 Lacy Road, Fitchburg, WI - For Sale of Fermented Malt Beverages only

3. Motion by Poole, 2" by Stern to approve the consent agenda.

4. Motion carried.

9:32 recess for 5 minutes
9:37 reconvene meeting

Gonzalez requested unanimous consent to take up item# 11.3

11. 3.

Motion by Krause, 2" by Stern to approve as amended by the Board of Public Works
Resolution R-116-15 Accepting Subdivision Improvements for Lots 1 through 15 and Utility

Improvements on Outlots 1 and 5 in the Plat of Quarry Vista in the City of Fitchburg, Wisconsin
— Direct Referral (BPW)
a. Motion carried.

6. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT
Marsh presented the Administrators Report.

7. COMMISSION/COMMITTEE REPORTS

A.

B.

C.

Council Agenda

Plan Commission

Board of Public Works

1. Motion by Krause, 2™ by Poole to approve Resolution R-103-15 A Resolution Approving
Agreement Between Sub-Zero Wolf, Inc. and the City of Fitchburg Regarding Provision of
Utility Easements and Road Connectivity
a. Motion carried.

2. Motion by Krause, 2" by Stern to approve Resolution R-108-15 Authorizing Purchase
of Plow Truck Equipment (Finance)
a. Motion carried.

Park Commission
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D. Library Board
E. Commission on Aging
F. Resource Conservation Commission
G. Transportation & Transit Commission
H. Community & Economic Development Authority
I.  Agriculture & Rural Affairs Committee
J. Reports from other Commissions and Committees
8. STANDING COMMITTEE REPORTS
A. Finance Committee
1. Stern reported that Finance reviewed a batch of bills Under $25,000 or Previously Pre
Approved General Checks 112033 through 112147 dated October 8, 2015 Total

$833,652.32 as well as P-Card Charges August 5, 2015 — September 4, 2015
Total $182,629.92

2. Motion by Stern, 2" by Carpenter to approve Bills for $25,000 or more, batch Dated
October 8, 2015 - $242,165.77
a. Motion carried.

3. Motion by Stern, 2" by Poole to Table to 10/27 meeting Ordinance 2015-0-29 An
Ordinance to Amend SEC. 35-3(a)l — Permit Fees gpPw)
a. Motion carried.

B. Personnel Committee

C. Public Safety & Human Services
1. Motion by Poole, 2" by Stern to approve Resolution R-107-15 A Resolution Establishing

a Police and Municipal Building Oversight Committee to be Appointed by the Council

President

a. Motion by Hartmann, 2" by Johnson to amend the resolution to have the members of
the Ad Hoc Committee be appointed by the Mayor.

b. Motion failed. (Carpenter recused from vote)

c. Motion by Poole, 2™ by Johnson to amend clause 4 to say “shall meet as needed to
move the project forward, and amend clause 5 to say “and make a recommendation of
construction year.

d. Motion carried. (Carpenter recused from vote)

e. Roll Call Vote on Main Motion. Ayes: Poole, Stern, Arata-Fratta, Gonzalez,

Hartmann, Johnson Nay: Krause. (Carpenter recused from vote)

f. Motion carried 6-1.

9. MAYOR’S REPORT
A. Mayor Arnold presented the Mayor’s report

B. Alder District Reports
10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS - None
11. NEW BUSINESS
2. Motion by Stern, 2" by Carpenter to approve Resolution R-114-15 Adopting a Revise

2016 Annual City Budget Schedule - Direct Referral (Finance)
a. Motion carried.

Council Agenda
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12. ANNOUNCEMENTS
A. Next Common Council Meeting, October 27, 2015
B. Next Committee of the Whole Meeting, October 28, 2015

13. Motion by Carpenter, 2" by Stern to adjourn.
A. Motion carried. Time: 10:53 p.m.

Note: It is possible that members of and possibly a quorum of members of other government bodies of the municipality may be in attendance at the above stated meeting to gather
information. No action will be taken by any governmental body at the above stated meeting other than the governmental body specifically referred to above in this notice. Please note
that, upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information or to
request this service, contact Fitchburg City Hall, 5520 Lacy Road, Fitchburg W1 53711,(608) 270-4200

Council Agenda
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City of Fitchburg

Committee or Commission Referral

Direct Referral Initiated by:
Direct Referral Approved by:

Date Referred: October 27, 2015 Ordinance Number:
Date to Report Back: November 10, 2015 Resolution Number: R-110-15

Sponsored by: Mayor Drafted by: Public Works

TITLE: Final Resolution Exercising Police Powers and Levying
Special Assessments for 2015 Curb and Gutter
Replacement in the City of Fitchburg, Wisconsin

Background: The curb and gutter replacement work was completed in conjunction with
the street resurfacing project. In order to levy the assessments, the Council has to adopt
a final assessment resolution. The assessment report will be modified if Resolution R-
110-15 is approved at the November 10, 2015 council meeting.

Order Referred To Staff Contact Place on Agenda | Action Taken
For On Referral
1 Board of Public Works Horton November 2, 2015
2 Finance Dodge November 10, 2015
3
4

Amendments:

I:\Council\Committee Docs\COUNCIL\2015\October 27, 2015\Docs for Review\R-110-15\referral R-110-15.doc
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2015 STREET RESURFACING
CURB & GUTTER REPLACMENT
FINAL ASSESSMENT REPORT
PROJECT NO. 15-SR-101-0
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9

PUBLIC WORKS

City of Fitchburg
Department of Public Works
5520 Lacy Road
Fitchburg, WI 53711
Dane County
Wisconsin
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Introduction

This report is required by the Common Council of the City of Fitchburg to fulfill its
requirements to exercise its power under Wis. Stat. §66.0703(7) and 10.215 of the
Fitchburg General Ordinances. It is submitted to the Common Council as a Final
Assessment Report for the replacement of deficient curb and gutter fronting Monticello
Way from S. Whitney Way to City Limits, Tanager Trail, Richmond Drive, Marledge
Street from Raritan Road to 200’ south of Barbara Drive, Osmundsen Road from Devoro
Road to Lacy Road, and Osmundsen Road from Lacy Road to Stanbrook Road.

This report contains the following:

1) Project COSES ......ooviiiieieeciecee et Table 1
2) Final Assessment Schedule...............ccccceeeei i Exhibit A
3) Final Assessment Resolution R-110-15 ....................... Appendix A
4) Preliminary Assessment Report..........ccccceeeiieiiiiiiiinnnnn. Appendix ‘B‘\‘CON iy
Wi S ‘y
TABLE 1 S S/’E’ 2
PROJECT COSTS St/ eEERG V2
2015 STREET RESURFACING = i E:
CURB & GUTTER REPLACEMENT ";‘" E42082
=, FTHeuRa, W /&' )
Construction Costs % QRO // :
Estimated Construction Costs $32,560.88 "/,,G/ONA\.?’\\\‘ Vol
Less City Costs* $ 16,280.44 TN ¥ 2
Total Assessable Construction Costs $16,280.44 W ' ( fb
Technical Services
Engineering 8% $1,298.44
Administrative 2% $326.88
Subtotal: $1,625.32
Total Assessable Project Cost $17,905.76

*The City is responsible for 50% of the curb and gutter costs per the assessment policy.
ASSESSMENT RATE

In this project, properties will generally benefit in proportion to their linear footage of curb
and gutter. Therefore, the linear footage method of assessment best assures that each
property owner pays a proportionate share of the costs. Per the assessment policy, a
property owner may not be charged for more than 40 linear feet.

The linear footage assessment rate is determined by dividing the total assessable
project cost, as shown in Table 1, by the total assessable linear footage as shown in

Exhibit A. For this project, the assessment rate is calculated to be $19.72 per linear foot
for curb and gutter.

Assessable Curb and Gutter Cost $19.72 / Linear Foot
The assessments for each parcel are shown on Exhibit A. The total linear footage of

assessable curb and gutter replacement is 908 LF.

1:\Public Works\Engineering\Trans\PROJ\2015_Street_Maint\Assessment\FINAL\1-FinalAssessReport2015-C&G.doc



EXHIBIT A

FINAL ASSESSMENT SCHEDULE
2015 STREET RESURFACING, CURB AND GUTTER REPLACEMENT
PROJECT No. 15-SR-101-0

Page 1 of 2
PARCEL OWNER MAILING ADDRESS Final Cost
PARCEL No. ADDRESS NAME Address CITY, STATE, ZIP
225/0609 Measured C&G|A ble Total Cost Resident Assessment City Portion
Linear FT Linear FT]| $39.44 $19.72 $19.72

093-6489-8 |5739 Barbara Dr Tanya & Joseph Lourigan 5739 Barbara Dr Fitchburg, WI 53711 40 40 $1,577.60 |R 50% $788.80 | 50% $788.80
093-4477-6 |5780 Lacy Rd Fischer Living TR 5780 Lacy Rd Fitchburg, WI 53711 11 11 $433.84 |R 50% $216.92 | 50% $216.92
093-6511-9 [2701 Marledge St David & Verna Carlson 2701 Marledge St Fitchburg, WI 53711 24 24 $946.56 |R 50% $473.28 | 50% $473.28
093-6533-3 |2706 Marledge St Daniel Giesler & Jacqueline Ramin 2706 Marledge St Fitchburg, W1 53711 24 24 $946.56 |R 50% $473.28 | 50% $473.28
093-6544-0 [2712 Marledge St Ryne & Phoebe Natzke 2712 Marledge St Fitchburg, WI 53711 42 40 $1,577.60 |R 50% $788.80 | 50% $788.80
093-6478-1 |2721 Marledge St Rodney Bina & Coletta Mulvihill Bina 2721 Marledge St Fitchburg, W1 53711 5 5 $197.20 |R 50% $98.60 | 50% $98.60
093-6577-1 |2728 Marledge St Richard & Joyce Nelson 2728 Marledge St Fitchburg, WI 53711 5 5 $197.20 |[R 50% $98.60 | 50% $98.60
093-6665-4 |2744 Marledge St Frank Novak & Kathleen Lange-Novak 2744 Marledge St Fitchburg, W1 53711 23 23 $907.12 |R 50% $453.56 | 50% $453.56
093-6423-6 |2745 Marledge St Thomas & Patricia Farley 2745 Marledge St Fitchburg, WI 53711 9 9 $354.96 |R 50% $177.48 | 50% $177.48
093-6401-2 |2753 Marledge St Cheryl Hamilton 2753 Marledge St Fitchburg, WI 53711 9 9 $354.96 |R 50% $177.48 | 50% $177.48
062-6698-2 |5744 Monticello Way |Jessica Smulka 5744 Monticello Way Fitchburg, W1 53719 21 21 $828.24 |R 50% $414.12 | 50% $414.12
062-6062-0 |5747 Monticello Way |David & Rebekah Krajnik 5747 Monticello Way Fitchburg, W1 53719 11 11 $433.84 |R 50% $216.92 | 50% $216.92
062-6051-3 |5748 Monticello Way |Kimberly Hurley 5748 Monticello Way Fitchburg, W1 53719 11 11 $433.84 |R 50% $216.92 | 50% $216.92
062-6040-6 |5752 Monitcello Way |Wade & Shelley Whitmus 5752 Monticello Way Fitchburg, WI 53719 11 11 $433.84 |R 50% $216.92 | 50% $216.92
062-6095-1 |5759 Monticello Way |Christopher & Paige Jany 5759 Monticello Way Fitchburg, W1 53719 31 31 $1,222.64 |R 50% $611.32 | 50% $611.32
062-6018-4 |5760 Monticello Way |Mary Becker 5760 Monticello Way Fitchburg, W1 53719 23 23 $907.12 |R 50% $453.56 | 50% $453.56
062-6106-7 |5763 Monticello Way |Kimberly Knoche 5763 Monticello Way Fitchburg, W1 53719 31 31 $1,222.64 |R 50% $611.32 | 50% $611.32
062-6007-7 |5764 Monticello Way |James & Margaret Newberry 5764 Monticello Way Fitchburg, W1 53719 12 12 $473.28 |R 50% $236.64 | 50% $236.64
062-4067-9 |5767 Monticello Way |Jacqueline Captain 5767 Monticello Way Fitchburg, W1 53719 29 29 $1,143.76 |R 50% $571.88 | 50% $571.88
062-4056-2 |5768 Monticello Way |Jaime & Steven Karlic 5768 Monticello Way Fitchburg, W1 53719 24 24 $946.56 |R 50% $473.28 | 50% $473.28
062-4023-1 |5804 Monticello Way |Michael & Michele Van Hecker 5804 Monticello Way Fitchburg, W1 53719 17 17 $670.48 |R 50% $335.24 | 50% $335.24
062-4559-4 15816 Monticello Way |Robert Helgren 5816 Monticello Way Fitchburg, W1 53719 12 12 $473.28 |R 50% $236.64 | 50% $236.64
062-4416-6 |5823 Monticello Way |Kirstin & Joseph Bugni 5823 Monticello Way Fitchburg, W1 53719 40 40 $1,577.60 |R 50% $788.80 | 50% $788.80
062-4537-0 |5824 Monticello Way |Jeffery Scarafia 1733 Waters Ridge Dr Newburgh, IN 47630 15 15 $591.60 |R 50% $295.80 | 50% $295.80
062-4449-7 15835 Monticello Way |Alvin & Margo Barcheski 5835 Monticello Way Fitchburg, W1 53719 26 26 $1,025.44 |R 50% $512.72 | 50% $512.72
062-4504-9 5836 Monticello Way |Lindzee & Shonn Gibson 5836 Monticello Way Fitchburg, W1 53719 9 9 $354.96 |R 50% $177.48 | 50% $177.48
062-4460-2 15839 Monticello Way |Kenneth Olson & Susan Gilbertson 5839 Monticello Way Fitchburg, W1 53719 14 14 $552.16 |R 50% $276.08 | 50% $276.08
062-4482-6 15844 Monticello Way |Charlene Crapser 5844 Monticello Way Fitchburg, W1 53719 8 8 $315.52 |R 50% $157.76 | 50% $157.76
062-4471-9 5845 Monticello Way |Colin & Rebeca Schenck 5845 Monticello Way Fitchburg, W1 53719 10 10 $394.40 |R 50% $197.20 | 50% $197.20
162-3115-1 |2686 Osmundsen Rd |Randall Hess 2985 Triverton Pike Unit 200 |Fitchburg, W1 53711 11 11 $433.84 |R 50% $216.92 | 50% $216.92
093-4598-0 [2703 Osmundsen Rd |William & Linda Wilson 2703 Osmundsen Rd Fitchburg, WI 53711 25 25 $986.00 |R 50% $493.00 | 50% $493.00
093-4609-6 |2707 Osmundsen Rd |Michael & Kathleen Walker 2707 Osmundsen Rd Fitchburg, W1 53711 5 5 $197.20 |R 50% $98.60 | 50% $98.60
093-4763-9 |2725 Osmundsen Rd |Steven & Lynn Smilie 2725 Osmundsen Rd Fitchburg, WI 53711 47 40 $1,577.60 |[R 50% $788.80 | 50% $788.80
093-4774-6 |2731 Osmundsen Rd |John & Susan Easterday 2731 Osmundsen Rd Fitchburg, W1 53711 21 21 $828.24 |R 50% $414.12 | 50% $414.12
093-4274-1 |2735 Osmundsen Rd |Jeffery & Krishna Erdahl 2735 Osmundsen Rd Fitchburg, WI 53711 7 7 $276.08 |R 50% $138.04 | 50% $138.04
062-4045-5 |2487 Tanager Trail Allen & Mary Koscielniak 2487 Tanager Trl Fitchburg, WI 53711 5 $197.20 |[R 50% $98.60 | 50% $98.60

I:\Public Works\Engineering\Trans\PROJ\2015 Street Maint\
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EXHIBIT A

FINAL ASSESSMENT SCHEDULE
2015 STREET RESURFACING, CURB AND GUTTER REPLACEMENT
PROJECT No. 15-SR-101-0

Page 2 of 2
PARCEL OWNER MAILING ADDRESS Final Cost
PARCEL No. ADDRESS NAME Address CITY, STATE, ZIP
225/0609 Measured C&G|A ble Total Cost Resident Assessment City Portion
Linear FT Linear FT]| $39.44 $19.72 $19.72

062-6632-0 |5722 Richmond Dr Pedro Pinto & Ronni Rogers 5722 Richmond Dr Fitchburg, W1 53719 27 27 $1,064.88 |[R 50% $532.44 | 50% $532.44
062-6599-2 |5734 Richmond Dr Keith Rabiola & Jennifer Fenne 5734 Richmond Dr Fitchburg, W1 53719 12 12 $473.28 |R 50% $236.64 | 50% $236.64
062-6588-5 |5738 Richmond Dr Jones TR 5738 Richmond Dr Fitchburg, WI 53719 49 40 $1,577.60 |R 50% $788.80 | 50% $788.80
062-6163-8 |5742 Richmond Dr Goodison Living TR, Frank & Helga 5742 Richmond Dr Fitchburg, W1 53719 45 40 $1,577.60 |R 50% $788.80 | 50% $788.80
062-6141-4 |5750 Richmond Dr Leland Lemens & Marilyn Franke-Lemens 5750 Richmond Dr Fitchburg, W1 53719 34 34 $1,340.96 |[R 50% $670.48 | 50% $670.48
062-6130-7 |5754 Richmond Dr Antonio Antezana 5754 Richmond Dr Fitchburg, W1 53719 22 22 $867.68 |R 50% $433.84 | 50% $433.84
062-6119-2 |5758 Richmond Dr June Coleman 5758 Richmond Dr Fitchburg, W1 53719 35 35 $1,380.40 |[R 50% $690.20 | 50% $690.20
062-4232-8 |5773 Richmond Dr James Tewes & Elizabeth Blair 5773 Richmond Dr Fitchburg, W1 53719 11 11 $433.84 |R 50% $216.92 | 50% $216.92
062-4155-2 |5774 Richmond Dr Gerard & Darlene Meinholz 5774 Richmond Dr Fitchburg, W1 53719 16 16 $631.04 |R 50% $315.52 | 50% $315.52
062-4144-5 |5778 Richmond Dr Krystle & Joseph Marks 5778 Richmond Dr Fitchburg, W1 53719 12 12 $473.28 |R 50% $236.64 | 50% $236.64
TOTAL C&G: 931 908 $35,811.52 $17,905.76 $17,905.76

All property owners and mailling address information was obtained on September 29, 2015 from Access Dane Geographic and Land Information.
Curb and gutter assessments may not be exceed 40 linear feet per policy.
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APPENDIX A

Steve Arnold, Mayor Public Works
Introduced By Prepared by
Board of Public Works, Finance October 27, 2015
Referred to Date

RESOLUTION R-110-15
FINAL RESOLUTION EXERCISING POLICE POWERS AND LEVYING SPECIAL
ASSESSMENTS FOR 2015 CURB AND GUTTER REPLACEMENT IN THE CITY OF
FITCHBURG, WISCONSIN

WHEREAS, on March 24, 2015, the Common Council of the City of Fitchburg adopted
resolution No R-33-15 declaring its intent to exercise its police power under Wis. Stat. §66.0703
(7), and section 10.213-10.216 of the Fitchburg General Ordinances to levy special assessments
for special benefits conferred upon properties within the following Assessment District for the
cost of replacing defective curb and gutter on streets in the 2015 Street Resurfacing contract in
the City of Fitchburg.

ASSESSMENT DISTRICT

All properties with defective curb and gutter as identified by the City Engineer fronting
Monticello Way from S. Whitney Way to City Limits, Tanager Trail, Richmond Drive, Marledge
Street from Raritan Road to 200’ south of Barbara Drive, Osmundsen Road from Devoro Road
to Lacy Road, and Osmundsen Road from Lacy Road to Stanbrook Road.

WHEREAS, pursuant to said resolution a report was filed by the City Engineer in the office
of the City Clerk, notice thereof was duly given to the public and to owners of affected properties,
and the Board of Public Works on August 17, 2015, held a public hearing at the Fitchburg City Hall
for purposes of hearing all persons interested concerning the preliminary resolution and report on the
proposed assessments; and

WHEREAS, all work described in Resolution No. R-33-15 has been completed and a final
report of the direct and indirect costs of the improvements and proposed final assessments has been
filed in the office of the City Clerk by the City Engineer; and

WHEREAS, the report of the engineer shows that the final assessments do not exceed by ten
percent (10%) or more the preliminary assessments in the preliminary report heard by the Board of
Public Works on August 17, 2015, as above described;

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, the Common Council of the City of
Fitchburg, Wisconsin, pursuant to the authority vested in it by Wis. Stat. 62.11(5) and 66.0703(7)
hereby resolve as follows:

1. The final report of the City Engineer pertaining to the construction of 2015 Curb and
Gutter Replacement in the above-described Assessment District is hereby adopted and approved.

2. Payment for the improvements described in paragraph 1 shall be made by assessing the
costs to the properties and in the amounts indicated in the report as shown on Exhibit A attached
hereto which is incorporated herein as if fully set forth.
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3. The assessments shown on the attached Exhibit A represent an exercise of the police
power and have been determined on a reasonable basis and are hereby confirmed.

4. The assessments may be paid to the City Clerk in cash within sixty (60) days from the
adopted date of this resolution or in equal annual installments of principal as follows:

a. If the assessment is less than $500.00, the assessment shall be paid in one (1) annual
installment.

b. If the assessment is at least $500.00 but less than $999.00, the assessment shall be paid in
three (3) installments.

c. Ifthe assessment is at least $1000.00 but less than $4,999.00, the assessment shall be
paid in five (5) annual installments.

d. If the assessment is greater than $5000.00, the assessment shall be paid in seven (7)
annual installments.

Upon sale or transfer of the property any outstanding balances are due. Deferred principal payments
shall bear interest on the unpaid balance at the rate of 2.5% per annum from January 1, 2016.
Installments not paid when due shall bear additional interest on the amount due at the rate of 18% per
annum. Partial payments received on or before ninety days from the adopted date of this resolution
shall be applied to the principal amount due and installments reduced pro-rata.

5. The unpaid balance of principal of any assessment levied hereby and interest thereon shall
be a lien upon the assessed property from the date of adoption of this resolution.

6. The City Clerk shall publish this resolution and an installment assessment notice as Class
1 Notices in the City's official newspaper and mail a copy of this resolution and a statement of the
final assessment against each property, together with an installment assessment notice, to the owner
of every property whose name appears on the assessment roll and whose post office address is known
or can with reasonable diligence be ascertained.

Adopted this 10" day of November, 2015.

Approved By:

Stephen L. Arnold, Mayor

Attested By:

Patti Anderson, City Clerk
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Introduction

This report is required by the Common Council of the City of Fitchburg as per Resolution
Number R-33-15, declaring Intent to Exercise Special Assessment Powers. It is
submitted to the Common Council as a Preliminary Assessment Report for the
replacement of deficient curb and gutter fronting Monticello Way from S. Whitney Way
to City Limits, Tanager Trail, Richmond Drive, Marledge Street from Raritan Road to
200’ south of Barbara Drive, Osmundsen Road from Devoro Road to Lacy Road, and
Osmundsen Road from Lacy Road to Stanbrook Road.

This report contains the following:

1) Statement of Benefits

2) Opinion 6f Projeet CostSmssx s svssss s ssssssssmmnsng Table 1
3) Preliminary Assessment Schedule.........cccooevevieenneennnenne. Exhibit A
4) Preliminary Assessment Resolution R-33-15................ Appendix A
5) Assessment District Boundary Map........cccccecvevvuveennenne Appendix B

I. Statement of Benefits

The improvements will abut the properties within the proposed assessment districts as
shown and described in Appendices A and B, respectively.

By correcting deficiencies in the existing curb and gutter, this will benefit the properties
where the improvements are to be installed.

II. Opinion of Project Costs

The Opinion of Project Costs shown in Table 1 contains the estimated construction,
engineering, and administrative costs.
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TABLE 1
OPINION OF PROJECT COSTS
2015 STREET RESURFACING
CURB & GUTTER AND SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT

Construction Costs

Estimated Construction Costs $32,560.88

Less City Costs* $ 16,280.44
Total Assessable Construction Costs _ $16,280.44
Technical Services

Engineering 8% $1,298.44

Administrative 2% $326.88

Subtotal: $1,625.32
Total Assessable Project Cost $17,905.76

*The City is responsible for 50% of the curb and gutter costs per the assessment policy.

PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT RATE

In this project, properties will generally benefit in proportion to their linear footage of
curb and gutter. Therefore, the linear footage method of assessment best assures that
each property owner pays a proportionate share of the costs. Per the assessment policy, a
property owner may not be charged for more than 40 linear feet.

The linear footage preliminary assessment rate is determined by dividing the total
assessable project cost, as shown in Table 1, by the total assessable linear footage as
shown in Exhibit A. For this project, the preliminary assessment rate is calculated to be

$19.72 per linear foot for curb and gutter.

Assessable Curb and Gutter Cost $19.72 / Linear Foot

The preliminary assessments for each parcel are shown on Exhibit A. The total linear
footage of assessable curb and gutter replacement is 908 LF. '
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EXHIBIT A

PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT SCHEDULE

2015 STREET RESURFACING, CURB AND GUTTER REPLACEMENT
PROJECT No. 15-SR-101-0

Page 1 of 2
PARCEL OWNER MAILING ADDRESS Preliminary Assessment
PARCEL No. ADDRESS NAME Address CITY, STATE, ZIP
225/0609 Measured C&G|Assessable Total Cost Resident Assessment City Portion
Linear FT Linear FT $39.44 $19.72 $19.72

093-6489-8 [5739 Barbara Dr Tanya & Joseph Lourigan 5739 Barbara Dr Fitchburg, W153711 40 40 $1,577.60 |R 50% $788.80 | 50% $788.80
093-4477-6 |5780 Lacy Rd Fischer Living TR 5780 Lacy Rd Fitchburg, W1 53711 11 11 $433.84 |R 50% $216.92 | 50% $216.92
093-6511-9 {2701 Marledge St David & Verna Carlson 2701 Marledge St Fitchburg, W1 53711 24 24 $946.56 [R 50% $473.28 | 50% $473.28
093-6533-3 2706 Marledge St Daniel Giesler & Jacqueline Ramin 2706 Marledge St Fitchburg, W1 53711 24 24 $946.56 |R 50% $473.28 | 50% $473.28
093-6544-0 |2712 Marledge St Ryne & Phoebe Natzke 2712 Marledge St Fitchburg, W1 53711 42 40 $1,577.60 |R 50% $788.80 | 50% $788.80
093-6478-1 12721 Marledge St Rodney Bina & Coletta Mulvihill Bina 2721 Marledge St Fitchburg, W1 53711 5 5 $197.20 |R 50% $98.60 | 50% $98.60
093-6577-1_|2728 Marledge St Richard & Joyce Nelson 2728 Marledge St Fitchburg, W1 53711 5 5 $197.20 |R 50% $98.60 | 50% $98.60
093-6665-4 |2744 Marledge St Frank Novak & Kathleen Lange-Novak 2744 Marledge St Fitchburg, W1 53711 23 23 $907.12 |R 50% $453.56 | 50% $453.56
093-6423-6 |2745 Marledge St Thomas & Patricia Farley 2745 Marledge St Fitchburg, W1 53711 9 9 $354.96 |R 50% $177.48 | 50% $177.48
093-6401-2 2753 Marledge St Cheryl Hamilton 2753 Marledge St Fitchburg, W1 53711 9 9 $354.96 |R 50% $177.48 | 50% $177.48
062-6698-2 5744 Monticello Way |Jessica Smulka 5744 Monticello Way Fitchburg, W1 53719 21 21 $828.24 |R 50% $414.12 | 50% $414.12
062-6062-0 |5747 Monticello Way |David & Rebekah Kranjik 5747 Monticello Way Fitchburg, W1 53719 14 11 $433.84 |[R 50% $216.92 | 50% $216.92
062-6051-3 [5748 Monticello Way |Kimberly Hurley 5748 Monticello Way Fitchburg, W1 53719 11 i | $433.84 [R 50% $216.92 | 50% $216.92
062-6040-6 |5752 Monitcello Way |Wade & Shelley Whitmus 5752 Monticello Way Fitchburg, W1 53719 11 11 $433.84 |R 50% $216.92 | 50% $216.92
062-6095-1 |5759 Monticello Way |Christopher & Paige Jany 5759 Monticello Way Fitchburg, W1 53719 31 31 $1,222.64 |R 50% $611.32 | 50% $611.32
062-6018-4 (5760 Monticello Way |Mary Becker 5760 Monticello Way Fitchburg, W1 53719 23 23 $907.12 |R 50% $453.56 | 50% $453.56
062-6106-7_[5763 Monticello Way |Kimberly Knoche 5763 Monticello Way Fitchburg, W1 53719 31 31 $1,222.64 |R 50% $611.32 | 50% $611.32
062-6007-7 |5764 Monticello Way |James & Margaret Newberry 5764 Monticello Way Fitchburg, W153719 12 12 $473.28 |R 50% $236.64 | 50% $236.64
062-4067-9 [5767 Monticello Way |Jacqueline Captain 5767 Monticello Way Fitchburg, W1 53719 29 29 $1,143.76 |R 50% $571.88 | 50% $571.88
062-4056-2 |5768 Monticello Way |Jaime & Steven Karlic 5768 Monticello Way Fitchburg, W1 53719 24 24 $946.56 |R 50% $473.28 | 50% $473.28
062-4023-1 5804 Monticello Way |Michael & Michele Van Hecker 5804 Monticello Way Fitchburg, W153719 17 17 $670.48 |R 50% $335.24 | 50% $335.24
062-4559-4 5816 Monticello Way |Robert Helgren 5816 Monticello Way Fitchburg, W1 53719 12 12 $473.28 |R 50% $236.64 | 50% $236.64
062-4416-6 |5823 Monticello Way |[Kirstin & Joseph Bugni 5823 Monticello Way Fitchburg, WI 53719 40 40 $1,577.60 [R 50% $788.80 | 50% $788.80
062-4537-0 |5824 Monticello Way |Jeffery Scarafia 5824 Monticello Way Fitchburg, WI 53719 15 15 $591.60 |R 50% $295.80 | 50% $295.80
062-4449-7 |5835 Monticello Way [Alvin & Margo Barcheski 5835 Monticello Way Fitchburg, W1 53719 26 26 $1,025.44 |R 50%. $512.72 | 50% $512.72
062-4504-9 |5836 Monticello Way |Lindzee & Shonn Gibson 5836 Monticello Way Fitchburg, W1 53719 9 9 $354.96 |R 50% $177.48 | 50% $177.48
062-4460-2 5839 Monticello Way |Kenneth Olson & Susan Gilbertson 5839 Monticello Way Fitchburg, WI 53719 14 14 $552.16 |R 50% $276.08 | 50% $276.08
062-4482-6 |5844 Monticello Way [Charlene Crapser 5844 Monticello Way Fitchburg, W1 53719 8 8 $315.52 |R 50% $157.76 | 50% $157.76
062-4471-9 |5845 Monticello Way [Colin & Rebeca Schenck 5845 Monticello Way Fitchburg, W1 53719 10 10 $394.40 |R 50% $197.20 | 50% $197.20
162-3115-1 12686 Osmundsen Rd _[Randall Hess 2985 Triverton Pike Unit 200 _|Fitchburg, W1 53711 19 11 $433.84 |R 50% $216.92 | 50% $216.92
093-4598-0 |2703 Osmundsen Rd |William & Linda Wilson 2703 Osmundsen Rd Fitchburg, WI 53711 25 25 $986.00 |R 50% $493.00 | 50% $493.00
093-4609-6 2707 Osmundsen Rd _|Michael & Kathleen Walker 2707 Osmundsen Rd Fitchburg, WI 53711 5 5 $197.20 |R 50% $98.60 | 50% $98.60
093-4763-9 |2725 Osmundsen Rd_[Steven & Lynn Smilie 2725 Osmundsen Rd Fitchburg, WI 53711 47 40 $1,577.60 |R 50% $788.80 | 50% $788.80
093-4774-6 2731 Osmundsen Rd _[John & Susan Easterday 2731 Osmundsen Rd Fitchburg, W153711 21 21 $828.24 |R 50% $414.12 | 50% $414.12
093-4274-1 12735 Osmundsen Rd |Jeffery & Krishna Erdahl 2735 Osmundsen Rd Fitchburg, W1 53711 it 7 $276.08 |R 50% $138.04 | 50% $138.04
062-4045-5 [2487 Tanager Trail Allen & Mary Koscielniak 2487 Tanager Trl Fitchburg, W1 53711 5 5 $197.20 |IR 50% $98.60 | 50% $98.60
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PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT SCHEDULE

EXHIBIT A

2015 STREET RESURFACING, CURB AND GUTTER REPLACEMENT
PROJECT No. 15-SR-101-0

Page 2 of 2
PARCEL OWNER MAILING ADDRESS Preliminary Assessment
PARCEL No. ADDRESS NAME Address CITY, STATE, ZIP
225/0609 Measured C&G|Assessable Total Cost Resident Assessment City Portion
Linear FT Linear FT $39.44 $19.72 $19.72

062-6632-0 |5722 Richmond Dr Pedro Pinto & Ronni Rogers 5722 Richmond Dr Fitchburg, WI 53719 27 b4 4 $1,064.88 |R 50% $532.44 | 50% $532.44
062-6599-2 (5734 Richmond Dr Keith Rabiola & Jennifer Fenne 5734 Richmond Dr Fitchburg, WI 53719 12 12 $473.28 R 50% $236.64 | 50% $236.64
062-6588-5 |5738 Richmond Dr Jones TR 5738 Richmond Dr Fitchburg, W153719 49 40 $1,577.60 |R 50% $788.80 | 50% $788.80
062-6163-8 [5742 Richmond Dr Goodison Living TR, Frank & Helga 5742 Richmond Dr Fitchburg, WI 53719 45 40 $1,577.60 [R 50% $788.80 | 50% $788.80
062-6141-4 5750 Richmond Dr Leland Lemens & Marilyn Franke-Lemens _ |5750 Richmond Dr Fitchburg, W1 53719 34 34 $1,340.96 [R 50% $670.48 | 50% $670.48
062-6130-7 |5754 Richmond Dr___[Antonio Antezana 5754 Richmond Dr Fitchburg, WI 53719 22 22 $867.68 |R 50% $433.84 | 50% $433.84
062-6119-2 5758 Richmond Dr___[June Coleman 5758 Richmond Dr Fitchburg, W1 53719 35 35 $1,380.40 |R 50% $690.20 | 50% $690.20
062-4232-8 [5773 Richmond Dr Steven Peterson 5773 Richmond Dr Fitchburg, W153719 11 1 $433.84 |R 50% $216.92 | 50% $216.92
062-4155-2 [5774 Richmond Dr Gerard & Darlene Meinholz 5774 Richmond Dr Fitchburg, W1 53719 16 16 $631.04 [R 50% $315.52 | 50% $315.52
062-4144-5 [5778 Richmond Dr Krystle & Joseph Marks 5778 Richmond Dr Fitchburg, W1 53719 12 12 $473.28 |R 50% $236.64 | 50% $236.64
TOTAL C&G: 931 908  $35,811.52 $17,905.76 $17,905.76

All property owners and mailling address information was obtained on August 5, 2015 from Access Dane Geographic and Land Information.
Curb and gutter assessments may not be exceed 40 linear feet per policy.
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APPENDIX A
Shawn Pfaff, Mayor ) Public Works
Introduced By Prepared by
Board of Public Works, Finance March 10, 2015
Referred to Date

RESOLUTION R-33-15
PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT RESOLUTION FOR
2015 RESURFACING CURB AND GUTTER REPLACEMENT

Preliminary Resolution Declaring Intent to Exercise Special Assessment Police Powers Under
Municipal Police Powers pursuant to §66.0701 Wisconsin Statutes, and Fitchburg Code of
Ordinances Section 10-215 for the cost of replacing defective curb and gutter on streets in the
~ 2015 Street Improvements contract in the City of Fitchburg,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOILVED by the Common Council of the City
of Fitchburg, Dane County, Wisconsin that '

1. The Common Council hereby declares its intention to exercise it police power under
Sec. 66.0703 Wis. Stats. as incorporated in Section 10-215 of the Fitchburg Ordinances,
to levy special assessments upon property in the assessment district hereafter described
for benefits conferred upon such property by replacement of defective curb and gutter,

2. The property to be assessed lies within the following described assessment district:

ASSESSMENT DISTRICT

All properties with defective curb and gutter as identified by the City Engineer fronting
Monticello Way from S. Whitney Way to City Limits, Tanager Trail, Richmond Drive,
Marledge Street from Raritan Road to 200’ south.of Barbara Drive, Osmundsen Road
from Devoro Road to Lacy Road, and Osmundsen Road from Lacy Road to Stanbrook
Road. ‘

3 The City Council hereby determines that the improvements constitute an exercise of the
police power for the health, safety and welfare of the public.

4, The total amount assessed against the properties in the defined assessment district shall
not exceed 100% of the City’s direct and indirect costs of the improvements including,
but not limited to, actual construction costs and related costs of engineering and legal
services, administrative expense and borrowing costs related to the project,

5. The assessment against any parcel may be paid in cash or equal annual installments in
accordance with schedule below, with interest on the unpaid balance at one percent (1%)
over the City’s borrowing rate. Ifthe installment method is selected the remaining
balance is due at time of transfer or sale of ownership of parcel.

Assessment Schedule:

a. If the assessment is less than $500.00, the assessment shall be paid in one (1)
annual installment.

b. If the assessment is at least $500.00 but less than $999.00, the assessment
shall be paid in up to three (3) annual installments,

T e e WD e 2 AN E D e lentla AD 29 £ I,
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¢. Ifthe assessment is at least $1000.00 but less than $4,999.00, the assessment shall
be paid in up to five (5) annual installments,

d. If the assessment is greater than $5000.00, the assessment may be paid in
seven (7) or more annual installments,

6. The City Engineer shall prepare a Preliminary Assessment Report which shall consist of:

Plans and specifications for the improvements.

An estimate of the entire direct and indirect cost of the improvements.

¢. A schedule of the proposed assessments as to each parcel of property within the
defined assessment district.

d. A statement that the respective properties against which the assessments are proposed

are benefitted, ‘

IS

7. When the Preliminary Assessment Report is completed, the City Engineer shall file a
copy of the Report with the City Clerk for public inspection.

8. Upon receiving the report of the City Engineer, the Clerk shall cause notice to be given
pursuant to § 66.0703(7) Wisconsin Statutes, stating the nature of the proposed
improvement, the general boundary lines of the proposed assessment district, the time
and place at which the report may be inspected, and the time and place of the public
hearing on the matter contained in the Preliminary Resolution and the Report. The notice
shall be published as a Class 1 notice under Wis, Stat. Ch. 985 and a copy shall be mailed
at least ten (10) days before the hearing, to every interested person whose post office
address is known or can be ascertained wifh reasonable diligence.,

9. The hearing shall be held before the Board of Public Works April 6, 2015 or at a later
date at a time set by the City Clerk in accordance with § 66.0703(7) Wis. Stats.

Adopted this 24th day of March, 2015.

Approved By: /g/‘/\p‘—/ WW

“Shawn Pfaff, Mayor = ' V

Attested By: %M&A’?‘W\—

Patti Anderson, City Clerk
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Steve Arnold, Mayor Public Works
Introduced By Prepared by
Board of Public Works, Finance October 27, 2015
Referred to Date

RESOLUTION R-110-15
FINAL RESOLUTION EXERCISING POLICE POWERS AND LEVYING SPECIAL
ASSESSMENTS FOR 2015 CURB AND GUTTER REPLACEMENT IN THE CITY OF
FITCHBURG, WISCONSIN

WHEREAS, on March 24, 2015, the Common Council of the City of Fitchburg adopted
resolution No R-33-15 declaring its intent to exercise its police power under Wis. Stat.
866.0703 (7), and section 10.213-10.216 of the Fitchburg General Ordinances to levy
special assessments for special benefits conferred upon properties within the following
Assessment District for the cost of replacing defective curb and gutter on streets in the
2015 Street Resurfacing contract in the City of Fitchburg.

ASSESSMENT DISTRICT

All properties with defective curb and gutter as identified by the City Engineer fronting
Monticello Way from S. Whitney Way to City Limits, Tanager Trail, Richmond Drive,
Marledge Street from Raritan Road to 200’ south of Barbara Drive, Osmundsen Road
from Devoro Road to Lacy Road, and Osmundsen Road from Lacy Road to Stanbrook
Road.

WHEREAS, pursuant to said resolution a report was filed by the City Engineer in the
office of the City Clerk, notice thereof was duly given to the public and to owners of
affected properties, and the Board of Public Works on August 17, 2015, held a public
hearing at the Fitchburg City Hall for purposes of hearing all persons interested
concerning the preliminary resolution and report on the proposed assessments; and

WHEREAS, all work described in Resolution No. R-33-15 has been completed and a
final report of the direct and indirect costs of the improvements and proposed final
assessments has been filed in the office of the City Clerk by the City Engineer; and

WHEREAS, the report of the engineer shows that the final assessments do not exceed
by ten percent (10%) or more the preliminary assessments in the preliminary report
heard by the Board of Public Works on August 17, 2015, as above described;

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, the Common Council of the City of
Fitchburg, Wisconsin, pursuant to the authority vested in it by Wis. Stat. 62.11(5) and
66.0703(7) hereby resolve as follows:

1. The final report of the City Engineer pertaining to the construction of 2015
Curb and Gutter Replacement in the above-described Assessment District is hereby
adopted and approved.
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2. Payment for the improvements described in paragraph 1 shall be made by
assessing the costs to the properties and in the amounts indicated in the report as
shown on Exhibit A attached hereto which is incorporated herein as if fully set forth.

3. The assessments shown on the attached Exhibit A represent an exercise of
the police power and have been determined on a reasonable basis and are hereby
confirmed.

4. The assessments may be paid to the City Clerk in cash within sixty (60) days
from the adopted date of this resolution or in equal annual installments of principal as
follows:

a. If the assessment is less than $500.00, the assessment shall be paid in one
(1) annual installment.

b. If the assessment is at least $500.00 but less than $999.00, the assessment
shall be paid in three (3) installments.

c. If the assessment is at least $1000.00 but less than $4,999.00, the
assessment shall be paid in five (5) annual installments.

d. If the assessment is greater than $5000.00, the assessment shall be paid in
seven (7) annual installments.

Upon sale or transfer of the property any outstanding balances are due. Deferred
principal payments shall bear interest on the unpaid balance at the rate of 2.5% per
annum from January 1, 2016. Installments not paid when due shall bear additional
interest on the amount due at the rate of 18% per annum. Partial payments received on
or before ninety days from the adopted date of this resolution shall be applied to the
principal amount due and installments reduced pro-rata.

5. The unpaid balance of principal of any assessment levied hereby and interest
thereon shall be a lien upon the assessed property from the date of adoption of this
resolution.

6. The City Clerk shall publish this resolution and an installment assessment
notice as Class 1 Notices in the City's official newspaper and mail a copy of this
resolution and a statement of the final assessment against each property, together with
an installment assessment notice, to the owner of every property whose name appears
on the assessment roll and whose post office address is known or can with reasonable
diligence be ascertained.

Adopted this 10" day of November, 2015.

Approved By:

Stephen L. Arnold, Mayor

Attested By:

Patti Anderson, City Clerk
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SECTION 1:
Executive Summary

Description of District

Type of District, Size and Location

Tax Incremental District (“TID”) No. 10 (the “TID” or “District) would consist of approximately 4.75
acres located east of Fish Hatchery Road and west of Pike Drive. It is proposed to be created by the City
of Fitchburg (“City”) as a rehabilitation - conservation district. A map of the proposed District
boundaries is located in Section 3 of this plan.

Estimated Total Project Expenditures.

The City anticipates making total project expenditures of approximately $2,470,000 to undertake the
projects listed in this Project Plan. The City anticipates completing the projects in a single phase. The
Expenditure Period of this District is 22 years from the date of adoption of the authorizing Resolution of
the Common Council (the “Creation Resolution™). The projects to be undertaken pursuant to this Project
Plan are expected to be financed with a Municipal Revenue Obligation (PAYGO Note) issued by the
City, however, the City may use other alternative financing methods which may provide overall lower
costs of financing, preserve debt capacity, mitigate risk to the City, or provide other advantages as
determined by the Common Council. A discussion and listing of other possible financing mechanisms, as
well as a summary of total project financing, is located in Section 10 of this plan.

Economic Development

As a result of the creation of this District, the City projects that additional land and improvements value
of approximately $14,802,000 will be created as a result of new development, redevelopment, and
appreciation in the value of existing properties. This additional value will be a result of the improvements
made and projects undertaken within the District. A table detailing assumptions as to the timing of new
development and redevelopment and associated values is located in Section 10 of this Plan. In addition,
creation of the District is expected to result in other economic benefits as detailed in the Summary of
Findings hereafter.

Expected Termination of District

Based on the Economic Feasibility Study located in Section 10 of this plan, this District would be
expected to generate sufficient tax increments to recover all project costs by the year 2027; 16 years
earlier than the 27 year maximum life of this District.

Summary of Findings

As required by Wisconsin Statutes Section 66.1105, and as documented in this Project Plan and the
exhibits contained and referenced herein, the following findings are made:

1. That “but for” the creation of this District, the development projected to occur as detailed in
this Project Plan: 1) would not occur; or 2) would not occur in the manner, at the values, or
within the timeframe desired by the City. In making this determination, the City has considered
the following information:

Project Plan TID No. 10 Creation City of Fitchburg
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The City expects to conduct an independent review of the intended developer’s sources and uses
proforma for the initial proposed development and/or redevelopment project. Prior to the
issuance of the PAYGO Note, this review will need to conclude that a public investment of
approximately $2,500,000 is required to enable the development to occur in the manner desired
by the City, while providing the developer a fair and reasonable return on their investment.

Given that the sites have not developed as would have been expected under normal market
conditions, it is the judgment of the City that the use of Tax Incremental Financing (“TIF”) may
be required to provide the necessary infrastructure and inducements to encourage development on
the sites consistent with that desired by the City.

In order to make the areas included within the District suitable for development and/or
redevelopment, the City will need to make a substantial investment to pay for the costs of:
property, right-of-way and easement acquisition, site preparation, installation of utilities;
installation of streets and related streetscape items; development incentive payments, and other
associated costs. . Due to the extensive initial investment in public infrastructure that is required
in order to allow development and/or redevelopment to occur, the City has determined that
redevelopment of the area will not occur solely as a result of private investment. Accordingly,
the City finds that absent the use of TIF, redevelopment of the area is unlikely to occur.

The redevelopment proposed for this area is consistent with the City’s master plan for this
neighborhood.

2. The economic benefits of the Tax Incremental District, as measured by increased employment,
business and personal income, and property value, are sufficient to compensate for the cost of
the improvements. In making this determination, the City has considered the following information:

As demonstrated in the Economic Feasibility Section of this Project Plan, the tax increments
projected to be collected are more than sufficient to pay for the proposed project costs. On this
basis alone, the finding is supported.

The development expected to occur is likely to generate approximately __ jobs over the life of the
District, with an average wage of between $ and $ (source: to be supplied by
developer).

The development expected to occur within the District would create additional hotel and
conference space thereby enhancing the City’s ability to serve existing and potential businesses
within the community.

3. The benefits of the proposal outweigh the anticipated tax increments to be paid by the owners
of property in the overlying taxing jurisdictions.

If approved, the District’s creation would become effective for valuation purposes as of January
1, 2015. As of this date, the values of all existing development would be frozen and the property
taxes collected on this base value would continue to be distributed amongst the various taxing
entities as they currently are now. Taxes levied on any additional value established within the
District due to new construction, renovation or appreciation of property values occurring after
January 1, 2015 would be collected by the TID and used to repay the costs of TIF-eligible
projects undertaken within the District.

Project Plan TID No. 10 Creation City of Fitchburg
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e Since the development expected to occur is unlikely to take place or in the same manner without
the use of TIF (see Finding #1) and since the District will generate economic benefits that are
more than sufficient to compensate for the cost of the improvements (see Finding #2), the City
reasonably concludes that the overall benefits of the District outweigh the anticipated tax
increments to be paid by the owners of property in the overlying taxing jurisdictions. It is further
concluded that since the “but for” test is satisfied, there would, in fact, be no foregone tax
increments to be paid in the event the District is not created. As required by Section
66.1105(4)(i)4., a calculation of the share of projected tax increments estimated to be paid by the
owners of property in the overlying taxing jurisdictions has been made and can be found in
Appendix A of this plan.

4. Not less than 50% by area of the real property within the District is in need of rehabilitation -
conservation work within the meaning of Wisconsin Statutes Section 66.1337(2m)(b). Furthermore,
any property standing vacant for the entire seven years preceding adoption of the Creation Resolution
does not comprise more than 25% of the area in the District in compliance with Wisconsin Statutes
Section 66.1105(4)(gm)1.

5. Based upon the findings, as stated above, the District is declared to be a rehabilitation - conservation
District based on the identification and classification of the property included within the District.

6. The project costs relate directly to promoting the rehabilitation of the area consistent with the purpose
for which the District is created.

7. The improvement of such area is likely to enhance significantly the value of substantially all of the
other real property in the District.

8. The equalized value of taxable property of the District, plus the value increment of all existing tax
incremental districts within the City, does not exceed 12% of the total equalized value of taxable
property within the City.

9. The City estimates that less than 35% of the territory within the District will be devoted to retail
business at the end of the District’s maximum expenditure period, pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes
Sections 66.1105(5)(b) and 66.1105(6)(am)1.

10. The Project Plan for the District in the City is feasible, and is in conformity with the master plan of
the City.

SECTION 2:
Type and General Description of District

The District is being created by the City under the authority provided by Wisconsin Statutes Section
66.1105. The District is created as a “Rehabilitation - conservation District” based upon a finding that at
least 50%, by area, of the real property within the District is in need of rehabilitation - conservation work.
In Section 5 of this Plan, the City has identified those properties within the District that meet the criteria
of “rehabilitation - conservation areas” as defined in Wisconsin Statutes Section 66.1337(2m)(a) and
relies on these characterizations as the basis for making the above finding.

Project Plan TID No. 10 Creation City of Fitchburg
Submitted by Ehlers Page 6 October 15, 2015



Property standing vacant for seven years immediately preceding adoption of the Creation Resolution for
this District will not comprise more than 25% of the area in the District in compliance with Wisconsin
Statutes Section 66.1105(4)(gm)1. A calculation demonstrating compliance with this test is found as part
of the Preliminary Parcel List in Section 5 of this plan.

A map depicting the boundaries of the District is found in Section 3 of this Plan. A map depicting the
proposed uses of the District is found in Section 8 of this plan. The City intends that TIF will be used to
assure that private development occurs within the District consistent with the City’s development and
redevelopment objectives. This will be accomplished by installing public improvements, and making
necessary related expenditures, to promote development and redevelopment within the District. The goal
is to increase the tax base and to provide for and preserve employment opportunities within the City. The
project costs included in this Plan relate directly to the rehabilitation - conservation of areas in the District
consistent with the purpose for which the District is created.

Based upon the findings, as stated within this Plan, the District is declared to be a rehabilitation -
conservation District based on the identification and classification of the property included within the
district.

Project Plan TID No. 10 Creation City of Fitchburg
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SECTION 3:
Preliminary Map of Proposed District Boundary
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SECTION 4:
Maps Showing Existing Uses and Conditions
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SECTION 6:
Equalized Value Test

The following calculations demonstrate that the City is in compliance with Wisconsin Statutes
Section.66.1105(4)(gm)4.c., which requires that the equalized value of the taxable property in the
proposed District, plus the value increment of all existing tax incremental districts, does not exceed 12%
of the total equalized value of taxable property within the City.

The equalized value of the increment of existing tax incremental districts within the City, plus the base
value of the proposed District, totals $279,499,121. This value is less than the maximum of $325,368,204
in equalized value that is permitted for the City of Fitchburg. The City is therefore in compliance with the
statutory equalized valuation test and may proceed with creation of this District.

City of Fitchburg, Wisconsin

Tax Increment District #10 (Hotel & Conference Center)

Valuation Test Compliance Calculation

Creation Date 11/24/2015
Valuation Data Dollar Percent Valuation Data
Currently Available Charge Change Est. Creation Date
2015
Total EV (TID In) 2,711,401,700 2,711,401,700
12% Test 325,368,204 325,368,204

Increment of Existing TIDs

TID #4 165,243,700 165,243,700

TID #6 106,831,500 106,831,500

TID #7 6,225,900 6,225,900

TID #8 0 0

TID #9 0 0

0

Total Existing Increment 278,301,100 278,301,100
Projected Base of New or Amended District 1,198,021 1,198,021
Total Value Subject to 12% Test 279,499,121 279,499,121

Complance | eass | | pass |

Project Plan TID No. 10 Creation City of Fitchburg
Submitted by Ehlers Page 12 October 15, 2015



SECTION 7:
Statement of Kind, Number and Location of Proposed
Public Works and Other Projects

The following is a list of public works and other TIF-eligible projects that the City expects to implement
in conjunction with this District. Any costs necessary or convenient to the creation of the District or
directly or indirectly related to the public works and other projects are considered "Project Costs" and
eligible to be paid with tax increment revenues of the District.

Property, Right-of-Way and Easement Acquisition

Property Acquisition for Development and/or Redevelopment

In order to promote and facilitate development and/or redevelopment the City may acquire property
within the District. The cost of property acquired, and any costs associated with the transaction, are
eligible Project Costs. Following acquisition, other Project Costs within the categories detailed in this
Section may be incurred in order to make the property suitable for development and/or redevelopment.
Any revenue received by the City from the sale of property acquired pursuant to the execution of this Plan
will be used to reduce the total project costs of the District. If total Project Costs incurred by the City to
acquire property and make it suitable for development and/or redevelopment exceed the revenues or other
consideration received from the sale or lease of that property, the net amount shall be considered “real
property assembly costs” as defined in Wisconsin Statutes Section 66.1105(2)(f)1.c., and subject to
recovery as an eligible Project Cost.

Acquisition of Rights-of-Way

The City may need to acquire property to allow for installation of streets, driveways, sidewalks, utilities,
stormwater management practices and other public infrastructure. Costs incurred by the City to identify,
negotiate and acquire rights-of-way are eligible Project Costs.

Acquisition of Easements

The City may need to acquire temporary or permanent easements to allow for installation and
maintenance of streets, driveways, sidewalks, utilities, stormwater management practices and other public
infrastructure. Costs incurred by the City to identify, negotiate and acquire easement rights are eligible
Project Costs.

Relocation Costs

Although not currently contemplated, iff relocation expenses are incurred in conjunction with the
acquisition of property, those expenses are eligible Project Costs. These costs may include, but are not
limited to: preparation of a relocation plan; allocations of staff time; legal fees; publication of notices;
obtaining appraisals; and payment of relocation benefits as required by Wisconsin Statutes Sections 32.19
and 32.195.

Site Preparation Activities

Environmental Audits and Remediation

There have been no known environmental studies performed within the proposed District. If, however, it
becomes necessary to evaluate any land or improvement within the District, any cost incurred by the City
related to environmental audits, testing, and remediations are eligible Project Costs.

Project Plan TID No. 10 Creation City of Fitchburg
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Demolition

In order to make sites suitable for development and/or redevelopment, the City may incur costs related to
demolition and removal of structures or other land improvements, to include abandonment of wells or
other existing utility services.

Site Grading

Land within the District may require grading to make it suitable for development and/or redevelopment,
to provide access, and to control stormwater runoff. The City may need to remove and dispose of excess
material, or bring in fill material to provide for proper site elevations. Expenses incurred by the City for
site grading are eligible Project Costs.

Utilities

Sanitary Sewer System Improvements

There are inadequate sanitary sewer facilities serving areas of the District. To allow development and/or
redevelopment to occur, the City may need to construct, alter, rebuild or expand sanitary sewer
infrastructure within the District. Eligible Project Costs include, but are not limited to, construction,
alteration, rebuilding or expansion of: collection mains; manholes and cleanouts; service laterals; force
mains; interceptor sewers; lift stations; and all related appurtenances. To the extent sanitary sewer
projects undertaken within the District provide direct benefit to land outside of the District, the City will
make an allocation of costs based on such benefit. Those costs corresponding to the benefit allocated to
land within the District, and necessitated by the implementation of the Project Plan, are eligible Project
Costs. Implementation of the Project Plan may also require that the City construct, alter, rebuild or
expand sanitary sewer infrastructure located outside of the District. That portion of the costs of sanitary
sewer system projects undertaken outside the District which are necessitated by the implementation of the
Project Plan are eligible Project Costs.

Water System Improvements

There are inadequate water distribution facilities serving areas of the District. To allow development
and/or redevelopment to occur, the City may need to construct, alter, rebuild or expand water system
infrastructure within the District. Eligible Project Costs include, but are not limited to, construction,
alteration, rebuilding or expansion of: distribution mains; manholes and valves; hydrants; service laterals;
pumping stations; and all related appurtenances. To the extent water system projects undertaken within
the District provide direct benefit to land outside of the District, the City will make an allocation of costs
based on such benefit. Those costs corresponding to the benefit allocated to land within the District, and
necessitated by the implementation of the Project Plan, are eligible Project Costs. Implementation of the
Project Plan may also require that the City construct, alter, rebuild or expand water system infrastructure
located outside of the District. That portion of the costs of water system projects undertaken outside the
District which are necessitated by the implementation of the Project Plan are eligible Project Costs.

Stormwater Management System Improvements

Development and/or redevelopment within the District will cause stormwater runoff and pollution. To
manage this stormwater runoff, the City may need to construct, alter, rebuild or expand stormwater
management infrastructure within the District. Eligible Project Costs include, but are not limited to,
construction, alteration, rebuilding or expansion of: stormwater collection mains; inlets, manholes and
valves; service laterals; ditches; culvert pipes; box culverts; and infiltration, filtration and detention Best
Management Practices (BMP’s). To the extent stormwater management system projects undertaken
within the District provide direct benefit to land outside of the District, the City will make an allocation of
costs based on such benefit. Those costs corresponding to the benefit allocated to land within the District,
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and necessitated by the implementation of the Project Plan, are eligible Project Costs. Implementation of
the Project Plan may also require that the City construct, alter, rebuild or expand stormwater management
infrastructure located outside of the District. That portion of the costs of stormwater management system
projects undertaken outside the District which are necessitated by the implementation of the Project Plan
are eligible Project Costs.

Electric Service

In order to create sites suitable for development and/or redevelopment, the City may incur costs to
provide, relocate or upgrade electric services. Relocation may require abandonment and removal of
existing poles or towers, installation of new poles or towers, or burying of overhead electric lines. Costs
incurred by the City to undertake this work are eligible Project Costs.

Gas Service

In order to create sites suitable for development and/or redevelopment, the City may incur costs to
provide, relocate or upgrade gas mains and services. Costs incurred by the City to undertake this work
are eligible Project Costs.

Communications Infrastructure

In order to create sites suitable for development and/or redevelopment, the City may incur costs to
provide, relocate or upgrade infrastructure required for voice and data communications, including, but not
limited to: telephone lines, cable lines and fiber optic cable. Costs incurred by the City to undertake this
work are eligible Project Costs.

Streets and Streetscape

Street Improvements

There are inadequate street improvements serving areas of the District. To allow development and/or
redevelopment to occur, the City may need to construct and/or reconstruct streets, highways, alleys,
access drives and parking areas. Eligible Project Costs include, but are not limited to: excavation;
removal or placement of fill; construction of road base; asphalt or concrete paving or repaving;
installation of curb and gutter; installation of sidewalks and bicycle lanes; installation of culverts, utility
relocation,; street lighting; installation of traffic control signage and traffic signals; pavement marking;
right-of-way restoration; installation of retaining walls; and installation of fences, berms, and landscaping.

Streetscaping and Landscaping

In order to attract development and/or redevelopment consistent with the objectives of this Plan, the City
may install amenities to enhance development sites, rights-of-way and other public spaces. These
amenities include, but are not limited to: landscaping; lighting of streets, sidewalks, parking areas and
public areas; installation of planters, benches, clocks, tree rings, trash receptacles and similar items; and
installation of brick or other decorative walks, terraces and street crossings. These and any other similar
amenities installed by the City are eligible Project Costs.

CDA or RDA Type Activities

Contribution to Community Development or Redevelopment Authority

As provided for in Wisconsin Statues Sections 66.1105(2)(f)1.h and 66.1333(13), the City may provide
funds to its CDA OR RDA to be used for administration, planning operations, and capital costs, including
but not limited to real property acquisition, related to the purposes for which it was established in
furtherance of any redevelopment or urban renewal project. Funds provided to the CDA OR RDA for this
purpose are eligible Project Costs.
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Miscellaneous

Cash Grants (Development Incentives)

The City may enter into agreements with property owners, lessees, or developers of land located within
the District for the purpose of sharing costs to encourage the desired kind of improvements and assure tax
base is generated sufficient to recover project costs. No cash grants will be provided until the City
executes a developer agreement with the recipient of the cash grant. Any payments of cash grants made
by the City are eligible Project Costs.

Professional Service and Organizational Costs

The costs of professional services rendered, and other costs incurred, in relation to the creation,
administration and termination of the District, and the undertaking of the projects contained within this
Plan, are eligible Project Costs. Professional services include, but are not limited to: architectural;
environmental; planning; engineering; legal, audit; financial; and the costs of informing the public with
respect to the creation of the District and the implementation of the Plan.

Administrative Costs

The City may charge to the District as eligible Project Costs reasonable allocations of administrative
costs, including, but not limited to, employee salaries. Costs allocated will bear a direct connection to the
time spent by City employees in connection with the implementation of the Plan.

Financing Costs
Interest expense, debt issuance expenses, redemption premiums, and any other fees and costs incurred in
conjunction with obtaining financing for projects undertaken under this Plan are eligible Project Costs.

With all projects the costs of engineering, design, survey, inspection, materials, construction, restoring
property to its original condition, apparatus necessary for public works, legal and other consultant fees,
testing, environmental studies, permits, updating City ordinances and plans, judgments or claims for
damages and other expenses are included as Project Costs.

In the event any of the public works project expenditures are not reimbursable out of the special TIF fund
under Wisconsin Statutes Section 66.1105, in the written opinion of counsel retained by the City for such
purpose or a court of record so rules in a final order, then such project or projects shall be deleted
herefrom and the remainder of the projects hereunder shall be deemed the entirety of the projects for
purposes of this Project Plan.

The City reserves the right to implement only those projects that remain viable as the Plan period
proceeds.

Project Costs are any expenditure made, estimated to be made, or monetary obligations incurred or
estimated to be incurred, by the City and as outlined in this Plan. Project Costs will be diminished by any
income, special assessments or other revenues, including user fees or charges. To the extent the costs
benefit the municipality outside the District, a proportionate share of the cost is not a Project Cost. Costs
identified in this Plan are preliminary estimates made prior to design considerations and are subject to
change after planning is completed. Prorations of costs in the Plan are also estimates and subject to
change based upon implementation, future assessment policies and user fee adjustments.

Project Plan TID No. 10 Creation City of Fitchburg
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SECTION 8:
Maps Showing Proposed Improvements and Uses
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SECTION 9:
Detailed List of Project Costs

All costs are based on 2015 prices and are preliminary estimates. The City reserves the right to increase
these costs to reflect inflationary increases and other uncontrollable circumstances between 2015 and the
time of construction. The City also reserves the right to increase certain project costs to the extent others
are reduced or not implemented without amending the Plan. The tax increment allocation is preliminary
and is subject to adjustment based upon the implementation of the Plan.

This Plan is not meant to be a budget nor an appropriation of funds for specific projects, but a
framework within which to manage projects. All costs included in the Plan are estimates based on
best information available. The City retains the right to delete projects or change the scope and/or
timing of projects implemented as they are individually authorized by the Common Council,
without amending the Plan.

Project Plan TID No. 10 Creation City of Fitchburg
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City of Fitchburg, Wisconsin

Tax Increment District #10 (Hotel & Conference Center)

Estimated Project List

Phase |
Year Total (Note 1)

Project ID Project Name/Type
1 1911 Pike Dr. Purchase and Acquisition Costs 1,450,000 1,450,000
2 Demolition of 1911 Pike Dr. 125,000 125,000
3 Road Construction (including sidewalk, sewer, etc. 435,000 435,000
4 Professional fees 110,000 110,000
5 Site Preparation 60,000 60,000
6 TID Admin Costs 50,000 50,000
7 Capitalized Interest 240,000 240,000
8 0
9 0
10 0
11 0
12 0
13 0
14 0
15 0
Total Projects 2,470,000 2,470,000

Notes:
Note 1

Project costs submitted by Charles Chvala on behalf of Developer and are estimates subject to modification
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SECTION 10:

Economic Feasibility Study, Financing Methods, and the
Time When Costs or Monetary Obligations Related are to
be Incurred

The information and exhibits contained within this Section demonstrate that the proposed District is
economically feasible insofar as:

e The City has available to it the means to secure the necessary financing required to accomplish
the projects contained within this Plan. A listing of “Available Financing Methods” follows.

e The City expects to complete the projects in one or multiple phases, and can adjust the timing of
implementation as needed to coincide with the pace of private development and/or
redevelopment. A discussion of the phasing and projected timeline for project completion is
discussed under “Plan Implementation” within this Section. A table identifying the financing
method for each phase and the time at which that financing is expected to be incurred is included.

e The development anticipated to occur as a result of the implementation of this Plan will generate
sufficient tax increments to pay for the cost of the projects. Within this Section are tables
identifying: 1) the development and/or redevelopment expected to occur, 2) a projection of tax
increments to be collected resulting from that development and other economic growth within the
District, and 3) a cash flow model demonstrating that the projected tax increment collections and
all other revenues available to the District will be sufficient to pay all Project Costs.

Available Financing Methods

The following is a list of the types of obligations the City may choose to utilize.

General Obligation (G.O.) Bonds or Notes

The City may issue G.O. Bonds or Notes to finance the cost of projects included within this Plan. The
Wisconsin State Constitution limits the principal amount of G.O. debt that the community may have
outstanding at any point in time to an amount not greater than five percent of its total equalized value
(TID IN). As of the date of this plan, the City has a G.O. debt limit of $135,570,085, of which
$89,735,085 is currently unused and could be made available to finance Project Costs.

Bonds Issued to Developers (“Pay as You Go” Financing)

The City may issue a bond or other obligation to one or more developers who provide financing for
projects included in this Plan. Repayment of the amounts due to the developer under the bonds or other
obligations are limited to an agreed percentage of the available annual tax increments collected that result
from the improvements made by the developer. To the extent the tax increments collected are insufficient
to make annual payments, or to repay the entire obligation over the life of the District, the City’s
obligation is limited to not more than the agreed percentage of the actual increments collected. Bonds or
other obligations issued to developers in this fashion are not general obligations of the City and, therefore,
do not count against the City’s statutory borrowing capacity.

Tax Increment Revenue Bonds
The City has the authority to issue revenue bonds secured by the tax increments to be collected. These

Project Plan TID No. 10 Creation City of Fitchburg
Submitted by Ehlers Page 23 October 15, 2015



bonds may be issued directly by the City, or as a form of lease revenue bond by a Community
Development Authority (CDA). Tax Increment Revenue Bonds and Lease Revenue Bonds are not
general obligations of the City and therefore do not count against the City’s statutory borrowing capacity.
To the extent tax increments collected are insufficient to meet the annual debt service requirements of the
revenue bonds, the City may be subject to either a permissive or mandatory requirement to appropriate on
an annual basis a sum equal to the actual or projected shortfall.

Utility Revenue Bonds

The City can issue revenue bonds to be repaid from revenues of the its various systems, including
revenues paid by the City that represent service of the system to the City. There is neither a statutory nor
constitutional limitation on the amount of revenue bonds that can be issued, however, water rates are
controlled by the Wisconsin Public Service Commission and the City must demonstrate to bond
purchasers its ability to repay revenue debt with the assigned rates. To the extent the City utilizes utility
revenues other than tax increments to repay a portion of the bonds, the City must reduce the total eligible
Project Costs in an equal amount.

Special Assessment “B” Bonds

The City has the ability to levy special assessments against benefited properties to pay part of the costs for
street, curb, gutter, sewer, water, storm sewers and other infrastructure. In the event the City determines
that special assessments are appropriate, the City can issue Special Assessment B bonds pledging
revenues from special assessment installments to the extent assessment payments are outstanding. These
bonds are not counted against the City's statutory borrowing capacity. If special assessments are levied,
the City must reduce the total eligible Project Costs under this Plan in an amount equal to the total
collected.

Plan Implementation

Projects identified will provide the necessary anticipated governmental services to the area. A reasonable
and orderly sequence is outlined on the following page. However, public debt and expenditures should be
made at the pace private development or redevelopment occurs to assure increment is sufficient to cover
expenses.

It is anticipated developer agreements between the City and property owners will be in place prior to
major public expenditures. These agreements can provide for development guarantees or a payment in
lieu of development. To further assure contract enforcement, these agreements might include levying of
special assessments against benefited properties.

The order in which public improvements are made should be adjusted in accordance with development
and execution of developer agreements. The City reserves the right to alter the implementation of this
Plan to accomplish this objective.

Interest rates projected are based on current market conditions. Municipal interest rates are subject to
constantly changing market conditions. In addition, other factors such as the loss of tax-exempt status of
municipal bonds or broadening the purpose of future tax-exempt bonds would affect market conditions.
Actual interest expense will be determined once the methods of financing have been approved and
securities or other obligations are issued.

If financing as outlined in this Plan proves unworkable, the City reserves the right to use alternate
financing solutions for the projects as they are implemented.

Project Plan TID No. 10 Creation City of Fitchburg
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Implementation and Financing Timeline

City of Fitchburg, Wisconsin

Tax Increment District #10 (Hotel & Conference Center)

Estimated Financing Plan

Municipal
Revenue

Obligation
(MRO)
Year Totals

Projects
Phase | 2,470,000 2,470,000

Total Project Funds 2,470,000 2,470,000

Estimated Finance Related Expenses
Financial Advisor
Bond Counsel
Rating Agency Fee
Paying Agent

Underwriter Discount m

Debt Service Reserve
Capitalized Interest

Total Financing Required 2,470,000

Estimated Interest 0.25%

Assumed spend down (months) 6

Rounding

0
Net Issue Size 2,470,000 2,470,000

Notes:

Project Plan TID No. 10 Creation City of Fitchburg
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Development Assumptions

City of Fitchburg, Wisconsin

Tax Increment District #10 (Hotel & Conference Center)

Development Assumptions

Hotel, Conf
Construction Year Actual Center & Area B Annual Total Construction Year
Restaurant
1 2016 (1,198,021) 16,000,000 14,801,979 2016 1
2 2017 0 2017 2
3 2018 0 2018 3
4 2019 0 2019 4
5 2020 0 2020 5
6 2021 0 2021 6
7 2022 0 2022 7
8 2023 0 2023 8
9 2024 0 2024 9
10 2025 0 2025 10
11 2026 0 2026 11
12 2027 0 2027 12
13 2028 0 2028 13
14 2029 0 2029 14
15 2030 0 2030 15
16 2031 0 2031 16
17 2032 0 2032 17
18 2033 0 2033 18
19 2034 0 2034 19
20 2035 0 2035 20
21 2036 0 2036 21
22 2037 0 2037 22
23 2038 0 2038 23
24 2039 0 2039 24
25 2040 0 2040 25
26 2041 0 2041 26
Totals (1,198,021) 16,000,000 0 14,801,979
Notes: Value assumptions provided by Charles Chvala on behalf of Developer.
Project Plan TID No. 10 Creation City of Fitchburg
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Increment Revenue Projections

City of Fitchburg, Wisconsin

Tax Increment District #10 (Hotel & Conference Cent

Tax Increment Projection Worksheet

Type of District Rehabilitation Base Value 1,198,021
Creation Date November 24, 2015 Appreciation Factor 1.00% I:IAppIy to Base Value
Valuation Date Janl, | 2016 Base Tax Rate $23.85
Max Life (Years) 27 Rate Adjustment Factor
Expenditure Periods/Termination 22 11/24/2037
Revenue Periods/Final Year 26 2043
Extension Eligibility/Years Yes 3 Tax Exempt Discount Rate
Recipient District Yes Taxable Discount Rate 1.50%
Tax Exempt
Construction Inflation Total NPV Taxable NPV
Year Value Added Valuation Year  Increment Increment  Revenue Year  Tax Rate Tax Increment Calculation  Calculation
1 2016 14,801,979 2017 0 14,801,979 2018 $23.85 353,009 353,009 347,792
2 2017 0 2018 148,020 14,949,999 2019 $23.85 356,539 709,548 693,871
3 2018 0 2019 149,500 15,099,499 2020 $23.85 360,104 1,069,652 1,038,245
4 2019 0 2020 150,995 15,250,494 2021 $23.85 363,705 1,433,358 1,380,922
5 2020 0 2021 152,505 15,402,999 2022 $23.85 367,342 1,800,700 1,721,911
6 2021 0 2022 154,030 15,557,029 2023 $23.85 371,016 2,171,716 2,061,221
7 2022 0 2023 155,570 15,712,599 2024 $23.85 374,726 2,546,442 2,398,859
8 2023 0 2024 157,126 15,869,725 2025 $23.85 378,473 2,924,915 2,734,834
9 2024 0 2025 158,697 16,028,422 2026 $23.85 382,258 3,307,173 3,069,154
10 2025 0 2026 160,284 16,188,707 2027 $23.85 386,081 3,693,254 3,401,827
11 2026 0 2027 161,887 16,350,594 2028 $23.85 389,941 4,083,195 3,732,861
12 2027 0 2028 163,506 16,514,100 2029 $23.85 393,841 4,477,036 4,062,265
13 2028 0 2029 165,141 16,679,241 2030 $23.85 397,779 4,874,815 4,390,046
14 2029 0 2030 166,792 16,846,033 2031 $23.85 401,757 5,276,572 4,716,212
15 2030 0 2031 168,460 17,014,493 2032 $23.85 405,775 5,682,347 5,040,771
16 2031 0 2032 170,145 17,184,638 2033 $23.85 409,832 6,092,179 5,363,732
17 2032 0 2033 171,846 17,356,485 2034 $23.85 413,931 6,506,110 5,685,102
18 2033 0 2034 173,565 17,530,050 2035 $23.85 418,070 6,924,180 6,004,838
19 2034 0 2035 175,300 17,705,350 2036 $23.85 422,251 7,346,430 6,323,099
20 2035 0 2036 177,054 17,882,404 2037 $23.85 426,473 7,772,904 6,639,743
21 2036 0 2037 178,824 18,061,228 2038 $23.85 430,738 8,203,641 6,954,827
22 2037 0 2038 180,612 18,241,840 2039 $23.85 435,045 8,638,687 7,268,359
23 2038 0 2039 182,418 18,424,258 2040 $23.85 439,396 9,078,082 7,580,346
24 2039 0 2040 184,243 18,608,501 2041 $23.85 443,790 9,521,872 7,890,796
25 2040 0 2041 186,085 18,794,586 2042 $23.85 448,228 9,970,100 8,199,717
26 2041 0 2042 187,946 18,982,532 2043 $23.85 452,710 10,422,810 8,507,117
Totals 14,801,979 4,180,553 Future Value of Increment 10,422,810
Notes:
Actual results will vary depending on development, inflation of overall tax rates.
NPV calculations represent estimated amount of funds that could be borrowed (including project cost, capitalized interest and issuance costs).
Project Plan TID No. 10 Creation City of Fitchburg
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Cash Flow

City of Fitchburg, Wisconsin

Tax Increment District #10 (Hotel & Conference Center)

Cash Flow Projection

Expenditures Balances
Municipal Revenue Obligation (MRO)
Year Interest Less 2,470,000
Tax Earnings/  Administrative Total Dated Date: Total Bond Principal
Increments (Cost) Expenses Revenues Principal Est. Rate Interest Expenditures Coverage Annual Cumulative Outstanding Year
0.20% 4.50%
2016 0 0 0 0 2,470,000 2016
2017 0 0 0 0 2,470,000 2017
2018 353,009 (15,000) 338,009 160,000 4.50% 111,150 271,150 1.25 66,859 66,859 2,310,000 | 2018
2019 356,539 134 (15,300) 341,373 170,000 4.50% 103,950 273,950 1.25 67,423 134,282 2,140,000 2019
2020 360,104 269 (15,606) 344,767 180,000 4.50% 96,300 276,300 1.25 68,467 202,748 1,960,000 2020
2021 363,705 405 (15,918) 348,193 190,000 4.50% 88,200 278,200 1.25 69,993 272,741 1,770,000 2021
2022 367,342 545 (16,236) 351,651 200,000 4.50% 79,650 279,650 1.26 72,001 344,743 1,570,000 2022
2023 371,016 689 (16,561) 355,144 215,000 4.50% 70,650 285,650 1.24 69,494 414,237 1,355,000 | 2023
2024 374,726 828 (16,892) 358,662 225,000 4.50% 60,975 285,975 1.25 72,687 486,924 1,130,000 2024
2025 378,473 974 (17,230) 362,217 240,000 4.50% 50,850 290,850 1.25 71,367 558,291 890,000 2025
2026 382,258 1,117 (17,575) 365,800 250,000 4.50% 40,050 290,050 1.26 75,750 634,040 640,000 2026
2027 386,081 1,268 (17,926) 369,422 270,000 4.50% 28,800 298,800 1.24 70,622 704,663 370,000 2027
2028 389,941 389,941 370,000 4.50% 16,650 386,650 1.01 3,291 707,954 0 2028
2029 393,841 393,841 4.50% 0 0] 393,841 1,101,795 2029
2030 397,779 397,779 4.50% 0 0 397,779 1,499,574 2030
2031 401,757 401,757 4.50% 0 0 401,757 1,901,331 2031
2032 405,775 405,775 4.50% 0 0 405,775 2,307,106 2032
2033 409,832 409,832 4.50% 0 0 409,832 2,716,938 2033
2034 413,931 413,931 4.50% 0] 0] 413,931 3,130,869 2034
2035 418,070 418,070 4.50% 0 0 418,070 3,548,939 2035
2036 422,251 422,251 4.50% 0 0 422,251 3,971,189 2036
2037 426,473 426,473 4.50% 0 [0] 426,473 4,397,662 2037
2038 430,738 430,738 0 4.50% 0 0 430,738 4,828,400 2038
2039 435,045 435,045 0 435,045 5,263,446 2039
2040 439,396 439,396 0 439,396 5,702,841 2040
2041 443,790 443,790 0] 443,790 6,146,631 2041
2042 448,228 448,228 0 448,228 6,594,859 2042
2043 452,710 452,710 0 452,710 7,047,569 2043
Total 10,422,810 6,230 (164,246) 10,264,794 2,470,000 747,225 3,217,225 Total
Notes: Increment Projections and costs are based upon estimates from Developer's representatives. Proiected TID Closure
Payment on the MRO is strictily contingent upon Incremental revenues being available.
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SECTION 11:
Annexed Property

There are no lands proposed for inclusion within the District that were annexed by the City on or after
January 1, 2004.

SECTION 12:
Estimate of Property to be Devoted to Retail Business

Pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes Sections 66.1105(5)(b) and 66.1105(6)(am)1, the City estimates that less
than 35% of the territory within the District will be devoted to retail business at the end of the District’s
maximum expenditure period.

SECTION 13:
Proposed Zoning Ordinance Changes

The City does not anticipate that the District will require any changes in zoning ordinances.

SECTION 14:
Proposed Changes in Master Plan, Map, Building Codes
and City of Fitchburg Ordinances

It is expected that this Plan will be complementary to the City's Master Plan. There are no proposed
changes to the Master Plan, map, building codes or other City ordinances for the implementation of this
Plan.

Project Plan TID No. 10 Creation City of Fitchburg
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SECTION 15:
Relocation

It is not currently anticipated there will be a need to relocate persons or businesses in conjunction with
this Plan. In the event relocation or the acquisition of property by eminent domain becomes necessary at
some time during the implementation period, the City will follow applicable Wisconsin Statutes Section
chapter 32.

SECTION 16:
Orderly Development or Redevelopment of the City of
Fitchburg

The District contributes to the orderly development and redevelopment of the City by providing the
opportunity for continued growth in tax base, job opportunities and general economic activity. The
addition of hotel rooms, a conference center and restaurant will serve existing and future businesses and
enhance the attractiveness of Fitchburg as a destination for business travelers and economic development.

SECTION 17:
List of Estimated Non-Project Costs

Non-Project costs are public works projects that only partly benefit the District or are not eligible to be
paid with tax increments, or costs not eligible to be paid with TIF funds.

Examples would include:
A public improvement made within the District that also benefits property outside the District. That
portion of the total project costs allocable to properties outside of the District would be a non-project cost.

A public improvement made outside the District that only partially benefits property within the District.
That portion of the total project costs allocable to properties outside of the District would be a non-project
cost.

Projects undertaken within the District as part of the implementation of this Project Plan, the costs of
which are paid fully or in part by impact fees, grants, special assessments, or revenues other than tax
increments.

The City does not expect to incur any non-project costs in the implementation of this Project Plan.
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SECTION 18:
Opinion of Attorney for the City of Fitchburg Advising
Whether the Plan is Complete and Complies with
Wisconsin Statutes 66.1105

October 15, 2015

SAMPLE

Mayor Steve Arnold

City of Fitchburg

5520 Lacy Road

Fitchburg, Wisconsin 53711

RE: City of Fitchburg, Wisconsin Tax Incremental District No. 10

Dear Mayor:

As City Attorney for the City of Fitchburg, | have reviewed the Project Plan and, in my opinion, have
determined that it is complete and complies with Wisconsin Statutes Section 66.1105(4)(f).

Sincerely,

Attorney Mark Sewell
City of Fitchburg

Project Plan TID No. 10 Creation City of Fitchburg
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Exhibit A:
Calculation of the Share of Projected Tax Increments

Estimated to be Paid by the Owners of Property in the
Overlying Taxing Jurisdictions

Estimated portion of taxes that owners of taxable property in each taxing jurisdiction

overlaying district would pay by jurisdiction.

Statement of Taxes Data Year: 2014
Percentage
Dane County 7,690,783 16.24%
City of Fitchburg 23,114,627 48.80%
Madison Metropolitan School District 14,255,560 30.10%
Madison Area Technical College 2,303,813 4.86%
Total 47,364,783 100.00%
Madison Madison Area
City of Metropolitan Technical
Revenue Year Dane County Fitchburg  School District College Total Revenue Year
2018 57,319 172,273 106,246 17,170 353,009 2018
2019 57,892 173,996 107,309 17,342 356,539 2019
2020 58,471 175,736 108,382 17,515 360,104 2020
2021 59,056 177,493 109,466 17,691 363,705 2021
2022 59,647 179,268 110,560 17,867 367,342 2022
2023 60,243 181,061 111,666 18,046 371,016 2023
2024 60,846 182,871 112,783 18,227 374,726 2024
2025 61,454 184,700 113,911 18,409 378,473 2025
2026 62,069 186,547 115,050 18,593 382,258 2026
2027 62,689 188,412 116,200 18,779 386,081 2027
2028 63,316 190,296 117,362 18,967 389,941 2028
2029 63,949 192,199 118,536 19,156 393,841 2029
2030 64,589 194,121 119,721 19,348 397,779 2030
2031 65,235 196,063 120,918 19,541 401,757 2031
2032 65,887 198,023 122,128 19,737 405,775 2032
2033 66,546 200,003 123,349 19,934 409,832 2033
2034 67,211 202,004 124,582 20,133 413,931 2034
2035 67,883 204,024 125,828 20,335 418,070 2035
2036 68,562 206,064 127,086 20,538 422,251 2036
2037 69,248 208,124 128,357 20,744 426,473 2037
2038 69,940 210,206 129,641 20,951 430,738 2038
2039 70,640 212,308 130,937 21,161 435,045 2039
2040 71,346 214,431 132,247 21,372 439,396 2040
2041 72,060 216,575 133,569 21,586 443,790 2041
2042 72,780 218,741 134,905 21,802 448,228 2042
2043 73,508 220,928 136,254 22,020 452,710 2043
1,692,388 5,086,466 3,136,993 506,963 10,422,810
Notes:
The projection shown above is provided to meet the requirments of Wisconsin Statute 66.1105(4)(i)4.
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PLAN COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. PCR-05-15

RESOLUTION DESIGNATING PROPOSED BOUNDARIES
AND APPROVING A PROJECT PLAN
FOR TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 10,
CITY OF FITCHBURG, WISCONSIN

WHEREAS, the City of Fitchburg (the “City”) has determined that use of Tax Incremental
Financing is required to promote development and redevelopment within the City; and

WHEREAS, Tax Incremental District No. 10 (the “District”) is proposed to be created by
the City as a rehabilitation - conservation district in accordance with the provisions of Wisconsin
Statutes Section 66.1105 (the "Tax Increment Law"); and

WHEREAS, a Project Plan for the District has been prepared that includes:

a.

o

Ty @ o

A statement listing of the kind, number and location of all proposed public works or
improvements within the District, or to the extent provided in Wisconsin Statutes
Sections 66.1105(2)(f)1.k. and 66.1105(2)(f)1.n., outside of the District;

An economic feasibility study;

A detailed list of estimated project costs;

A description of the methods of financing all estimated project costs and the time
when the related costs or monetary obligations are to be incurred;

A map showing existing uses and conditions of real property in the District;

A map showing proposed improvements and uses in the District;

Proposed changes of zoning ordinances, master plan, map, building codes and City
ordinances;

A list of estimated non-project costs;

A statement of the proposed plan for relocation of any persons to be displaced;

A statement indicating how the District promotes the orderly development of the City;
An opinion of the City Attorney or of an attorney retained by the City advising that the
plan is complete and complies with Wisconsin Statutes Section 66.1105(4)(f).

WHEREAS, prior to its publication, a copy of the notice of public hearing was sent to
owners of all property in the proposed District, to the chief executive officers of Dane County,
the Madison Metropolitan School District, and the Madison Area Technical College District, and
any other entities having the power to levy taxes on property located within the District, in
accordance with the procedures specified in the Tax Increment Law; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with the procedures specified in the Tax Increment Law, the
Plan Commission, on October 20, 2015 held a public hearing concerning the project plan and
boundaries and proposed creation of the District, providing interested parties a reasonable
opportunity to express their views thereon.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Plan Commission of the City of Fitchburg

that:

it recommends to the Commaon Council that Tax Incremental District No. 10 be
created with boundaries as designated in Exhibit A of this Resolution.

[t approves and adopts the Project Plan for the District, attached as Exhibit B, and
recommends its approval to the Common Council.

City of Fitchburg, Wisconsin TID No. 10 Plan Commission Resolution 1



3. Creation of the District promotes orderly development in the City.
. noin
Adopted this _2D day of _{¢inlwewr 2015,

PTan Commis{i&n Chair

o B fadite

Secretary of the Plan Commission

City of Fitchburg, Wisconsin TID No. 10 Plan Commission Resolution



EXHIBIT A -

LEGAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION OR MAP OF
TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 10
CITY OF FITCHBURG

THIS CAN BE FOUND IN THE PROJECT PLAN

City of Fitchburg, Wisconsin TID No. 10 Ptan Commission Resolution 3



EXHIBIT B -

PROJECT PLAN

THIS WILL BE HANDED OUT SEPARATELY
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Plan Commission Planning/Zoning

Initiated By Drafted By
Plan Commission -direct referral, Finance October 13, 2015
Committee Date

RESOLUTION R-117-15

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PROJECT PLAN AND ESTABLISHING THE BOUNDARIES
FOR AND THE CREATION OF
TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 10,
CITY OF FITCHBURG, WISCONSIN

WHEREAS, the City of Fitchburg (the “City”) has determined that use of Tax Incremental
Financing is required to promote development and redevelopment within the City; and

WHEREAS, Tax Incremental District No. 10 (the “District”) is proposed to be created by the
City as a rehabilitation - conservation district in accordance with the provisions of Wisconsin Statutes
Section 66.1105 (the "Tax Increment Law"); and

WHEREAS, a Project Plan for the District has been prepared that includes:

a. A statement listing of the kind, number and location of all proposed public works or
improvements within the District, or to the extent provided in Wisconsin Statutes Sections
66.1105(2)(f)1.k. and 66.1105(2)(f)1.n., outside of the District;

b. An economic feasibility study;

A detailed list of estimated project costs;

A description of the methods of financing all estimated project costs and the time when

the related costs or monetary obligations are to be incurred;

A map showing existing uses and conditions of real property in the District;

A map showing proposed improvements and uses in the District;

Proposed changes of zoning ordinances, master plan, map, building codes and City

ordinances;

A list of estimated non-project costs;

A statement of the proposed plan for relocation of any persons to be displaced;

A statement indicating how the District promotes the orderly development of the City;

An opinion of the City Attorney or of an attorney retained by the City advising that the

plan is complete and complies with Wisconsin Statutes Section 66.1105(4)(f).

oo

~T TS @™o

WHEREAS, prior to its publication, a copy of the notice of public hearing was sent to owners
of all property in the proposed district, to the chief executive officers of Dane County, the Madison
Metropolitan School District, and the Madison Area Technical College District, and any other entities
having the power to levy taxes on property located within the District, in accordance with the
procedures specified in the Tax Increment Law; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with the procedures specified in the Tax Increment Law, the Plan
Commission, on October 20, 2015 held a public hearing concerning the project plan and boundaries
and proposed creation of the District, providing interested parties a reasonable opportunity to
express their views thereon; and

WHEREAS, after said public hearing, the Plan Commission designated the boundaries of the
District, adopted the Project Plan, and recommended to the Common Council that it create such
District and approve the Project Plan and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Fitchburg
that:



1. The boundaries of the District that shall be named "Tax Incremental District No. 10,
City of Fitchburg", are hereby established as specified in Exhibit A of this Resolution.

2. The District is created effective as of January 1, 2016.
3. The Common Council finds and declares that::

(&) Not less than 50% by area of the real property within the District is in need of
rehabilitation - conservation work within the meaning of Wisconsin Statutes
Section 66.1337(2m)(b). Furthermore any property standing vacant for the entire
seven years preceding the adoption of this Resolution does not comprise more
than 25% of the area in the District in compliance with Wisconsin Statutes
Section 66.1105(4)(gm)1.

(b) Based upon the findings, as stated in 3.a. above, the District is declared to be a
rehabilitation - conservation district based on the identification and classification
of the property included within the District.

(c) The improvement of such area is likely to enhance significantly the value of
substantially all of the other real property in the District.

(d) The equalized value of the taxable property in the District plus the value
increment of all other existing tax incremental districts within the City, does not
exceed 12% of the total equalized value of taxable property within the City.

(e) The City estimates that less than 35% of the territory within the District will be
devoted to retail business at the end of the District's maximum expenditure
period, pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes Section 66.1105(5)(b).

( The project costs relate directly to promoting the rehabilitation of the area
consistent with the purpose for which the District is created.

4, The Project Plan for "Tax Incremental District No. 10, City of Fitchburg" (attached as
Exhibit B) is approved, and the City further finds the Plan is feasible and in
conformity with the master plan of the City.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to
apply to the Wisconsin Department of Revenue, in such form as may be prescribed, for a
"Determination of Tax Incremental Base", as of January 1, 2016, pursuant to the provisions of
Wisconsin Statutes Section 66.1105(5)(b).

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 66.1105(5)(f) of the Wisconsin
Statutes that the City Assessor is hereby authorized and directed to identify upon the assessment
roll returned and examined under Wisconsin Statutes Section 70.45, those parcels of property which
are within the District, specifying thereon the name of the said District, and the City Clerk is hereby
authorized and directed to make similar notations on the tax roll made under Section 70.65 of the
Wisconsin Statutes.

Adopted this day of , 2015.

Stephen L. Arnold, Mayor

Patti Anderson, City Clerk
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LEGAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION OR MAP OF
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City of Fitchburg

Committee or Commission Referral

Direct Referral Initiated by:
Direct Referral Approved by:

Date Referred: October 27, 2015 Ordinance Number:
Date to Report Back: Nov 10, 2015 Resolution Number: R-118-15

Sponsored by: Mayor Arnold Drafted by: Planning/Zoning

TITLE: Recognizing the 2015 Build Application of the Anton
Drive Infill Redevelopment Public Visioning and
Committing to a Twenty Five Percent Local Match

Background: The City Planning Department has submitted a 2015 BUILD application to
Dane County for grant funding of the Anton Drive Infill Redevelopment Public Visioning
process. Municipalities are required to provide a 25% local match for approved
planning projects. The Redevelopment Public Visioning process is estimated to cost
$20,000. Staff requested $15,000 from BUILD, which is the maximum amount available
per project; the 25% project cost match is $5,000. Staff recently received noticed from
Dane County that the BUILD request of $15,000 was approved; no formal notice has
been received but staff will pass along as soon as it is received.

The 2016-2020 Capital Improvement Plan for the Anton Drive Planning Study
recognized a potential grant opportunity and has provided funds for the required match.

Order Referred To Staff Contact Place on Agenda | Action Taken
For On Referral
1 Finance Dodge November 10, 2015

Amendments:



B [f Office of the Mayor
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5520 Lacy Road
i Fitchburg, WI 53711-5318
. Phone: (608) 270-4200

Fax: (608) 270-4212

't THEhc'TYbOF www.fitchburgwi.gov

September 4, 2015

To: Ms. Pamela Andros, AICP, BUILD Coordinator
Dane County Planning and Development
City-County Building, Room 116
210 Martin Luther King Jr., Blvd,

Madison, WI 53703

Re: 2015 BUILD Application — City of Fitchburg — Anton Drive Infill Redevelopment Public Visioning

Dear Ms. Pamela Andros & BUILD Committee,

The City of Fitchburg is delighted for the opportunity to apply for BUILD funding, to be used for the Anton Drive Infill
Redevelopment Public Visioning process. This process will engage stakeholders in a public dialogue and gather
input on a range of redevelopment options for the planning area. The study area generally includes lands west of US
Highway 151 (Verona Road) and north of County Highway PD (McKee Road), excluding the single-family residential
neighborhoods.

The Wisconsin Department of Transportation is embarking on a major reconstruction project of Verona Road, which
will span the urban boundaries of the City of Fitchburg from the northern city boundary to south of McKee Road.
This project will drastically change how the corridor functions, specifically in regards to business visibility and access;
in the same regard it also presents an opportunity for the area to redefine itself and establish a vision for future
redevelopment.

The planning study for this area would promote redevelopment that captures and utilizes the existing infrastructure,
transit opportunities and other community resources in the area. It is critical for this area to have a vision and master
plan in place to guide and capture immediate and long-term redevelopment opportunities.

The City of Fitchburg is committed to bringing stakeholders together to participate in the planning process to
reposition this area. Attached please find the submitted application materials for this project; the estimated cost of
the Visioning process is $20,000 for which the City is requesting $15,000 of BUILD funding. We look forward to the
opportunity to utilize BUILD funds to enhance opportunities for public engagement and explore placemaking
strategies and strategies to promote investment in existing housing stock in the neighborhood.

enclosures
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2015 BUILD: Anton Drive Infill Redevelopment Public Visioning

Description of Anton Drive Planning Area:

Project Boundaries

Located west of US Highway 151 (Verona Road) and north of

County Highway PD (McKee Road), the Anton Drive Planning area is
approximately 91 acres; the Wingra Stone Alternate Planning Area would
be an additional 61 acres. Figure A shows the boundaries of the planning
area.

Current Conditions of Buildings & Infrastructure

This area serves as a major highway commercial district for the City,
given the close proximity to and visibility from Verona Road. The existing
buildings in the area are comprised primarily of single-story older 1980s
commercial/retail buildings along with some vacant commercial parcels.
The area has an industrial feel with many sites containing metal buildings.
There is also a multi-family residential project on the west side of Anton
Drive. The Wingra Stone Quarry, which will be ripe for redevelopment,
lies on the western edge of the boundary, and is identified as an alternate
planning area as it may or may not be included in the plan depending on
funding sources.

The main transportation infrastructure for the project area is Verona Road
and McKee Road; however, while several sites front along and have
strong visibility from Verona Road, many only have access off the local
street network. Local roads in the planning area include Anton Drive, King
James Way, Kapec Road and Williamsburg Way.

Need for Revitalization & Infill Development

The Wisconsin Department of Transportation (WisDOT) is embarking
on a maijor reconstruction project of Verona Road, which will span the
urban boundaries of the City of Fitchburg from the northern city boundary
to south of McKee Road. The project, which is scheduled to begin in fall
2016 and continue through 2019, will drastically change the corridor,
both in terms of infrastructure, access and travel patterns. The new
infrastructure will include a single point interchange at Verona Road and
McKee Road, an interchange at Verona Road and Williamsburg Way
and associated improvements including significant retaining walls. This
may enhance regional connectivity but will likely disconnect many of
the established businesses from the rest of the corridor and will impact
business visibility from Verona Road.

The Wingra Stone Quarry is in the final phases of quarrying much of

the property. The WisDOT has planned a new ‘backage’ road from the
Fitchrona Road signalized intersection through part of the quarry property
to help circulate traffic on the north and south sides of McKee Road, both
during and after construction; this new road also provides an opportunity
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2015 BUILD: Anton Drive Infill Redevelopment Public Visioning

for redevelopment of the quarry property on the west side of the road
extension. The Fitchburg Comprehensive Plan identified the future land
use for the quarry as various levels of residential along with some park &
conservancy. The changes in the corridor since adoption of the plan, along
with the proposed reconstruction, may make the quarry more suitable for
other land uses.

The corridor is currently experiencing land use changes due to the
proposed reconstruction and the uncertainty of how such improvements
will impact property. For example, one commercial site along Verona
Road was recently rezoned to allow what was a retail building to become
a warehouse/light industrial facility. The building owner indicated that
several attempts were made to find a commercial user to locate in the
building; however, the uncertainty of the future infrastructure was a barrier
for retailers, despite the current visibility and proximity to Verona Road. At
the same time, a site at the intersection of McKee Road and Verona Road
is being considered for a two- or three- story Class A office/retail building
with underground parking to replace the existing one-story highway
business building. The City desires to create a coordinated well-thought-
out redevelopment plan, built on strong public participation and visioning,
to help guide future land use and development in the area.

While the Verona Road reconstruction project will have significant impacts
to properties located along and near the corridor with reduced visibility
and impacts to accessibility, it also allows an opportunity to examine and
potentially reshape the future vision of the area. The infill redevelopment
public visioning component of the redevelopment plan will help enhance
the overall planning study by providing an opportunity for more in-depth
conversations with neighborhood residents, property owners, businesses
and other stakeholders about potential redevelopment scenarios.

Description of the Population:

While the Plan will benefit the entire City, the area most directly impacted
by the planning study includes properties in the planning area and those
directly adjacent to the study area, including the Jamestown Neighborhood
and lands to the east of Verona Road. The benefits will also extend
beyond the City of Fitchburg into the City of Madison. The map on page 3
shows the “impact area”, which is the area that the City has identified as
most directly impacted from the proposed planning project.

Per the 2010 Census, the impact area contains 4,174 persons, which

is approximately 16.5% of the overall 2010 City population. The area
contains 1,876 housing units, approximately 17.6% of the City’s housing
units in 2010, and at the time of the 2010 Census there was a reported
7.8% vacancy rate.
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2015 BUILD: Anton Drive Infill Redevelopment Public Visioning

Population & Race Impact Area City of Fitchburg Dane County
Total Population 4,174 100% | 25,260 100% | 488,073 100%
White alone 2,554 | 61.20% | 18,230 72.17% | 413,631 | 84.75%
Black or African American alone 624 | 14.90% 2,633 10.42% | 25,347 5.19%
American Indian & Alaska Native alone 18 | 0.40% 103 0.41% 1,730 0.35%
Asian alone 224 | 5.40% 1,233 4.88% 23,035 4.72%
Native Hawaiian & Other Pacific Islander alone 0| 0.00% 10 0.04% 166 0.03%
Some other race alone 570 | 13.70% 2,234 8.84% 12,064 2.47%
Two or more races 184 | 4.40% 817 3.23% 12,100 2.48%
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2010 Census
Age Impact Area City of Fitchburg Dane County
Under 5 years 456 10.9% 2,029 8.0% 30,240 6.2%
5to9 328 7.9% 1,702 6.7% 29,874 6.1%
10to 14 251 6.0% 1,499 5.9% 28,873 5.9%
15to0 19 245 5.9% 1,462 5.8% 32,869 6.7%
20to 24 452 10.8% 1,894 7.5% 47,252 9.7%
25t0 29 549 13.2% 2,700 10.7% 42,441 8.7%
30to 34 430 10.3% 2,237 8.9% 36,412 7.5%
35to0 39 320 7.7% 1,798 7.1% 32,196 6.6%
40to 44 198 4.7% 1,621 6.4% 32,588 6.7%
45 to 49 245 5.9% 1,807 7.2% 34,927 7.2%
50 to 54 195 4.7% 1,660 6.6% 33,882 6.9%
55to 59 198 4.7% 1,647 6.5% 31,594 6.5%
60 to 64 152 3.6% 1,274 5.0% 24,781 5.1%
65 to 69 58 1.4% 746 3.0% 15,900 3.3%
70to 74 42 1.0% 427 1.7% 10,659 2.2%
75to 79 28 0.7% 310 1.2% 8,585 1.8%
80to 84 20 0.5% 249 1.0% 7,226 1.5%
85+ 7 0.2% 198 0.8% 7,774 1.6%
Totals 4,174 100.0% 25,260 100.0% 488,073 100.0%
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2010 Census
Housing Impact Area City of Fitchburg Dane County
Uﬁi‘zmg 1,876 | 100% 10,668 | 100% | 216,022 | 100%
Occupied | 1,730 | 92.2% 9,955 93.3% 203,750 | 94.3%
Vacant 146 7.8% 713 6.7% 12,272 | 5.7%
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2010 Census
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2015 BUILD: Anton Drive Infill Redevelopment Public Visioning

16.0%
14.0% -
12.0% -
10.0% -
8.0% -
6.0% -
4.0% A
2.0% -
0.0% -

B Impact Area

| City of Fitchburg

—

Dane County

Less than $10,000

$10,000 to $14,999
$15,000 to $19,999
$20,000 to $24,999
$25,000 to $29,999
$30,000 to $34,999
$35,000 to $39,999
$40,000 to $44,999
$45,000 to $49,999
$50,000 to $59,999
$60,000 to $74,999
$75,000 to $99,999 ]
$100,000 to $124,999 ]

$125,000 to $149,999
$150,000 to $199,999
$200,000 or more

(Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2009-2013 5-Year American Community Survey)

Note: The lowest level of income data is the Census block group level,
which includes some lands outside of the impact area and lands outside of
the City of Fitchburg.

In 2015 Colliers International completed a marketing analysis for a
commercial site located in Orchard Pointe, which is directly south of the
planning area. Included in this analysis is demographics for a 1 mile, 3
mile and 5 mile trade ring.

1 Mile 3 Miles | 5 Miles
Population 7,331 67,319 | 146,180
Median Household Income | $72,914 | $71,073 | $69,243
Number of Households 2,948 27,462 | 62,754
Daytime Population 5,339 65,959 182,937
Source: Colliers International, 2015

The planning area, within close proximity to Verona Road and within
2 miles of US Highway 12/18, has potential to capture a wide area of
residents, customers and employees.

Verona Road and McKee Road are both highly traveled thoroughfares,
presenting both an opportunity and a challenge. Traffic count data obtained
from the Wisconsin Department of Transportation shows that McKee Road,
west of Verona Road, had an Annual Average Daily Traffic (AADT) of
16,400 as of November 12, 2012. Verona Road, at a location just north of
McKee Road, had an AADT of 41,100. The Anton Drive Planning Study will
consider these volumes and work to produce a redevelopment plan that
will enhance the transportation system.
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2015 BUILD: Anton Drive Infill Redevelopment Public Visioning

Map of the proposed Planning Area:

Please see Exhibit A.

Advancement of Build Objectives:

The Anton Drive Planning Study, which may be adopted into the Fitchburg
Comprehensive Plan, will help guide the City, developers and other
stakeholders on future development and redevelopment. The Study will
comprehensively examine the transportation, utilities (sanitary sewer,
water, private utilities and stormwater), land use, as well as an economic
and market analysis for the planning area, taking into account the
proposed Verona Road reconstruction project. The Study will also detail
implementation action items and a timeframe for completion.

The Anton Drive Infill Redevelopment Public Visioning Process will
complement this planning effort by involving neighborhood residents and
other stakeholders in a deeper and more thorough public process. The
Anton Drive Planning Study, scheduled to begin late 2015, is focused on
a series of specific, data-based inquiries about the study area, including
stormwater management needs, traffic constraints on redevelopment, and
market analysis.

With support from the BUILD program, the City will be able to engage
stakeholders in a public dialogue about this area, and consider a range
of development alternatives that might be viable within the identified
infrastructure and market constraints and opportunities. The Public
Visioning Process will also add the following tasks to the overall planning
effort for this area:

« Explore and recommend placemaking strategies that define and
draw attention to the neighborhood.

» |dentify strategies to promote investment and renovation in
existing (dated or 1980’s) housing stock in the neighborhood and
connect residents to employment opportunities in the adjacent
commercial areas.

» Explore SmartCode zoning options for the study area to emphasize
form-based development regulation and encourage Traditional
Neighborhood Development patterns.

Through this process, including the Public Visioning tasks made possible
through BUILD, the City seeks a plan that would:

« Maximize existing and proposed infrastructure and public
transportation;

« Stabilize and enhance the Anton Drive Neighborhood;

« Enhance alternatives to auto trips by improving walking, biking and
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2015 BUILD: Anton Drive Infill Redevelopment Public Visioning

transit facilities and service in and to the planning area;

* Promote reinvestment in all parcels; and

» Avoid development on productive farmland by reinvesting and
redeveloping land within the City’s urban service area.

Adjoining Community Agreement

Attached is a letter from City of Madison District 10 Alder, Maurice
Cheeks, who represents the adjacent Allied Drive Neighborhood in the
Verona Road corridor. As a representative for the area directly to the
north of the planning area, Alder Cheeks is supportive of Fitchburg’s
BUILD application and anticipated planning for the Anton Drive Planning
Area.

The proposed BUILD application has also been shared with the Verona
Road Business Coalition (VRBC), a non-profit 501¢3 organization of
Verona Road businesses and citizens concerned about the Verona Road
construction project. The coalition represents businesses in Fitchburg,
Madison and Verona along the Verona Road corridor. Attached please
find a letter of support from Cindy Jaggi, Project Manager for the VRBC.

Jeff Rohlinger, President of the Jamestown Neighborhood Association,
has also provided a letter of support for the project. While outside of the
planning area, the Jamestown Neighborhood, as adjacent stakeholders,
will be actively involved in the planning process.

Please see Exhibit B for letters of support.

Planning Project Work Plan & Timeline

The City, working with MSA Professional Services, Inc., who is a

BUILD prequalified planning consultant, intends to begin the Anton
Drive Planning Study in late fall 2015. The project will begin with
analysis of existing conditions and data. If funded, the Anton Drive Infill
Redevelopment Public Visioning Process would begin in early 2016 and
would utilize data collected in 2015.

Desired Outcomes

The main goal of the Anton Drive Infill Redevelopment Public Visioning
Process is to identify, through public engagement, a vision and specific
strategies for redevelopment of the area that incorporates a broad
spectrum of public input. This process, combined with engineering and
market analysis studies, would lead to the following outcomes:
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2015 BUILD: Anton Drive Infill Redevelopment Public Visioning

1. Afacilitated public participation process that engages the private
sector landowners, residents and businesses located within the
neighborhood, other stakeholders like Verona Road Business Coalition
(VRBC), the neighborhood associations, and the cities of Madison and
Fitchburg to develop a long term vision for redevelopment, taking the
changes anticipated with the Verona Road project into consideration.

2. Land use designations, with more detailed descriptions of the desired
uses, intensity and site design.

3. Identification of priority redevelopment sites and when the City should
actively engage redevelopment.

4. Description of anticipated build-out development density and intensity,
expressed in map format with Floor Area Ration (FAR) and Impervious
Surface Ration (ISR) calculations.

5. Parking locations and estimated number of stalls for motor vehicles
and bikes.

6. Land use change over time predictions based on market analysis and
case studies of comparable settings.

7. Predicated development scenarios for 2020 and 2025 with indication of
any major renovations anticipated within each time period.

8. Reuse and redevelopment options for the existing fire station on King
James Way.

9. Description of the socio-economic, cultural factors, and interaction
with the Jamestown Neighborhood and the potential to link employee
availability with employment opportunities in the planning area.

10. Strategies to enhance or refresh the housing stock in and immediately
surrounding the study area.

11. Placemaking strategies to enhance and draw attention to the planning
area.

12.Proposed Sector Plan and Community Unit Type designations for the
planning area.

13.SmartCode exhibits for the final recommended scenario.

14. A perspective illustration of the location and viewpoint likely to see the
most dramatic and “placemaking” change through redevelopment.

Previous Planning

City of Fitchburg Comprehensive Plan

The City’s 2009 Comprehensive Plan outlines several policies for
encouraging and guiding redevelopment, including that the City should
engage in redevelopment studies within areas showing blight, economic
despair, and commercial areas with low floor area ratios.

Adjacent Area Plans

The Arrowhead Redevelopment Plan was accomplished in 2012 for lands
on the east side of Verona Road. This plan works to:

Page 8



2015 BUILD: Anton Drive Infill Redevelopment Public Visioning

1. Support the success and growth of existing businesses and major
employers in this area;

2. Improve the quality and flexibility of transportation infrastructure and

systems in this area;

Facilitate infill development of underutilized land; and

Improve and maintain the quality of utility service in this area,

especially including water supply and stormwater management

systems.

W

The Anton Drive Plan would complement this previous plan to ensure
compatibility, specifically with regards to transportation and stormwater,
between the east and west sides of the corridor.

Primary Contact

The project will be advanced by an interdepartmental team for the City;
however, the primary contact is:

Susan Badtke

Community Planner

5520 Lacy Road

Fitchburg, WI 53711

(608) 270-4256
susan.badtke@fitchburgwi.gov

Master Plan Steering Committee

Membership & Duties

A steering committee has not yet been formally established for this
project; however, the Mayor will invite a representative of the following
stakeholder groups:

+ City of Fitchburg District 1 Alder

+ City of Fitchburg Plan Commission

« City of Madison

+ Jamestown Neighborhood Association

* Multifamily housing landlords

* Multifamily housing tenants

* Orchard Pointe area businesses

* Verona Road Business Coalition Member
* Verona School District

Each representative would provide input on the vision for the area, and
assist in crafting appropriate goals, objectives and policies and establish
action steps to help move the vision from paper to reality.
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Meeting Schedule

The schedule for the Anton Drive Planning Study has not yet been
established, but is anticipated to include meetings with the Community
Economic Development Authority (CEDA), Transportation & Transit
Commission (TTC), Steering Committee, Plan Commission, Common
Council as well as public meetings. The plan also includes several
stakeholder interviews from those within the planning area.

The BUILD funds will help embellish the public participation process
through the Infill Redevelopment Public Visioning Process which would
include one additional public meeting, two steering committee meetings
and an additional Plan Commission meeting.

Estimated Project Cost

The estimated overall cost of the Anton Drive Planning Study, including
the Alternate Planning Study area of the Wingra Quarry, is $134,400. The
Public Visioning process, for which the City is requesting $15,000 BUILD
assistance, is $20,000 of this overall cost.

Funding Commitment

The City understands that it will be responsible for a 25% match if the
BUILD grant is received and that a resolution from the Common Council
committing to this local share will be required to secure the grant funds.
The City is in the process of drafting this resolution. The City has funds for
the study, including the City’s 25% match for the public visioning process,
identified in the Capital Improvement Program but needs the BUILD grant
dollars to fully engage the public visioning.

Physical Improvements

This request does not involve any physical improvements to specific
parcels of private property.
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Exhibit A: Anton Drive Planning Study Boundaries
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2015 BUILD: Anton Drive Infill Redevelopment Public Visioning

Exhibit B: Letters of Support

Office of the Common Council
Alder Maurice Cheeks, District 10

City-County Building, Room 417

210 Martin Luther King, Jr. Boulevard
Madison, Wisconsin 53703

Phone (608) 266-4071

Fax (608) 267-8669
district10@cityofmadison.com
www.cityofmadison.com/council/district10

August 31, 2015

Ms. Pamela Andros

Dane County Planning and Development

210 Martin Luther King Jr. Boulevard, Room 421
Madison, WI 53709

Dear Ms. Andros & BUILD Committee:

I am in support of the City of Fitchburgs effort in applying for a BUILD Program Application for
the Anton Infill Redevelopment Public Visioning process. The cities of Madison and Fitchburg
share borders on the western boundary of Fitchburg and, as a stakeholder, I am pleased to see the
City work towards a redevelopment plan for this area and strive for enhanced public participation
in the visioning process.

I am willing to work with the City of Fitchburg as they plan for the changes to the Verona Road
corridor and the future redevelopment of this area, and I look forward to working with the
various stakeholders in making positive improvements that will benefit both communities. I
hope that the BUILD Advisory Committee will look favorably on Fitchburgs application.

Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,

/o

Alder Maurice Cheeks
Madison Alderperson, District 10
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2015 BUILD: Anton Drive Infill Redevelopment Public Visioning
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VERONA ROAD BUSINESS COALITION

.

August 31, 2015

Ms. Pamela Andros

Dane County Planning and Development
210 Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd., Room 421
Madison, WI 53709

Dear Ms. Andros & BUILD Committee:

The Verona Road Business Coalition (VRBC) is in support of the City of Fitchburg’s effort in
applying for a BUILD Program Application for the Anton Infill Redevelopment Public Visioning
process. The Coalition, which is a volunteer group of Verona Road businesses and citizens
concerned about the Verona Road reconstruction, appreciates the City’s efforts and desire for
forward-thinking in redevelopment of the area. The City is actively involved with the VRBC to
help the area come alive and thrive before, during and after construction. The Verona Road
reconstruction project will bring significant changes to the corridor but also presents an
opportunity to reshape the vision and establish some placemaking strategies for the area.

As stakeholders in the corridor, we are pleased the see the City's desire for an enhanced public
visioning process as part of the study. The VRBC is committed to being involved in the planning
process and providing input on the vision for the future redevelopment of this important area in
the City.

Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely, .
Copttia K Cp
%Ma ager%q

Cynthia Jaggi, Project
Verona Road Business Coalition.
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2015 BUILD: Anton Drive Infill Redevelopment Public Visioning

August 30, 2015

Ms. Pamela Andros

Dane County Planning and Development
210 Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd., Room 421
Madison, WI 53709

Dear Ms. Andros & BUILD Cofnmittee:

The Jamestown Neighborhood Association is in support of the City of Fitchburg's effort in applying for a
BUILD Program Application for the Anton Infill Redevelopment Public Visioning process. Our
Neighborhood Association represents the residents who live in the proposed study area and we are
concerned about the impacts of the Verona Road reconstruction. We appreciate the City's efforts and
desire for forward-thinking in redevelopment of the area. The Jamestown Neighborhood Association is
already actively involved with the Verona Road Business Coalition to help the area come alive and thrive
before, during and after construction. The Verona Road reconstruction project will bring significant
changes to the corridor but also presents an opportunity to reshape the vision and establish some place
making strategies for the area.

We clearly see this time as a watershed moment for the neighborhood with regard to the future for the
neighborhood and the city. As a neighborhood association we feel a deep interest in ensuring proper
planning and coordination is done to maintain our property values.

As stakeholders in the corridor, we are pleased to see the city’s desire for an enhanced public visioning
process as part of the study. The Jamestown Neighborhood Association is committed to being involved
in the planning process and providing input on the vision for the future redevelopment of this important
area in the City.

Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,

Jeff Rohlinger, President
Jamestown Neighborhood Association
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Steve Arnold, Mayor Planning/Zoning

Introduced by Prepared by
Finance October 27, 2015
Referred to Date

RESOLUTION R-118-15
RECOGNIZING THE 2015 BUILD APPLICATION OF THE ANTON DRIVE INFILL
REDEVELOPMENT PUBLIC VISIONING AND COMMITTING TO A TWENTY FIVE
PERCENT LOCAL MATCH

WHEREAS, the City of Fitchburg, as identified in its Comprehensive Plan, is committed
to promoting infill, reinvestment and redevelopment of land and uses; and

WHEREAS, the Anton Drive Infill Redevelopment Public Visioning process would
enhance the public engagement in the planning process for the Anton Drive area, which has
several opportunities for redevelopment; and

WHERAS, the City of Fitchburg Planning Department has submitted a 2015 BUILD
application to Dane County for the Anton Drive Infill Redevelopment Public Visioning process;
and

WHEREAS, the City of Fitchburg Planning Department was verbally informed by the
Dane County BUILD staff that the BUILD Committee will fund the City of Fitchburg Anton Drive
Infill Redevelopment Public Visioning process in the amount of $15,000; and

WHEREAS, the BUILD application requires municipalities to provide a minimum 25
percent local match for approved planning projects; and

WHEREAS, the City is allocating $5,000 of city funding to the Public Visioning process,
which is 25% of the total cost of this process; and

WHEREAS, the 2016-2020 Capital Improvement Plan for the Anton Drive Planning study
recognized a potential grant opportunity and has provided funds for the required match;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, by the Fitchburg Common Council
that it recognizes the 2015 BUILD application for the Anton Drive Infill Redevelopment Public
Visioning process and has committed to a local match of at least 25 percent of the total project
costs for the Visioning process.

Adopted this day of , 2015.

Approved:

Stephen L. Arnold, Mayor

Patti Anderson, City Clerk



City of Fitchburg

Committee or Commission Referral

Direct Referral Initiated by:
Direct Referral Approved by:

Date Referred: October 27, 2015 Ordinance Number:

Date to Report Back: November 10, 2015 Resolution Number: R-119-15

Sponsored by: Mayor Drafted by: Public Works

TITLE: Approving Contract with MSA for Anton Drive Planning
Study

Background: Staff sent out request for proposals for this project and received four
responses. Negotiated with two firms to reduce scope and reduce project cost to fit
within budget. MSA was the selected firm. As of this writing, staff has not heard if
Wingra will participate, but agreement allows for that possibility.

Order Referred To Staff Contact | Place on Agenda Action
For Taken
On Referral
1 Finance Dodge 11/10/2015
2
3
4
Amendments:
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Agreement for Planning Services

OWNER FIRM

City of Fitchburg MSA Professional Services

5520 Lacy Road 2901 International Lane, Suite 300
Fitchburg, Wisconsin 53711 Madison, W1 53704

PROJECT: Anton Drive Planning Study DRAFT

1. Scope of Services

1.1 Planning Services

This agreement involves the provision of planning services by the FIRM, on
behalf of the OWNER, for preparation of the Anton Drive Planning Study
(hereafter “Plan”) of the City of Fitchburg. Included in these services will be
compliance with the Request for Proposal (RFP) issued by the City of Fitchburg
dated April 13, 2015, and its one addendum dated May 1, 2015, the FIRM
response (Proposal) to such RFP submitted May 11, 2015, but revised on June
26, 2015. This includes the Project Components (Basic Services) and the Infill
Redevelopment Public Visioning. A Wingra Stone Alternate is identified within
the project scope at a cost of $28,600 and the city has until December 15, 2015
to select this alternate.

The FIRM office equipment and office facilities shall be provided as necessary to
complete the services required under the Agreement. The FIRM has adequate
staff and facilities for the services required under this Agreement.

1.2 Public Information Services

The FIRM shall provide public participation in accord with the project schedule in
the June 26, 2015 response. The time frame as generally represented by the
schedule shall be complied with to the extent practical. Itis understood that
meetings may occur on days different than those in the schedule, provided there
is agreement between City staff and the FIRM on the revised days. Public
meetings shall use a variety of methods to garner public input in a manner
agreed to between City staff, and the FIRM.

FIRM shall coordinate with the OWNER regarding provision of digital (.pdf) or
hard copy files for notices to be mailed by the OWNER for the public meetings
provide appropriate agendas, minutes and notices for all relevant public
meetings, and work and consult with appropriate City Staff regarding the notices
for governmental meetings. FIRM shall provide information produced, as the
project advances, in an electronic format acceptable to City for posting on the
City web site.

1.3 Service Elements Not Included
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The following services are not included under the scope of this Agreement:

1.3.1 If additional committee or commission meetings are required than
those identified in the project budget of June 26, 2015 Proposal;
the FIRM shall be subject to compensation at $250 for meetings
without a presentation, or $750 for meetings with a presentation.
FIRM shall notify the city within five business days of the meeting of
the required meeting and intended amount to be charged.

1.3.2 If additional land use, storm water management, transportation
engineering, or other studies that are not part of the project scope
as identified in the RFP or as modified by the June 26, 2015
Proposal, that work shall be provided by an amendment to this
Agreement or through a separate Agreement with the OWNER.

1.4 Extension of Services

This Agreement may be extended for additional services upon authorization by
the OWNER. Extension of consulting services shall be provided on an hourly
basis plus expenses. Hourly services shall be provided on the basis of time
actually spent in performance of the additional services

1.5 Completion of Services

No services under this Agreement shall commence unless authorized by the
OWNER in writing. It is expected that a draft of the Plan will be completed in
accord with the schedule. Extensions may be agreed to between the FIRM and
City staff for due cause. This Agreement shall terminate upon satisfactory
completion of the Plan unless otherwise amended.

2. Compensation, Billing and Payment

2.1 Compensation

Compensation for the services set forth in Section 1.1 and 1.2 will be on hourly
basis, with a cost not to exceed as set forth below. The FIRM will bill the
OWNER monthly for fees and direct expenses of the FIRM for the service
provided. The bill will provide a breakdown of services rendered according to the
FIRM’s labor classifications shown on Exhibit A. The total compensation for
these services, including fees and direct expenses, shall be a sum not to exceed
$85,800 for basic services, the inclusion of the Public Visioning at $20,000 (of
which $15,000 is anticipated to be funded by the Dane County BUILD grant) and
a potential Wingra Stone alternate at $28,600. Total compensation due without
the Wingra Stone alternate is $105,800, and if the Wingra Stone alternate is
selected the total compensation shall be $134,400.(Cost information is available
on p. 32 of the June 26, 2015 Proposal.) Additional public meetings beyond

I:\Council\Committee Docs\COUNCIL\2015\October 27, 2015\Docs for Review\R-119-15\R-119-15 agreement.doc
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those identified in the June 26, 2015 Proposal shall be billed at the appropriate
rate identified in section 1.3.1.

2.2

221

Billing and Payment

Timing/Format/Acceptance

FIRM will bill the OWNER monthly, with net payment due in 60 days.
Unless OWNER provides FIRM with a written statement of any objections
to the invoice within 30 days of receipt, OWNER shall be deemed to
accept the invoice as submitted, provided, however, acceptance of the
invoice shall not constitute OWNER'’s acceptance of improper, faulty, or
defective work, shall not release FIRM of any of its obligations under this
Agreement, and shall not constitute a waiver of any rights or provisions
hereof by OWNER. Payment to FIRM by OWNER shall not be contingent
on payment to OWNER by others. However, if any cost overruns are
anticipated, FIRM shall notify OWNER of the cost overruns immediately,
and provide the reason(s) for the cost overrun and the estimate of the
cost overrun to the OWNER. City retains the right to pay by use of a
purchase card (credit card). If the Wingra alternate is undertaken, FIRM
shall break out the monthly invoice with an amount for the Basic and
Pulblic Visioning services, and a separate amount allocated to the Wingra
alternate. The FRIM shall provide a copy of any invoice that has work
allocated to the Wingra alternate to Robert Shea, Jr. of Wingra Stone.

2.2.2 Late Payments

224

2.25

Past due balances shall be subject to a service charge at the rate of 1 %
(one percent) per month. Any amount that the OWNER has objected to
shall not be considered due or past due until the objection has been
resolved.

2.2.3 Delay/Adjustment

If services continue beyond estimates established herein, other
compensation elements may be adjusted to reflect conditions existing at
the time of provision of such extended services.

Billing Records

FIRM maintains accounting records of its costs in accordance with
generally accepted accounting practices. Access to such records will be
provided during normal business hours with reasonable notice. OWNER
requests for copies of original source documents will be billed as
additional services at the rates in effect at the time of the request.

Sales/Use Taxes

I:\Council\Committee Docs\COUNCIL\2015\October 27, 2015\Docs for Review\R-119-15\R-119-15 agreement.doc
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Any sale or use taxes imposed upon provision of professional services
under this Agreement and in effect on the date of the invoice shall be in
addition to the total compensation, and will be added to the invoice
amount and billed to the OWNER.

2.2.6 Expenses

Expenses incurred on the PROJECT such as travel, computer, printing
and telephone shall be considered incidental to the contract, and that are
billed along with fees so that the total of fees and expenses do not exceed
the sum of $105,800 for the basic services and the Public Visioning, with
an additional $28,600 for the Wingra Stone alternate task. This is not
inclusive of additional meetings that may be necessary (see paragraph
2.1).

3. Standard Terms and Conditions

3.1 Standard Of Care

Services shall be performed in accordance with the standard of professional

practice ordinarily exercised by the profession at the time and within the locality
where the services are performed. FIRM agrees to indemnify and hold OWNER
harmless from all damages, claims, and liability, including attorney's fees arising
directly from FIRM’s failure to perform in accordance with such standard of care.

3.2 Change of Scope

The Scope of Services set forth in this Agreement is based on facts known at the
time of execution of this Agreement, including, if applicable, information supplied

by OWNER.
3.3 Safety

FIRM has established and maintains corporate programs and procedures for the
safety of its employees. Unless specifically set forth in this Agreement. FIRM
specifically disclaims any authority or responsibility for general job site safety and
safety of persons other than FIRM employees, except any injuries arising from
FIRM negligence.

3.4 and 3.5 are not used.

3.6  Termination for Cause
3.6.1 The OWNER may terminate this Agreement effective seven days
after sending written notice to the FIRM upon the happening of the
following events:

3.6.1.1 The FIRM fails to deliver any reports, drawings, or

designs in final form reasonably acceptable to the
I:\Council\Committee Docs\COUNCIL\2015\October 27, 2015\Docs for Review\R-119-15\R-119-15 agreement.doc
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OWNER by the schedule set forth in the Proposal,
unless an extension is granted by the OWNER due
to process delays or other such effects.

3.6.1.2 The FIRM fails to perform any services required by this Agreement in a
timely and professional manner or fails reasonably to cooperate with the OWNER.
3.6.2 The FIRM may terminate this Agreement effective seven days after
sending written notice to the OWNER if the OWNER materially
interferes with the performance of this Agreement by the FIRM.

3.7 Termination for Convenience

a. OWNER may terminate this Agreement in whole or in part, at any
time by written notice to FIRM, whether or not the FIRM is in
default. Such termination for convenience shall be effective at the
time and in the manner specified in OWNER'’s written notice to
FIRM. If Wingra Stone decides to terminate its participation, all
work on the Wingra alternate shall cease from that point. Wingra
Stone land use shall revert to that identified in the Future Land Use
Map of the City’s Comprhensive Plan (last amended August 2015).

b. Upon receipt of written notice from the OWNER of such termination
for the OWNER'’s convenience, the FIRM shall:

1. Cease work as directed by the OWNER in the notice;

2. Take actions necessary, or that the OWNER may direct, to
preserve work performed to date; and
3. Terminate all existing consultancy agreements or purchase
orders.
C. Upon such termination for convenience, the FIRM shall be entitled

to receive payment for work executed, and reasonable costs, as
mutually agreed between OWNER and FIRM, incurred by FIRM
due to such termination, but in no event including loss of
anticipated profits for work not performed.

3.8  Suspension

In the event either party defaults in its obligations under this Agreement
(including OWNER'S obligation to make the payments required hereunder), the
non-defaulting party may, after 7 days written notice to the other party, suspend
performance under this Agreement. Such written notice must state the party’s
intention to suspend performance under the Agreement if cure of such default is
not commenced within such time limit contained in the written notice.

3.9 Insurance

FIRM shall maintain the following minimum insurance coverage/limits:
I:\Council\Committee Docs\COUNCIL\2015\October 27, 2015\Docs for Review\R-119-15\R-119-15 agreement.doc
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Comprehensive General Liability: $1,000,000 occurrence/ $2,000,000 aggregate
Automobile Liability $1,000,000 occurrence/ aggregate

Worker's Compensation Statutory
/Employers Liability

Excess Liability $1,000,000 occurrence/ aggregate
Professional Liability $1,000,000 occurrence/ $2,000,000 aggregate

3.10 Hold Harmless And Indemnification

The FIRM acknowledges and agrees that liability for both bodily injury, disability
and/or death of FIRM’s employees or any other person, or for damages to
property caused in any way by the operations of the FIRM under this agreement
shall be assumed by the FIRM, and the FIRM shall indemnify and hold OWNER
harmless against all claims, actions, proceedings, direct damages and liabilities,
including reasonable attorney'’s fees, arising from or connected with the FIRM’s
activities in connection with the services provided to the OWNER, including but
not limited to, any acts, errors or omissions of the FIRM, its employees, agents,
representatives and any other person doing business with the FIRM in
connection with this agreement. However, in no event and under no
circumstances shall the FIRM be liable to the OWNER for consequential,
incidental, indirect, special, or punitive damages as incurred by OWNER due to
OWNER'’S direct acts and omissions. This section is not to be in conflict with
Section 893.80 (4), Wis. Stats.

3.12 Access
Access to private property owned shall be secured by FIRM prior to entry.

3.13 Reuse of Documents

Reuse of any documents pertaining to this PROJECT by the OWNER on
extensions of this PROJECT or on any other PROJECT shall be at the
OWNER'S risk. The OWNER agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless
FIRM from all claims, damages, and expenses, including attorney’s fees, arising
out of such reuse of the documents by the OWNER or by others acting through
the OWNER, except for any damages, claims, and liability arising directly from
FIRM negligence. All documents prepared by FIRM for this PROJECT shall
become the full ownership and control of the OWNER.

3.14 Amendment

This Agreement, upon execution by both parties hereto, can be amended only by
a written instrument signed by both parties.
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3.15 Assignment

Except for assignments (a) to entities which control, or are controlled by, the
parties hereto or (b) resulting from operation of law, the rights and obligations of
this Agreement cannot be assigned by either party without written permission of
the other party.

3.16 Entire Agreement

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with
respect to the matters covered herein and supersedes all prior discussions,
understandings or agreements between the parties with respect to such matters.

3.17 No Waiver
No waiver by either party of any default by the other party in the performance of
any particular section of this Agreement shall invalidate any other section of this

Agreement or operate as a waiver of any future default, whether like or different
in character.

3.18 No Third-Party Beneficiary

Nothing contained in this Agreement, nor the performance of the parties
hereunder, is intended to benefit, nor shall inure to the benefit of, any third party,
including OWNER'S contractors, if any. The FIRM understands, however, that
payment for this project, while under full control and direction of the City, is
coming from the Par Fore land owner group, and the payment by Par Fore shall
in no way influence the project any more than for a non paying land owner.

3.19 Severability

The various terms, provisions and covenants herein contained shall be deemed
to be separate and severable, and the invalidity or unenforceability of any of
them shall not affect or impair the validity or enforceability of the remainder.

3.20 Authority

The persons signing this Agreement warrant that they have the authority to sign
as, or on behalf of, the party for whom they are signing.

3.21 Notices

Any notice required hereunder shall be sent to the business address designated on the
signature page of this Agreement and shall be deemed served if sent by registered or
certified mail or hand-delivered to an officer or authorized representative of the party to
whom the notice is directed.

3.22 and 3.23 not used

3.24 Laws to be Observed
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The FIRM shall at all times observe and comply with all Federal and State Laws
and administrative rules, local laws, ordinances, and regulations which in any
manner affect the conduct of the PROJECT, and all orders or decrees, as exist
at the present time or which may be enacted within the time frame of this
agreement of bodies or tribunals having jurisdiction or authority over the
PROJECT.

3.25 Affirmative Action

The FIRM agrees that qualified small and minority owned business enterprises
shall have the maximum practicable opportunity to participate in the performance
of DOT aid-assisted contracts and subcontracts.

In connection with the performance of services under this agreement, the FIRM
agrees not to discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment
because of age, race, creed, color, religion, handicap, sex, physical condition,
marital status, national origin, ancestry, sexual orientation, developmental
disability as defined in section 111.01(5), Wis. Stats., arrest record, conviction
record, or membership in the National Guard, state defense force, or any other
reserve component of the military forces of the United States or the State. This
provision shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment,
upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment or recruiting advertising, lay-off or
termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, selection for training,
including apprenticeship. The FIRM agrees to post in a conspicuous place
available for employees and applicants for employment notices to be provided by
the FIRM setting forth the provisions of this non-discrimination clause.

3.26 Professional Services

The FIRM intends to serve as the OWNER'S professional representative for
those services as defined in this Agreement and to provide advice and
consultation to the OWNER as a professional. Any opinions of probable
PROJECT costs, monetary values, approvals, and other decisions made by the
FIRM for the OWNER are rendered on the basis of experience and qualifications
and present the FIRM’s professional judgment.

The FIRM acknowledges and agrees that it is an independent contractor of the
City, that its business is independently owned and operated, that nothing in this
contract shall be interpreted to cause or result in, directly or indirectly, any
principal/agent or employer/employee relationship between the FIRM and the
City, and that nothing in this agreement shall in any way whatsoever be
construed as an agreement of partnership, general or limited, joint venture, or as
an agency relationship, between the City and the FIRM. The FIRM agrees not to
represent or advertise in any way that its relationship with the City is other than
as provided in this paragraph.

3.27 Disputes
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a. OWNER and FIRM agree to initially attempt mediation regarding
any dispute arising between OWNER and FIRM under this
Agreement. If mediation fails, OWNER, in its sole discretion, may
elect to demand arbitration with FIRM regarding any such dispute.
OWNER shall endeavor, whenever possible, to elect arbitration.
Such mediation and any arbitration proceedings shall be
conducted in accordance with the then current Construction
Industry Dispute Resolution procedures of the American
Arbitration Association, unless the parties mutually agree
otherwise. Such proceedings shall be held in Fitchburg,
Wisconsin. At OWNER’s option, any such dispute resolution
proceeding will be consolidated with related dispute resolution
proceedings involving OWNER, FIRM, or any other party. The
foregoing Agreement to mediate or arbitrate shall be specifically
enforceable under prevailing law. In any arbitration proceeding,
the award rendered by the arbitrator shall be final, and judgment
may be entered thereupon in accordance with the applicable law
in any court having jurisdiction thereof.

b. Nothing contained in the aforementioned paragraph shall be
construed to relieve FIRM of any obligations it may have under
Section 893.80, Wis. Stats.

3.28 Contacts

Primary contacts for the project shall be:
OWNER: Thomas D. Hovel
Zoning Administrator/City Planner
(608) 270-4255

FIRM: Jason Valerius
Project Manager
2901 International Lane, Suite 300
Madison, W1 53704
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereby have made and executed this Agreement.

FIRM:
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BY:
Date
ATTEST:
Date
OWNER:
BY:
Stephen L. Arnold, Mayor Date
ATTEST:
Patti Anderson, City Clerk Date

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Mark Sewell, City Attorney Date

Provision has been made to pay the liability that will accrue with this agreement.

Misty Dodge, City’s Financial Officer Date
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Steve Arnold, Mayor Planning

Introduced by Prepared by
Finance October 21, 2015
Referred to Date

RESOLUTION R-119-15
APPROVING CONTRACT WITH MSA FOR ANTON DRIVE PLANNING STUDY

WHEREAS, the city has funds allocated funds for an Anton Drive Planning Study to study
land use and other planning items west of Verona Road and north of McKee Road due to the
intended Verona Road reconstruction, and

WHERAS, Staff has sent out a Request for Proposal and received four responses and
has selected MSA Professional Services, and

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee has reviewed the contract and recommends
approval.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, that the Common Council hereby
approves the contract with MSA Professional Services for the Anton Drive Planning Study in the
amount of $105,800 for basic and public visioning services, and the potential additional amount
of $28,600 for the Wingra alternate.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that it authorizes the City Planner and City Attorney to
negotiate any necessary amendments with MSA, and for the Mayor and City Clerk to sign.

Adopted this day of October, 2015.

Approved:

Stephen L. Arnold, Mayor

Attested By:

Patti Anderson, City Clerk
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City of Fitchburg
Committee or Commission Referral

Direct Referral Initiated by:

Direct Referral Approved by:

Date Referred: Oct 27, 2015
Date to Report Back: Nov 10, 2015

Ordinance Number:
Resolution Number: R-120-15

Sponsored by: Mayor

Drafted by: Misty Dodge

TITLE: A Resolution Recommending an Audit Firm for the City’s 2015

Audit

Background:

The City is required to perform an external annual audit and issue an annual audited financial
report. This resolution authorizes the City’s continued agreement with the auditing firm Baker

Tilly Virchow Krause.

Order Referred To Staff Contact Place on Agenda | Action Taken
For On Referral
1 Finance Dodge November 10, 2015
2
3
4
Amendments:
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BAKER TILLY

Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP
Ten Terrace Cr, PO Box 7398
Madison, W1 537077398

el 608 249 6622

fax GOB 249 8532

bakereilly.com
December 9, 2013

Ms. Norma DeHaven

City of Fitchburg

5520 Lacy Road

Fitchburg, Wisconsin 53711-5318

Dear Ms. DeHaven:

Thank you for using Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP ("Baker Tilly" "we" or "our") as your auditors.

The purpose of this letter is to confirm our understanding of the terms and objectives of our engagement and the
nature of the services we will provide as independent accountants of the City of Fitchburg.

Services and Related Report

We will audit the basic financial statements of the City of Fitchburg as of and for the year ended December 31,
2013, and the related notes to the financial statements. Upon completion of our audit, we will pravide the City of
Fitchburg with our audit report on the financial statements and supplemental information referred to below. If, for
any reasons caused by or relating to the affairs or management of the City of Fitchburg, we are unable to
complete the audit or are unable to or have not formed an opinion, or if we determine in our professional
judgment the circumstances necessitate, we may withdraw and decline to issue a report as a result of this
engagement.

The following supplementary information accompanying the financial statements will also be subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, and our auditor's report
will provide an opinion on it in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Nonmajor
Governmental Funds

Statement of Cash Flows - Component Unit

4 28 1rdependent member of

BAKER TILLY
INTERNATIONAL An Affirmative Action Equal Opportunity Employer
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Accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America provide for certain required
supplementary information (RSI), such as management's discussion and analysis (MD&A), to supplement the
City of Fitchburg's basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial staterments in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. As part of our engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to the City of Fitchburg's
RSI in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. These limited
procedures will consist of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management's response to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We will not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. The following RSl is required by
generally accepted accounting principles and will be subjected to certain limited procedures, but will not be
audited:

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - General Fund

Our Responsibilities and Limitations

The objective of a financial statement audit is the expression of an opinion on the financial statements. We will
be responsible for conducting that audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. These standards require that we plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable, rather than
absolute assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether caused
by error or fraud. Our audit will include examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit does not relieve
management and the audit committee or equivalent group charged with governance of their responsibilities.

The audit will include obtaining an understanding of the entity and its environment, including internal control,
sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to design the nature,
timing and extent of further audit procedures. An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or
to identify deficiencies in internal control. However, during the audit, we will communicate to management and
the audit committee or equivalent group charged with governance internal control matters that are required to be
communicated under professional standards.

We may from time to time, and depending on the circumstances, use service providers (e.g., to observe
inventory, act as a specialist, or audit an element of the financial statements) in serving your account. We may
share confidential information about you with these service providers, but are committed to maintaining the
confidentiality and security of your information.
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We will design our audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute, assurance of detecting errors or fraud that would
have a material effect on the financial statements as well as other illegal acts having a direct and material effect
on financial statement amounts. An audit is not designed to detect errors or fraud that are immaterial to the
financial statements. Our audit will not include a detailed audit of transactions, such as would be necessary to
disclose errors or fraud that did not cause a material misstatement of the financial statements. It is important to
recognize that there are inherent limitations in the auditing process. Audits are based on the concept of selective
testing of the data underlying the financial statements, which involves judgment regarding the areas to be tested
and the nature, timing, extent and results of the tests ta be performed. Our audit is not a guarantee of the
accuracy of the financial statements and, therefore, is subject to the limitation that material errors or fraud or
other illegal acts having a direct and material financial statement impact, if they exist, may not be detected.
Because of the characteristics of fraud, particularly those involving concealment through collusion, falsified
documentation and management's ability to override controls, an audit designed and executed in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America may not detect a material fraud.
Further, while effective internal control reduces the likelihood that errors, fraud or other illegal acts will occur and
remain undetected, it does not eliminate that possibility. For these reasons, we cannot ensure that errors, fraud
or other illegal acts, if present, will be detected. However, we will communicate to the City of Fitchburg, as
appropriate, any such matters identified during our audit.

We are also responsible for determining that the audit committee or equivalent group charged with governance
is informed about certain other matters related to the conduct of the audit, including (i) our responsibility under
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, (ii) an overview of the planned scope and
timing of the audit, and (jii) significant findings from the audit, which include (a) our views about the qualitative
aspects of the City of Fitchburg's significant accounting practices, accounting estimates, and financial statement
disclosures; (b) difficulties encountered in performing the audit; (c) uncorrected misstatements and material
corrected misstatements that were brought to the attention of management as a result of auditing procedures;
and (d) other significant and relevant findings or issues (e.g., any disagreements with management about
matters that could be significant to the City of Fitchburg's financial statements or our report thereon,
consultations with other independent accountants, issues discussed prior to our retention as independent
auditors, fraud and illegal acts, and all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses identified during the
audit). Lastly, we are responsible for ensuring that the audit committee or equivalent group charged with
governance receives copies of certain written communications between us and management including written
communications on accounting, auditing, internal control or operational matters and representations that we are
requesting from management.

The audit will not be planned or conducted in contemplation of reliance by any specific third party or with respect
to any specific transaction. Therefore, items of possible interest to a third party will not be specifically addressed
and matters may exist that would be assessed differently by a third party, possibly in connection with a specific
transaction.

We will make reference to the audit of the Fitch-Rona EMS District in our report on your financial statements.

Management's Responsibilities

The City of Fitchburg's management is responsible for the financial statements referred to above. In this regard,
management is responsible for establishing policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of adequate
accounting records and effective internal controls over financial reparting, the selection and application of
accounting principles, the authorization of receipts and disbursements, the safeguarding of assets, the proper
recording of transactions in the accounting records, and for reporting financial information in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Management is also responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and
detect fraud, and for informing us (i) about all known or suspected fraud affecting the entity involving: (a)
management, (b) employees who have significant roles in internal control over financial reporting, and (c) others
where the fraud or illegal acts could have a material effect on the financial statements; and (ii) of its knowledge
of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity received in communications from employees,
former employees, analysts, grantors, regulators, or others.

You are responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. You agree to include our report on the supplementary
information in any document that contains, and indicates that we have reported on, the supplementary
information. You also agree to include the audited financial statements with any presentation of the
supplementary information that includes our report thereon. Your responsibilities include acknowledging to us in
the representation letter that (a) you are responsible for presentation of the supplementary information in
accordance with GAAP; (b) that you believe the supplementary information, including its form and content, is
fairly presented in accordance with GAAP; (c) that the methods of measurement or presentation have not
changed from those used in the prior period (or, if they have changed, the reasons for such changes); and (d)
you have disclosed to us any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement or
presentation of the supplementary information.

Management is responsible for (i) adjusting the basic financial statements to correct material misstatements and
for affirming to us in a management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements
aggregated by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period under audit are immaterial,
both individually and in the aggregate, to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, and (i) notifying us of
all material weaknesses, including other significant deficiencies, in the design or operation of your internal control
over financial reporting that are reasonably likely to adversely affect your ability to record, process, summarize
and report external financial data reliably in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America, Management also is responsible for identifying and ensuring that the City of Fitchburg
complies with the laws and regulations applicable to its activities.

As part of management’s responsibility for the financial statements and the effectiveness of its system of internal
control over financial reporting, management is responsible for making available to us, on a timely basis, all of
your original accounting records and related information and for the completeness and accuracy of that
information and your personnel to whom we may direct inquiries. As required by auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, we will make specific inquiries of management and others about the
representations embodied in the financial statements and the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting. Auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America also require that we obtain
written representations covering audited financial statements from certain members of management. The results
of our audit tests, the responses to our inquiries, and the written representations, comprise the evidential matter
we intend to rely upon in forming our opinion on the financial statements.

Because of the importance of oral and written representations to an effective audit, the City of Fitchburg releases
Baker Tilly and its current, former or future partners, principals, employees, and personnel from any and all
claims, liabilities, costs and expenses attributable to any misrepresentation by management. The terms of this
paragraph shall apply to any claims of any kind, including, but not limited to, contract, tort, or negligence of any
panty, including the City of Fitchburg or Baker Tilly.
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Non-Attest Services

Prior to or as part of our audit engagement, it may be necessary for us to perform certain non-attest services
including, but not limited to, preparing drafts of your financial statements and proposing general, adjusting, or
correcting journal entries to your financial statements. None of these non-attest services constitute an audit
under generally accepted auditing standards including Government Auditing Standards. You are responsible for
reviewing the entries and understanding the nature of any proposed entries and the impact they have on the
financial statements. In addition, you will be required to review and approve the financial statements and approve
that document prior to its issuance and have a responsibility in fact and appearance to make an informed
judgment on that document.

We will not perform any management functions or make management decisions on your behalf with respect to
any non-attest services we provide.

In connection with our performance of any non-attest services, you agree that you will:

> Continue to make all management decisions and perform all management functions, including
approving all journal entries and general ledger classifications when they are submitted to you.

> Designate an employee with suitable skill, knowledge, and/or experience, preferably within senior
managemsnt, to oversee the services we perform.

> Evaluate the adequacy and results of the non-attest services we perform.

> Accept responsibility for the results of our non-attest services.

> Establish and maintain internal controls, including monitoring ongoing activities related to the non-
attest function.

On a periodic basis, as needed, we will meet with you to discuss your accounting records and the management
implications of your financial statements. We will notify you, in writing, of any matters that we believe you shouid
be aware of and will meet with you upon request.

In addition to the audit services discussed above, we will compile the annual Financial Report Form to the
Wisconsin Department of Revenue. See Addendum A attached, which is an integral part of this engagement
letter.

Other Documents

Auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America require that we read any annual report
that contains our audit report. The purpose of this procedure is to consider whether other information in the
annual report, including the manner of its presentation, is materially inconsistent with information appearing in
the financial statements. We assume no obligation to perform procedures to corroborate such other information
as part of our audit.



Ms. Norma DeHaven
City of Fitchburg

December 9, 2013
Page 6

If you intend to reproduce or publish the financial statements, and make reference to our firm name in
connection therewith, you agree to publish the financial statements in their entirety. In addition, you agree to
provide us, for our approval and consent, proofs before printing and final materials before distribution.

With regard to the electronic dissemination of audited financial statements, including financial statements
published electronically on your Internet website, you understand that electronic sites are a means to distribute
information and, therefore, we are not required to read the information contained in these sites or to consider the
consistency of other information in the electronic site with the original document.

The documentation for this engagement, including the workpapers, is the property of Baker Tilly and constitutes
confidential information. We may have a responsibility to retain the documentation for a period of time sufficient
to satisfy any applicable legal or regulatory requirements for records retention. If we are required by law,
regulation, or professional standards to make certain documentation available to Regulators, the City of
Fitchburg hereby authorizes us to do so.

Legal Terms

In no event shall either party be liable for any punitive damages relating to Baker Tilly's services provided under
this engagement letter.

Resolution of Disagreements

In the unlikely event that differences concerning our services or fees should arise that are not resolved by mutual
agreement, both parties agree to attempt in good faith to settle the dispute. Each party shall bear their own
expenses. Our services shall be evaluated on our substantial conformance with the terms expressly set forth
herein, including all applicable professional standards.

Timing and Fees

Completion of our work is subject to, among other things, (i) appropriate cooperation from the City of Fitchburg's
personnel, including timely preparation of necessary schedules, (ii) timely responses to our inquiries, and (jii)
timely communication of all significant accounting and financial reporting matters. When and if for any reason
the City of Fitchburg is unable to provide such schedules, information, and assistance, Baker Tilly and you will
mutually revise the fee to reflect additional services, if any, required of us to complete the audit. Delays in the
issuance of our audit report beyond the date that was originally contemplated may require us to perform
additional auditing procedures which will likely result in additional fees.

Changes to our audit procedures resulting in increased hours and expense could result from the current credit
crisis and economic conditions. Examples of issues we have seen include unexpected asset impairment
analysis, liquidity and going concern evaluations, debt covenant violations, inventory lower of cost or market
declines, customer credit risk issues, and increased risk of employee fraud, to name a few. If these issues or
others are identified which increase our level of service effort and cause revisions in the scope of our work, we
will discuss these with you before incurring additional time and effort. We will, of course, solicit the efforts of you
and your staff to minimize the impact these incremental efforts will have on the fees.

Revisions to the scope of our work due to delays in the issuance of the audit report or increased procedures as a
result of the current credit crisis and economic conditions will be set forth in the form of an “Amendment to
Existing Engagement Letter."
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Fees for our audit services will be at our regular rates plus out-of-pocket expenses.Invoices for these fees will be
rendered each month as work progresses and are payable on presentation. A charge of 1.5% per month shall be
imposed on accounts not paid within 30 days of receipt of our statement for services provided. In accordance
with our firm policies, work may be suspended if your account becomes 30 days or more overdue and will not be
resumed until your account is paid in full. If we elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, our engagement
will be deemed to have been completed upon written notice of termination, even if we have not completed our
report. You will be obligated to compensate us for all time expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket
expenditures through the date of termination.

We may use temporary contract staff to perform certain tasks on your engagement and will bill for that time at
the rate that corresponds to Baker Tilly staff providing a similar level of service. Upon request, we will be happy
to provide details on training, supervision, and billing arrangements we use in connection with these
professionals.

Our fees are based on known circumstances at the time of this agreement. Should circumstances change
significantly during the course of this engagement, we will discuss with you the need for any revised audit fees.
This can result from changes at your organization, such as the turnover of key accounting staff, the addition of
new funds or significant federal or state programs, or changes that affect the amount of audit effort from external
sources, such as new accounting and auditing standards that become effective that increase the scope of our
audit procedures. This agreement currently includes all auditing standards through Statement on Auditing
Standards (SAS) No. 127 — “Omnibus Statement on Auditing Standards - 2013,” all accounting standards
through Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) No. 66 — “Technical Corrections - 2012 - an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 10 and No. 62,” and the current federal and state single audit guidance.

We would expect to continue to perform our services under the arrangements discussed above from year to
year, unless for some reason you or we find that some change is necessary. We will, of course be happy to
provide the City of Fitchburg with any other services you may find necessary or desirable.

Other Matters

Baker Tilly is owned by professionals who hold CPA licenses as well as by professionals who are not licensed
CPAs. Depending on the nature of the services we provide, non-CPA owners may be involved in providing
services to you now or in the future.

Any additional services that may be requested and we agree to provide will be the subject of separate
arrangements.

Because the services we provide may prove to be useful to the City of Fitchburg in situations where the City of
Fitchburg is involved in investigations or litigation that does not involve Baker Tilly, our assistance may be
necessary. Therefore, in the event we are requested or authorized by the City of Fitchburg, or required by
government regulation, subpoena, or other legal process to produce our working papers or our personnel as
witnesses with respect to our engagement for the City of Fitchburg, the City of Fitchburg will, so long as we are
not a party to the proceeding in which the information is sought, reimburse us for our reasonable professional
time and expenses, as well as the reasonable fees and expenses of our counsel, incurred in responding to such
a request.
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Neither this engagement letter, any claim, nor any rights or licenses granted hereunder may be assigned,
delegated, or subcontracted by either party without the written consent of the other party. Either party may assign
and transfer this engagement letter to any successor that acquires all or substantially all of the business or
assets of such party by way of merger, consolidation, other business reorganization, or the sale of interest or
assets, provided that the party notifies the other party in writing of such assignment and the successor agrees in
writing to be bound by the terms and conditions of this engagement letter.

Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP represents as follows: Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP is a member of Baker
Tilly International Limited. Each member firm of Baker Tilly International Limited is a separate and independent
legal entity. Baker Tilly International Limited and its other members are not responsible or liable for any acts or
omissions of Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP. Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP and its subsidiaries are not
responsible for or liable for any acts or omissions of any other member of Baker Tilly International Limited. Baker
Tilly International Limited does not render any professional services and does not have an ownership or
partnership interest in Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP.

Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP further represents: Baker Tilly International Limited is an English Company.
Neither Baker Tilly International Limited nor any other member firm has a right to exercise management control
over any other member firm. Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP is not Baker Tilly International Limited’s agent and
does not have authority to bind Baker Tilly International Limited or act on Baker Tilly International Limited’s
behalf.

This engagement letter reflects the entire agreement between us relating to the services covered by this letter. It
replaces and supersedes any previous proposals, correspondence, and understandings, whether written or oral.
The agreement contained in this engagement letter shall survive the completion or termination of this
engagement. If because of a change in the City of Fitchburg's status or due to any other reason, any provision in
this agreement would be prohibited by, or would impair our independence under, laws, regulations or published
interpretations by governmental bodies, commissions, or other regulatory agencies, such provision shall, to that
extent, be of no further force and effect and this agreement shall consist of the remaining portions.

The validity, construction and enforcement of this engagement letter shall be determined in accordance with the
laws of the State of Wisconsin, without reference to its conflicts of laws principles, and any action arising under
this engagement letter shall be brought exclusively in the State of Wisconsin.

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to the City of Fitchburg.
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If there are any questions regarding the engagement letter, please contact Vicki Hellenbrand, the engagement
partner on this engagement who is responaible for the overall supervieion and review of the engagement and for
determining that the engagement has baen compieted in accordance with professional standards. Vicki
Hellenbrand is available at 608 240 2387,

Sincerely,

BAKER TILLY VIRCHOW KRAUSE, LLP
Enclosures

The services and terms as set forth in the engagement letter are agreed to by:

Notma Defda ren

Official's Name
Official's Signature

Ensnees ), pecznt
Title

/2—G~/3
Date




ADDENDUM A
We will perform the following services:

1. We will compile, from information you provide, the annual Financial Report Form to the Wisconsin
Department of Revenue, for the year ended December 31, 2013. Upon completion of the compilation of
the annual Financial Report Form, we will provide the city with our accountants' compilation repon. If, for
any reason caused by or relating to affairs or management of the city, we are unable to complete the
compilation or if we determine in our professional judgment the circumstances necessitate, we may
withdraw and decline to submit the annual Financial Report Form to you as a result of this engagement.

Our report on the annual Financial Report Form of the City of Fitchburg is presently expected to read as
follows:

We have compiled the 2013 Financial Report Form C for the year ended December 31, 2013 included
in the accompanying prescribed form. We have not audited or reviewed the Financial Report Form C
included in the accompanying prescribed form and, accordingly, do not express an opinion or any
assurance about whether the Financial Report Form C is in accordance with the form prescribed by the
Wisconsin Department of Revenue.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Financial Report Form C
included in the form prescribed by the Wisconsin Department of Revenue and for designing,
implementing, and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the
Financial Report Form C.

Our responsibility is to conduct the compilation in accordance with Statements on Standards for
Accounting and Review Services issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
objective of a compilation is to assist management in presenting financial information in the form of the
Financial Report Form C without undertaking to obtain or provide any assurance that there are no
material modifications that should be made to the Financial Report Form C.

The Financial Report Form C included in the accompanying prescribed form is presented in
accordance with the requirements of the Wisconsin Department of Revenue, and is not intended to be
a presentation in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Wisconsin Department of Revenue and
is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than this specified party.

Our Responsibilities and Limitations

We will be responsible for performing the compilation in accordance with Statements on Standards for
Accounting and Review Services established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
objective of a compilation is to assist management in presenting financial information in the form of financial
statements. We will utilize information that is the representation of management without undertaking to obtain or
provide any assurance that there are no material modifications that should be made to the financial statements
in order for the statements to be in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Our engagement cannot be relied upon to disclose errors, fraud, or other illegal acts that may exist and, because
of the limited nature of our work, detection is highly unlikely. However, we will inform the appropriate level of
management of any material errors, and of any evidence that fraud may have occurred. In addition, we will report
to you any evidence or information that comes to our attention during the performance of our compilation
procedurss regarding illegal acts that may have occurred, unless they are clearly inconsequential. We have no
responsibility to identify and communicate deficiencies in your internal control as part of this engagement.



Management's Respongibilities

The city's management is responsible for the financial statements referred to above. In this regard, management
is responsible for (i) the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, (ii) designing, implementing, and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, (iii)
preventing and detecting fraud, (iv) identifying and ensuring that the entity complies with the laws and regulations
applicable to its activities, and (v) making all financial records and related information available to us.
Management also is responsible for identifying and ensuring that the city complies with the laws and regulation
applicable to its activities.

Management is responsible for providing us with the information necessary for the compilation of the financial
statements and the completeness and the accuracy of that information and for making city personnel available to
whom we may direct inquiries regarding the compilation. We may make specific inquiries of management and
others about the representations embodied in the financial statements.
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@Fitchburg

Item Description:

Rationale for
Purchase:

Department:
Contact Person:

12/31/15 Audit Services

Pre-Approval Request # Lolb

Date: 10/15/2015

Each year the City is required to perform an external annual audit. Some preliminary work is completed prior to the end of the year
but the bulk of the service is provided in the following year. There are two new services included this year: preparation of a CAFR
(discretionary) and a new GASB prouncement (required).

Finance

Misty Dodge

Estimate/Quote/Bids Solicitations:

Budget Amount:
Budget Page Ref:
Funds Available:

$42,000 + $18,000

TBD

$42,000 + $18,000

None

Estimates/Quotes/Bids Received:

Vendor Description Amount Notes
Baker Tilly Virchow Krause LLP Financial Audit Services 3$ 55,100.00 |includes financial, utilities, and additional services
Recommended Vendor: Baker Tilly Vendor #: 83

Rationale for Recommendation or Sole Source:

Attach W-9 if a new vendor

This is the same audit firm that we have used for several years (at least since 1987) so they are familiar with our organization, our processes, and our
financial reporting. The last time the City issued an RFP was in 2004. In 2013 the City signed a new engagement letter continuing the contract.

Vendor Address :

PURCHASE ORDER INFORMATION

Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP
10 Terrace Court; PO Box 7398
Madison, W1 53707-7398

City Ship To Information:

City of Fitchburg
5520 Lacy Road
Fitchburg, WI 53711

Qry UNIT PRICE DESCRIPTION VIN/BID LINES AMOUNT GLACCOUNT | GLActv #

Financial Audit - General 36,05000 | 100-5139-212

Add-on |Fixed Asset Maintenance 1,000.00 100-5139-212
New CAFR Preparation 350.00 100-5139-212
Form C/Tax 16 750.00 100-5139-212

New New GASB 68 Implementation 250.00 100-5139-212
Add-on |PSC Report Preparation 2,000.00 600-5923-100
Financial Audit - Utilities 4.866.67 600-5923-100

New New GASB 68 Implementation 33.33 600-5923-100
Financial Audit - Utilities 4,866.67 600-5852-200

New New GASB 68 Implementation 33.33 600-5852-200
Financial Audit - Utilities 4,866.67 601-5923-300

New New GASB 68 Implementation 33.33 601-5923-300

TOTAL: 55,100.00 |

Budget Amendment Needed? No *if budget amendment needed include memo to explain and reques! authority
Disposition of previous item? n/a *if sold other than through auction, Finance Committee approval needed
Approvals - Initial and Date
Dept Head: ZE@_MB Finance Dir: _ /YLr| (S ol Committee:
Administrator: _?jw,‘ D=20-I% . (Fin Comm s%96K:  Gouncil $50K+)
QA (Finance): KP l() l Mayor: [O—=2n~7.0l Y Council:




City of Fitchburg
Audit Fee Tracking
2015 Audit (primarily done 2016)

General City Quote
Financial Audit - General 36,050.00
Fixed Asset Maintenance 1,000.00
MD&A Preparation -
CAFR Preparation 350.00
Form C/Tax 16 750.00
New GASB 68 Implementation 250.00
Single Audit -
Subtotal 38,400.00
including new items 2.5%
apples-to-apples 0.9%
Utilities
Financial Audit - Utilities 14,600.00
New GASB 68 Implementation 100.00
PSC Report Preparation 2,000.00
Subtotal 16,700.00
including new items 1.8%
apples-to-apples 1.2%
Subtotal Annual Audit 55,100.00
including new items 2.3%
apples-to-apples 1.0%
Special Audits
TID #6 2nd 40% Audit -
TID #7 Final Audit -
Subtotal -
Total 55,100.00
100-5139-212 38,400.00
600-5923-100 6,900.00
600-5852-200 4,900.00
601-5923-300 4,900.00
406-5732-002 -
Total by G/L Account 55,100.00
check =

I:\Finance\NORMA\New File Structure\Financial Statements (EOY)\audit fee tracking\2015 (issued 2016)



Mayor Steve Arnold Misty Dodge

Introduced by Prepared by
Finance Committee October 27, 2015
Referred to Date

RESOLUTION R-120-15
A RESOLUTION RECOMMENDING AN AUDIT FIRM FOR THE CITY’S 2015 AUDIT

WHEREAS, the City is required to undergo an annual external audit of our financial records and
issue an audited financial report; and

WHEREAS, details of the recommended agreement for services is outlined on the attached pre-
approval form; and

NOW BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, By the Fitchburg Common Council that it approves Baker

Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP as the audit firm for the City’s 2015 audit and authorizes $55,100 for
these services to be paid as outlined on the attached pre-approval form.

Adopted this day of , 20

Patti Anderson, City Clerk

Stephen L. Arnold, Mayor



City of Fitchburg

Committee or Commission Referral

Direct Referral Initiated by:
Direct Referral Approved by:

Date Referred: October 27, 2015 Ordinance Number:
Date to Report Back: Nov 24, 2015  Resolution Number: R-121-15

Sponsored by: Mayor Drafted by: Public Works

TITLE: Approving Grant of Highway Easement to Wisconsin
Department of Transportation (WisDOT) Over the Military
Ridge Path Corridor at County PD/McKee Road

Background: This resolution grants a Highway and Temporary Limited Easement
across the Military Ridge Path corridor to WisDOT for the reconstruction work that they
are doing on McKee Road as part of the Verona Road — Stage 2 improvements. The
McKee Road improvements include the road expansion and sidewalks.

Attached is a map, titled “Parcel 1”, which illustrates the location for the easements. The
Highway Easement document and Purchase Agreement document have also been
included in the packet.

Order Referred To Staff Contact Place on Agenda | Action Taken
For On Referral
1 Board of Public Works Horton November 2, 2015
2 Plan Commission Hovel November 17, 2015
3 Finance Dodge November 24, 2015
4
Amendments:

I:\Council\Committee Docs\COUNCIL\2015\October 27, 2015\Docs for Review\R-121-15\referral R-121-15.doc
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HIGHWAY EASEMENT

Wisconsin Department of Transportation
RE1565 04/2015 Exempt from fee: s.77.25(2r) Wis. Stats.

THIS EASEMENT, made by City of Fitchburg, a Wisconsin
municipal corporation GRANTOR, conveys an easement, as
described below, for highway purposes to the State of Wisconsin,
Department of Transportation, GRANTEE, for the sum of One
Dollar and Other Valuable Considerations ($ 1.00)

Any person named in this easement may make an appeal from the
amount of compensation within six months after the date of recording
of this easement as set forth in s.32.05(2a) Wisconsin statutes. For
the purpose of any such appeal, the amount of compensation stated on
the easement shall be treated as the award, and the date the

easement is recorded shall be treated as the date of taking and the _ _ _
date of evaluation. This space is reserved for recording data

Return to

Laura H.S. Sadler
TerraVenture Advisors

4641 West Forest Home Ave
Milwaukee, W1 53219

Other persons having an interest of record in the property: None
This is not homestead property.
LEGAL DESCRIPTION IS ATTACHED AND MADE A PART OF THIS

DOCUMENT BY REFERENCE. Parcel Identification Number/Tax Key Number
225/0609-064-9740-1, 225/0609-071-8516-6

City of Fitchburg, a Wisconsin municipal corporation

Signature Date Date
By: State of Wisconsin
Print Name, Title )
) ss.
County
Signature Date

On the above date, this instrument was acknowledged before me by the
By:. named person(s).
Print Name, Title

Signature Date Signature, Notary Public, State of Wisconsin

Print Name Print Name, Notary Public, State of Wisconsin

Signature Date Date Commission Expires

Print Name
Project ID This instrument was drafted by Parcel No.
1206-07-25 Wisconsin Department of Transportation 1

Qg J403711



LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Parcel 1 of Transportation Project Plat 1206-07-25 - 4.02 recorded as Document No. 5099029, at
the Register of Deeds office in Dane County, Wisconsin.

Property interests and rights of said Parcel 1 consist of:

HIGHWAY EASEMENT
This highway easement includes the right to ingress and egress to construct and
maintain McKee Road roadway and sidewalk.

TEMPORARY LIMITED EASEMENT

Also, Parcel 1 of Transportation Project Plat 1206-07-25 - 4.03 recorded as Document No.
5099030, at the Register of Deeds office in Dane County, Wisconsin.

Property interests and rights of said Parcel 1 consist of:
HIGHWAY EASEMENT
This highway easement includes the right to ingress and egress to construct and
maintain McKee Road roadway and sidewalk.

TEMPORARY LIMITED EASEMENT

Also, Parcel 1 of Transportation Project Plat 1206-07-25 - 4.07 recorded as Document No.
5099046, at the Register of Deeds office in Dane County, Wisconsin.

Property interests and rights of said Parcel 1 consist of:
HIGHWAY EASEMENT
This highway easement includes the right to ingress and egress to construct and
maintain McKee Road roadway and sidewalk.

TEMPORARY LIMITED EASEMENT

Any interests or rights not listed above for said parcels but shown as required on said
Transportation Project Plats are hereby incorporated herein by reference.

1206-07-25 9/5/14 Parcel 1
Page 1 of 1



AGREEMENT FOR PURCHASE AND SALE OF REAL ESTATE - SHORT FORM

Wisconsin Department of Transportation
RE1895 04/2015

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into by and between City of Fitchburg, a Wisconsin municipal corporation,
hereinafter called Seller, and the State of Wisconsin, Department of Transportation, hereinafter called WisDOT. If accepted,
this offer can create a legally enforceable contract. Both parties should read this document carefully and understand it
before signing.

Seller and WisDOT agree that WisDOT is purchasing this property for highway or other transportation related purposes,
within the meaning of Chapter 84 of the Wisconsin Statutes.

Seller warrants and represents to WisDOT that Seller has no notice or knowledge of any of the following:

1) Planned or commenced public improvements which may result in special assessments which would otherwise materially
affect the property, other than the planned transportation facility for which WisDOT is purchasing this property;

2) Government agency or court order requiring repair, alteration, or correction of any existing condition;
3) Shoreland or special land use regulations affecting the property; and,
4) Underground storage tanks and the presence of any dangerous or toxic materials or conditions affecting the property.

DESCRIPTION: The Seller agrees to sell and WisDOT agrees to buy, upon the terms and conditions hereinafter named, the
following described real estate situated in Dane County, Wisconsin:

Legal description is attached hereto and made a part hereof by reference.

The purchase price of said real estate shall be the sum of One Dollar and other good and valuable consideration, ($1.00 &

OVC) payable-infull-by-check-atclosing.

Seller shall, upen-paymentof purchase-price, convey the property by warranty deed or other conveyance provided herein,
free and clear of all liens and encumbrances, including special assessments, except recorded public utility easements and

recorded restrictions on use running with the land or created by lawfully enacted zoning ordinances and N/A, provided none
of the foregoing prohibit present use.

Legal possession of premises shall be delivered to WisDOT on the date of closing.

SPECIAL CONDITIONS: The parties to this agreement acknowledge that the Wisconsin Department of Transportation is
receiving this conveyance as a donation. Should seller appeal from the amount of compensation pursuant to S. 32.05(2a),
Wisconsin Statutes, then the parties hereto agree that the value of the property described herein for purposes of such appeal
shall be fair market value which has been determined by the parties to be the fair market value of the property based on
appraisal. The appraisal valued the property at $7,900.00. This interest acquired by this donation is a Temporary Limited
Easement of 4,884 square feet and Highway Easement of 2,096 square feet.

This agreement is binding upon acceptance by WisDOT as evidenced by the signature of an authorized representative of

WisDOT. If this agreement is not accepted by WisDOT within 30 days after Seller's signature, this agreement shall be null
and void.

Project ID Parcel No.
1206-07-25 1

Q0 JT40%9&833




This transaction is to be closed at the office of TBD on or before December 31, 2015 or at such other time and place as may
be agreed to in writing by the Seller and WisDOT.

No representations other than those expressed here, either oral or written, are part of this sale.

Seller and WisDOT agree to act in good faith and use diligence in completing the terms of this agreement. This agreement
binds and inures to the benefit of the parties to this agreement and their successors in interest, assigns, personal
representatives, heirs, executors, trustees, and administrators.

The warranties, covenants and representations made herein survive the closing and the conveyance of this
property. Seller agrees to sell and convey the above-mentioned property on the terms and conditions as set
forth and acknowledges receipt of a copy of this agreement.

City of Fitchburg, a Wisconsin municipal corporation

Witness Signature Date Seller Signature Date
By:

Print Name Print Name, Title
Seller Signature Date
By:

Print Name, Title

Seller Signature Date
Print Name
Seller Signature Date
Print Name

The above agreement is accepted.

Signature Date

Print Name

Title

Must be signed by administrator or an authorized
representative of WisDOT.

Project ID Parcel No.
1206-07-25 1



LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Parcel 1 of Transportation Project Plat 1206-07-25 - 4.02 recorded as Document No. 5099029, at
the Register of Deeds office in Dane County, Wisconsin.

Property interests and rights of said Parcel 1 consist of:

HIGHWAY EASEMENT
This highway easement includes the right to ingress and egress to construct and
maintain McKee Road roadway and sidewalk.

TEMPORARY LIMITED EASEMENT

Also, Parcel 1 of Transportation Project Plat 1206-07-25 - 4.03 recorded as Document No.
5099030, at the Register of Deeds office in Dane County, Wisconsin.

Property interests and rights of said Parcel 1 consist of:
HIGHWAY EASEMENT
This highway easement includes the right to ingress and egress to construct and
maintain McKee Road roadway and sidewalk.

TEMPORARY LIMITED EASEMENT

Also, Parcel 1 of Transportation Project Plat 1206-07-25 - 4.07 recorded as Document No.
5099046, at the Register of Deeds office in Dane County, Wisconsin.

Property interests and rights of said Parcel 1 consist of:
HIGHWAY EASEMENT
This highway easement includes the right to ingress and egress to construct and
maintain McKee Road roadway and sidewalk.

TEMPORARY LIMITED EASEMENT

Any interests or rights not listed above for said parcels but shown as required on said
Transportation Project Plats are hereby incorporated herein by reference.

1206-07-25 9/5/14 Parcel 1
Page 1 of 1



Steve Arnold, Mayor Public Works
Introduced by Prepared by

Plan Commission, Board of Public
Works, Finance Committee October 27, 2015
Referred to Date

RESOLUTION R-121-15
Approving Grant of Highway Easement to Wisconsin Department of
Transportation (WisDOT) Over the Military Ridge Path Corridor at County
PD/McKee Road

WHEREAS, WisDOT has requested a Highway Easement (HE) and Temporary Limited
Easement (TLE) across the Military Ridge Path corridor at the intersection with McKee Road to
accommodate the reconstruction work that they are completing as part of the Verona Road —
Stage 2 project, and

WHEREAS, the improvements to McKee Road include the addition of travel lanes in each
direction, an 8-ft wide sidewalk on the south side, and a 5-ft wide sidewalk on the north side, and

WHEREAS, the HE provides benefit to Fitchburg by maintaining bicycle and pedestrian
accommodations along McKee Road and maintaining connections to the Military Ridge Path, and

WHEREAS, because of the mutual benefits received by the HE, the easements will be
granted to WisDOT at no cost.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, by the Fitchburg Common Council
that it approves granting a Highway Easement and Temporary Limited Easement to the
Wisconsin Department of Transportation across the Military Ridge Path corridor at the
intersection with McKee Road at no cost.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that it authorizes the City Clerk and Mayor to sign the
Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Real Estate — Short Form and the Highway Easement
drafted by the Wisconsin Department of Transportation.

Adopted this day of , 2015.

Stephen L. Arnold, Mayor

Approved:

Patti Anderson, City Clerk

I\Counci\Committee Docs\COUNCIL\2015\October 27, 2015\Docs for Review\R-121-15\R-121-15.docx



City of Fitchburg
Committee or Commission Referral

Direct Referral Initiated by:
Direct Referral Approved by:

Date Referred: October 27, 2015 Ordinance Number: 2015-O-XX
Date to Report Back: November 24, 2015 Resolution Number:

Sponsored by: Mayor Drafted by: Planning / Zoning
TITLE: Rezone Request, RZ-2080-15, by Ronald Klaas, Agent for Fahey

Land, LLC, to Rezone a Portion of Lot 2 CSM 9896 from the A-T
(Transitional Agriculture) District to the A-X (Small Lot Agriculture), a
Portion to the P-R (Parks & Recreation), a Portion to the R-H
(Residential — High Density) and a Portion to the R-LM (Residential —
Low to Medium Density) Districts

Background: Applicant is requesting approval for to rezone lot 2 CSM 9896 out of agriculture
to various districts. A map showing the proposed district boundaries is included in the submittal
materials.

Order Referred To Staff Contact | Place on Agenda | Action Taken
For On Referral
1 Plan Commission Hovel/Badtke | November 17, 2015
2

Amendments:



@ City of Fitchburg ]2—66- /02& 3 6"/23 //f—

Planning/Zoning Department

(e 6520 Lacy Road REZONING APPLICATION /2

) Fitchburg, W1 53711
Fi tCthrg (608-270-4200)

The undersigned owner, or owner’s authorized agent, of property herein described hereby petitions to amend the zoning
district map of the Fitchburg zoning ordinance by reclassifying from the A-T district to the district the
following described property: R- “"; R-H, A~T

1. Location of Property/Street Address: West of McGaw Park, South of Waterford Glen and East of Filch. Tech Camp

Legal Description - (Metes & Bounds, or Lot No. And Plat):

See attached

***Also submit in electronic format (MS WORD or plain text) by email ta: planning@fitchburgwi.gov
2. Proposed Use of Property - Explanation of Request:

Property will be used as a single and multi-famnily use subdivision with areas set aside for park and stormwater
management.

3. Proposed Development Schedule: 2016-2019

“**Pursuant to Section 22-3(b) of the Fitchburg Zoning Ordinance, all Rezonings shalf be consistent with the currently
adopted City of Fitchburg Comprehensive Plan.

***Attach three (3) copies of a site plan which shows any proposed land divisions, plus vehicular access points and the
location and size of all existing and proposed structures and parking areas. Two (2) of the three (3) copies shall be no
larger than 11" x 17". Submit one (1) electronic pdf document of the entire submittal to planning@fitchburgwi.gov.
Additional information may be requested.

Type of Residential Development (If Applicable): Single and Multi-Family

Total Dwelling Units Proposed: 115 No. Of Parking Stalls:

Type of Non-residential Development (If Appiicable):

Proposed Hours of Operation: NA No. Of Employees: NA

Floor Area:NA No. Of Parking Stalls: NA

Sewer: Municipal Private [__| Water: Municipal Private [_]

Current Owner of Property: Fahey Land, LLC

Address: 702 N, High Point Road, Suite 200, Madison, WI 53717 Phone No:608 235-9220

Contact Person; [ony Heinrichs

Email: tonyheinrichs@aol.com

Address: 702 N. High Point Road, Suite 200, Madisen, W| 53717 Phone No: 5608 235-9220
Respectfully Submitted By: _ _ Kot 8 Aleds
Owner's or Atthorized Agent's Signature Print Owner's or Authorized Agent's Name

PLEASE NOTE - Applicants shall be responsible for legal or outside consultant costs incurred by the City.
Submissions shall be made at least four (4) weeks prior to desired plan commission meeting.

For City Use Only: Date Recelved: 3 /2?—/2-015 Publish: and

Crdinance Section No. Fee Paid: % S<0. o0
Permit Request No._R 72 - 25%0-15




R-HFAHEY FIELDS - ZONING DESCRIPTIONS
LANDS TO BE ZONED A-S SMALL LOT AGRICULTURE)

Part of Lot 2, Certified Survey Map No. 9896, recorded in Volume 57 of Certified Survey Maps on pages
237-238 as Document Number 3271318 and lands located in the NE1/4 and the NW1/4 of the SE1/4 and
the SW1/4 of the NE1/4 of Section 15, T6N, RIE, City of Fitchburg, Dane County, Wisconsin to-wit:
Beginning at the East 1/4 corner of said Section 15; thence S01°03'52"W, 296.08 feet; thence S87°29'16"W,
2653.06 feet; thence N00°27'55"E, 295.90 feet; thence N87°32'50"E, 624.57 feet; thence N87°28'11"E,
608.18 feet; thence N38°03'41"E, 29.06 feet to a point of curve; thence Eastetly along a curve to the left
which has a radius of 85.00 feet and a chord which bears N87°02'28"E, 38.09 feet; thence S51°56'19"E, 34.35
feet; thence N87°28'11"E, 1340.33 feet to the point of beginning. Containing 18.018 acres.

LANDS TO BE ZONED P-R (PARKS AND RECREATION)

Part of Lot 2, Certified Survey Map No. 9896, recorded in Volume 57 of Certified Survey Maps on pages
237-238 as Document Number 3271318 and lands located in the SW1/4 and the SE1/4 of the NE1/4 of
Section 15, T6N, RIE, City of Fitchburg, Dane County, Wisconsin to-wit: Beginning at the East 1/4 corner
of said Section 15; thence S87°28'11"W, 311.64 feet; thence N02°31'49"W, 320.00 feet; thence S87°28'11"W,
163.00 feet; thence N02°31'49"W, 354.00 feet; thence S87°28'11"W, 975.21 feet; thence N00°11'51"E, 20.02
feet; thence N87°28'11"E, 974.26 feet; thence N02°31'49"W, 176.28 feet to a point of curve; thence
Northetly along a curve to the left which has a radius of 300.00 feet and a chord which bears N08°11'33"W/,
59.20 feet; thence N72°56'53"E, 163.47 feet; thence N17°03'07"W, 320.00 feet; thence S72°56'53"W, 163.00
feet; thence N17°03'07"W, 36.48 feet; thence S86°57'59"W, 509.01 feet; thence S03°02'01"E, 143.00 feet;
thence S86°57'59"W/, 55.32 feet to a point of curve; thence Southwesterly along a curve to the left which has
a radius of 150.00 feet and a chord which bears S64°13'24"W, 115.98 feet; thence S41°28'49"W, 40.37 feet;
thence N48°31'11"W, 114.85 feet to a point of curve; thence Northwesterly along a curve to the right which
has a radius of 250.00 feet and a chord which bears N31°18'01"W, 148.02 feet; thence S75°55'09"W, 122.86
feet to a point of curve; thence Southwesterly along a curve to the left which has a radius 150.00 feet and a
chord which bears S58°41'59"W, 88.81 feet; thence S41°28'49"W, 5.10 feet; thence N48°31'11"W, 121.21
feet; thence S86°57'59"W, 44.58 feet; thence S41°28'49"W, 133.36 feet; thence S33°57'48"W, 93.40 feet;
thence S09°44'32"W, 98.34 feet; thence S00°11'51"W, 315.00 feet; thence S22°07'14"W, 121.63 feet; thence
N62°31'19"W, 16.41 feet; thence NO0°11'51"E, 744.04 feet; thence N86°42'47"E, 31.86 feet; thence
S76°29'03"E, 4.04 feet; thence N86°57'59"E, 1378.91 feet; thence S17°03'07"E, 47.93 feet; thence
N86°57'59"E, 603.25 feet; thence S00°10'56"W, 1304.90 feet to the point of beginning. Containing 18.415
acres.



LANDS TO BE ZONED R-HHIGH DENTSITY )

Part of Lot 2, Certified Survey Map No. 9896, recorded in Volume 57 of Certified Survey Maps on pages
237-238 as Document Number 3271318 and lands located in the SW1/4 and the SE1/4 of the NE1/4 of
Section 15, T6N, RIE, City of Fitchburg, Dane County, Wisconsin to-wit: Commencing at the East 1/4
corner of said Section 15; thence S87°28'11"W, 1157.06 feet to the point of beginning; thence continuing
S87°28'11"W, 183.27 feet; thence N51°56'19"W, 34.35 feet to a point of curve; thence Westetly along a curve
to the right which has a radius of 85.00 feet and a chord which bears S87°02'28"W, 38.09 feet; thence
S38°03'41"W, 29.06 feet; thence S87°28'11"W, 608.18 feet; thence NO0°11'51"E, 590.58 feet; thence
S62°31'19"E, 16.41 feet; thence N22°07'17"E, 121.63 feet; thence NO0°11'51"E, 120.00 feet; thence
S89°48'09"E, 163.00 feet; thence SO0°11'51"W, 4.72 feet; thence S89°48'09"E, 326.00 feet; thence
S00°11'51"W, 2206.78 feet to a point of cutve; thence Southwesterly along a curve to the right which has a
radius of 200.00 feet and a chord which bears S19°07'46"W, 129.78 feet; thence S38°03'41"W, 5.79 feet;
thence S51°56'19"E, 305.00 feet; thence N38°03'41"E, 63.00 feet; thence S51°56'19"E, 130.45 feet to a point
of curve; thence Southeasterly along a curve to the left which has a radius of 150.00 feet and a chord which
bears S61°44'42"E, 51.10 feet; thence S18°26'55"W, 183.08 feet to the point of beginning. Containing 12.015
acres.

LANDS TO BE ZONED R-LM (RESIDENTIAL LOW TO MEDIUM)

Part of Lot 2, Certified Survey Map No. 9896, recorded in Volume 57 of Certified Survey Maps on pages
237-238 as Document Number 3271318 and lands located in the SW1/4 and the SE1/4 of the NE1/4 of
Section 15, T6N, RIE, City of Fitchburg, Dane County, Wisconsin to-wit: Commencing at the East 1/4
corner of said Section 15; thence S87°28'11"W, 311.64 feet to the point of beginning; thence continuing
S87°28'11"W, 845.42 feet; thence N18°26'55"E, 183.08 feet to a point of curve; thence Northwestetly along a
curve to the right which has a radius of 150.00 feet and a chord which bears N61°44'42"W, 51.10 feet; thence
N51°56'19"W, 130.45 feet; thence S38°03'41"W, 63.00 feet; thence N51°56'19"W, 305.00 feet; thence
N38°03'41"E, 5.79 feet to a point of curve; thence Northeasterly along a curve to the left which has a radius
of 200.00 feet and a chord which bears N19°07'46"E, 129.78 feet; thence NO0°11'51"E, 116.53 feet; thence
N87°28'11"E, 975.21 feet; thence N02°31'49"W, 20.00 feet; thence S87°28'11"W, 974.26 feet; thence
NO00°11'51"E, 90.23 feet; thence N89°48'09"W, 326.00 feet; thence N00°11'51"E, 4.72 feet; thence
N89°48'09"W, 163.00 feet; thence NO0°11'51"E, 195.00 feet; thence N09°44'32"E, 98.34 feet; thence
N33°57'48"E, 93.40 feet; thence N41°28'49"E, 133.36 feet; thence N86°57'59"E, 44.58 feet; thence
S48°31'11"E, 121.21 feet; thence N41°28'49"E, 5.10 feet to a point of curve; thence Northeasterly along a
curve to the right which has a radius of 150.00 feet and a chord which bears N58°41'59"E, 88.81 feet; thence
N75°55'09"E, 122.806 feet to a point of cure; thence Southeasterly along a curve to the left which has a radius
of 250.00 feet and a chord which bears S31°18'01"E, 148.02 feet; thence S48°31'11"E, 114.85 feet; thence
N41°28'49"E, 40.37 feet to a point of curve; thence Northeasterly along a curve to the right which has a
radius of 150.00 feet and a chord which bears N64°13'24"E,, 115.98 feet; thence N86°57'59"E, 55.32 feet;
thence N03°02'01"W, 143.00 feet; thence N86°57'59"E,, 509.01 feet; thence S17°03'07"E, 36.48 feet; thence
N72°56'53"E, 163.00 feet; thence S17°03'07"E, 320.00 feet; thence $72°56'53"W, 163.47 feet to a point of
curve; thence Southerly along a curve to the right which has a radius of 300.00 feet and a chord which bears
S08°11'33"E, 59.20 feet; thence S02°31'49"E, 550.28 feet; thence N87°28'11"E, 163.00 feet; thence
S02°31'49"E, 320.00 feet to the point of beginning. Containing 31.429 acres.
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City of Fitchburg

Committee or Commission Referral

Direct Referral Initiated by:
Direct Referral Approved by:

Date Referred: October 27, 2015 Ordinance Number:

Date to Report Back: November 24, 2015 Resolution Number: R-XX-15
Sponsored by: Mayor Drafted by: Planning / Zoning

TITLE: Final Plat Request, FP-2081-15, by Ron Klaas, Agent for Fahey Land,

LLC, for the Final Plat of Fahey Fields

Background: Applicant is requesting approval for the final plat of Fahey Fields.

Order Referred To Staff Contact | Place on Agenda | Action Taken
For On Referral
1 Plan Commission Hovel/Badtke | November 17, 2015
2

Amendments:



: City of Fitchb c. /0%63 G422 5|
mm Pllaiﬁing;fgon?r:g Department /eﬁ ﬁ/ /

CB 5520 Lacy Road LAND DIVISION APPLICATION /%4
Fitchburg  (sns 270200

The undersigned owner, or owner's authorized agent, of property herein described hereby submits ten (10) copies of the
attached maps, one (1) copy no larger than 11" x 17", and one (1) pdf document of the complete submittal
(planning@fitchburgwi.gov) for approval under the rules and requirements of the Fitchburg Land Division Ordinance.,

1. Type of Action Requested: [0 certified Survey Map Approval

] Preliminary Plat Approval

Final Plat Approval

[1 Replat

1 Comprehensive Development Plan Approval
2. Proposed Land Use (Check all that Apply):

Single Family Residential

[] Two-Family Residential

Multi-Family Residential

[ commercial/industrial

3. No. of Parcels Proposed: 115
Ky
4, No. Of Buildable Lots Proposed: 107
5. Zoning District: Existing: A-T  Proposed: R-LM, R-H, A-T
6. Current Owner of Property: Fahey Land, LLC
Address: 702 N. High Point Road, Suite 200, Madison, W| 53717 Phone No: 608 235-9220

7. Contact Person: Tony Heinrichs
Email:tonvheinrichs@aol.com

Address: same as above Phone No:same as above

8. Submission of legal description in electronic format (MS Word or plain text) by email to: planning@fitchburgwi.gov

Pursuant to Section 24-2 {4) of the Fitchburg Land
currentlyadopted City of Fitchburg Compre

Respectfully Submitted By: /@0’6’/& A2 M/f)’
Owner's or A;{horized Agenl's Signature  Print Owner's or Authorized Agent's Name

ivision Ordinance, all Land Divisions shall be consistent with the

PLEASE NOTE - Applicants shall be responsible for legal or outside consultant costs incurred by the City.
Submissions shall be made at least four (4) weeks prior to desired plan commission meeting.

For City Use Only: Date Received: ol 122‘12\3\5

@
Ordinance Section No. Fee Paid: ¢ (2,210

Permit Request No. ¥ ? - 20| -1%




FAHEY FIELDS - LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Part of Lot 2, Certified Survey Map No. 9896, recorded in Volume 57 of Certified Survey Maps on pages
237-238 as Document Number 3271318 and lands located in the SW1/4 and the SE1/4 of the NE1/4 and in
the NE1/4 and the NW1/4 of the SE1/4 of Section 15, T6N, R9E, City of Fitchburg, Dane County,
Wisconsin to-wit:

Beginning at the East 1/4 corner of said Section 15; thence S01°03'52"W, 296.08 feet along the East line of
said SE1/4; thence S87°29'16"W, 2653.06 feet to the West line of said SE1/4; thence N00°27'55"E, 295.90
feet to the South line of TechLands; thence N87°32'50"E, 624.57 feet along said South line to the Southeast
corner of Outlot 4, said TechLands; thence N00°11'51"E, 1334.63 feet along the East line of said Techlands
and the East line of Outlot 8 and Outlot 9, First Addition to Fitchburg Technology Campus to the Northeast
corner of said Outlot 9; thence N86°42'47"E, 31.85 feet along the South line Outlot 12, said First Addition to
Fitchburg Technology Campus to the Southeast corner of said Outlot 12; thence S76°29'03"E, 4.04 feet to
the Southwest corner of Outlot 1, Waterford Glen; thence N86°57'59"E, 1378.91 feet along the South line of
Watetford Glen and the South line of Lot 2, Certified Sutvey Map No. 3060; thence S17°03'07"E, 47.93 feet;
thence N86°57'59"E, 603.25 feet to the East line of said NE1/4; thence S00°10'56"W, 1304.90 feet along
said East line also being the West line of Lot 2, Certified Survey Map No. 445 to the point of beginning,
Containing 3,479,442 square feet (79.877 acres).
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D'ONOFRIO KOTTKE AND ASSOCIATES, INC.

7530 Westward Way, Madison, WI 53717
Phone: 608.833.7530 * Fax: 608.833.1089
YOUR NATURAL RESOURCE FOR LAND DEVELOPMENT

SECTION
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SW1/4

15, T6N, R9E

NE1/4
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\\\;
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PART OF LOT 2, CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 9896 AND LANDS LOCATED IN THE SW1/4 AND THE SE1/4 OF THE NE1/4

FAHEY FIELDS

AND IN THE NE1/4 AND THE NW1/4 OF THE SE1/4 OF SECTION 15, T6N, RIE,

CITY OF FITCHBURG, DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN

There are no objections to this plat with respect to
Secs. 236.15, 236.16, 236.20 and 236.21(1) and (2),
Wis. Stats. as provided by s. 236.12, Wis. Stats.

Certified

, 20
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D'ONOFRIO KOTTKE AND ASSOCIATES, INC.

7530 Westward Way, Madison, WI 53717
Phone: 608.833.7530 * Fax: 608.833.1089

FAHEY FIELDS

PART OF LOT 2, CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 9896 AND LANDS LOCATED IN THE SW1/4 AND THE SE1/4 OF THE NE1/4

AND IN THE NE1/4 AND THE NW1/4 OF THE SE1/4 OF SECTION 15, T6N, RIE,
CITY OF FITCHBURG, DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN
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SEE SHEET 3

There are no objections to this plat with respect to
Secs. 236.15, 236.16, 236.20 and 236.21(1) and (2),
Wis. Stats. as provided by s. 236.12, Wis. Stats.

Certified , 20

Department of Administration

NOTES

-

Outlots 1 and 4 are dedicated to the public for stormwater management and park purposes.

Outlot 6 is dedicated to the public for stormwater management purposSes.
Outlots 2, 3 and 5 are dedicated to the public for pedestrian path purposes.
Outlot 7 is dedicated to the public for park purposes.
Outlot 8 is reserved for future development.
Distances shown along curves are chord lengths.
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LEGEND
© Found 1” Iron Pipe (unless noted)
1 Found 3/4” Iron Rebar (unless noted)

Placed 1-1/4" x 18" solid round iron rebar stake, weighing
O 4.30 Ibs/ft. All other lot and outlot corners are marked
with 3/4”x 18” solid round iron rebar stakes., weighing 1.50 Ibs/f+t
Public utility easement (6’ wide unless otherwise dimensioned).
Utility easements as herein set forth are for the use of PUBLIC
BODIES and PRIVATE PUBLIC UTILITIES having the right to serve the area.

6

( ) Recorded as information
Arrows indicate the direction of surface drainage swale at individual
property lines. Said drainage swale shall be graded with the construction
of each principal structure and maintained by the ot owner unless
modified with the approval of the City Engineer.
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FAHEY FIELDS

PART OF LOT 2, CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 9896 AND LANDS LOCATED IN THE SW1/4 AND THE SE1/4 OF THE NE1/4
AND IN THE NE1/4 AND THE NW1/4 OF THE SE1/4 OF SECTION 15, T6N, RIE,
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There are no objections to this plat with respect to 00y
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. : 1(1) and (2) Jo/20//5
Wis. Stats. as provided by s. 236.12, Wis. Stats.
;-(-—\ Certified , 20
D'ONOFRIO KOTTKE AND ASSOCIATES, INC.
7530 Westward Way, Madison, WI 53717
Phone: 608.833.7530 * Fax: 608.833.1089 Department of Administration
YOUR NATURAL RESOURCE FOR LAND DEVELOPMENT (. 14_07—1153
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© Found 1" Iron Pipe (unless noted) J
\
587029’16”W 2653.06’ I 1 Found 3/4” Iron Rebar (unless noted) ’\
Placed 1-1/4" x 18" solid round iron rebar stake, weighing %—:
©) 4.30 Ibs/ft. All other lot and outlot corners are marked ©
LoT 2 with 3/4”x 18" solid round iron rebar stakes. weighing 1.50 I|bs/f*t. s !
. 6’ |
CSM 9896 447{m47{7447 Public utility easement (6’ wide unless otherwise dimensioned). SOE?%@?SyAgOgﬁéE N:
,,,,,,, Utility easements as herein set forth are for the use of PUBLIC SEC. 15 T6N, RIE |
M — ’7{7 BODIES and PRIVATE PUBLIC UTILITIES having the right to serve the area. ‘
6/
D'ﬂNDFRlﬂ KOTTKE AND ASSOCIATES, ING ( ) Recorded as information
7530 Westward Way, Madison, WI 53717
Phone: 608.833.7530 ¢ Fax: 608.833.1089
YOUR NATURAL RESOURCE FOR LAND DEVELOPMENT /.

14-07-113

Arrows

indicate the direction of surface drainage swale at individual
property |lines. Said drainage swale shall

of each principal structure and maintained by the

ot owner unless
modified with the approval of the City Engineer.

be graded with the construction
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There are no objections to this plat with respect to ‘ A} i EY 1 IEL DS

Secs. 236.15, 236.16, 236.20 and 236.21(1) and (2),
Wis. Stats. as provided by s. 236.12, Wis. Stats. PART OF LOT 2, CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 9896 AND LANDS LOCATED IN THE SW1/4 AND THE SE1/4 OF THE NE1/4
AND IN THE NE1/4 AND THE NW1/4 OF THE SE1/4 OF SECTION 15, T6N, RIE,

Certified , 20 CITY OF FITCHBURG, DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN

Department of Administration

LEGEND
© Found 1" Iron Pipe (unless noted)
1 Found 3/4"” Iron Rebar (unless noted)

Placed 1-1/4" x 18" solid round iron rebar stake, weighing
@) 4.30 Ibs/ft. All other lot and outlot corners are marked
with 3/4”x 18" solid round iron rebar stakes. weighing 1.50 |bs/f*.

6/
7{,7Li Public utility easement (6’ wide unless otherwise dimensioned).
Utility easements as herein set forth are for the use of PUBLIC
- "‘*L“‘* BODIES and PRIVATE PUBLIC UTILITIES having the rig